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Message from Doug McKay Chief Executive Auckland Council 

 
This is the final annual report of Rodney District Council, one of eight former councils which 
were amalgamated to form the Auckland Council group on 1 November 2010. 

This report tracks the performance of the council for the 16-month period 1 July 2009 to 31 
October 2010 and reports progress made against its long-term council community plan 
(long-term plan) and annual plans.  

Auckland Council, Watercare Services Limited and six new council controlled organisations 
assumed the responsibilities and powers held by the former city, district and regional 
authorities.  

Final annual reports have also been produced for: 

 Auckland City Council  
 Auckland Regional Council 
 Franklin District Council 
 Manukau City Council 
 North Shore City Council 
 Papakura District Council 
 Waitakere City Council. 
 

This document has been prepared on the assumption of continuity of activities and 
responsibilities under Auckland Council. No adjustment has been made in the financial 
statements to reflect the dissolution of the former councils.  

With Mayor Len Brown, I acknowledge the work of the former Rodney District Council 
mayor, councillors and staff, who have left a strong foundation for us to build upon. 

I look forward to producing the first annual report for Auckland Council later this year, which 
will report on our achievements for the period 1 November 2010 to 30 June 2011. 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

Doug McKay 

Chief executive  

Auckland Council 
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About Rodney District 
Rodney District stretches from the east to west coast just north of metropolitan Auckland. It is 
the most northern of the former seven local authorities that make up the Auckland Region. Its 
neighbours are Waitakere and North Shore to the south and the Kaipara District (part of the 
Northland Region) to the north. 

Rodney District is one of the fastest growing districts in New Zealand and has a unique blend 
of urban and rural lifestyles.  

Rodney District Council 
Rodney District Council was the statutory organisation responsible for a range of functions 
and services including rubbish disposal services, urban water, sewerage and stormwater 
services and local roads.  

It developed policies and bylaws to facilitate local economic growth while protecting the 
interests of the community at large and the local environment. 

It was also responsible for community wellbeing, fostering the arts and providing facilities 
such as holiday parks, libraries, leisure centres, parks and reserves, rural fire services and 
civil defence. 

It advocated the needs of the local community to central government, other local authorities 
and other agencies. 

Like other councils, Rodney District Council carried out a number of statutory functions under 
the Resource Management Act 1991, the Building Act 2004, the Bio security Act 1993, the 
Health Act 1956 and others. 

 

Rodney District Facts 

Population1: 98,383  

Growth since 1996: +46.5% 

District area: 2,475 square kilometres 

Rateable land value2: $21,823,764,500 

Rateable capital value: $34,532,123,150 

Number of rates assessments: 45,714 

 

Council Membership 

The council was governed by a mayor 
elected on a district wide basis and 12 
councillors elected from four wards. 

Elected representatives of Rodney District 
were responsible for establishing policies on behalf of the district, setting the necessary 
financial requirements and monitoring the chief executive’s performance in delivering the long 
term council community plan (LTCCP), annual plan and budget objectives. 

                                                 
1 Source: Rodney Growth Model, in conjunction with Stats NZ. 
2 Rate information from reconciliation of valuations on District Valuation Roll with Pathway 
system @ 30  June 2010. 
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Introduction  
 
Due to the transition to Auckland Council on 1 November 2010, this report covers a period of 
16 months i.e., 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010.  

Changes to local government in Auckland 

Following the Royal Commission’s report on Auckland Governance in March 2009 the 
government announced and has subsequently implemented changes to local government in 
Auckland. The changes included: 
 
 the establishment of one new unitary council for the region: Auckland Council 
 a mayor elected at large and 20 councillors elected from wards 
 the establishment of 21 local boards and 149 elected board members 
 one district and one spatial plan for Auckland 
 one Long-Term Plan (LTP) for Auckland 
 
This new structure of local governance for Auckland has been established by the Local 
Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009, the Local Government (Auckland 
Council) Act 2009, the Local Government (Auckland Council) Amendment Act 2010 and the 
Local Government (Auckland Transitional Provisions) Act 2010. 
 
The new legislation also established Auckland Transport as a Council Controlled Organisation 
(CCO), provided for Watercare Services Limited to be treated as a local government 
organisation, and provided authority for the establishment of other CCOs.  The following 
CCOs have subsequently been established: Auckland Waterfront Development Agency, 
Auckland Council Investments, Auckland Tourism, Events and Economic Development, 
Regional Facilities Auckland and Auckland Council Property.  These CCOs will work with 
Auckland Council to deliver services to Auckland communities. 
 
The government’s changes to reporting requirements for 2010/2011 have impacted the 
development and presentation of this report. The impacts are listed below. 
 
 The council prepared an annual plan for the 2010/2011 financial year, but this applied 

only for the four-month period in which it continued to exist (1 July 2010 to 31 October 
2010).  

 The council developed an annual report covering the 16 month period from 1 July 2009 to 
31 October 2010 (effectively reporting against year one of the LTCCP 2009/2019 for 12 
months and against the annual plan 2010/2011 for 4 months). 

 
In response to these changes, the performance targets are shown as follows: 16 month target 
(1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010) and 16 month result (1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010). 
 
Local Bill 
 
Following a formal request by the Northern Action Group, a motion was passed at an 
Extraordinary Meeting of council on 11 March 2010 that “the council prepare and progress a 
local bill promoting that Rodney District be excluded from the Auckland Council and be 
established as a unitary authority”.   
 
A Local Bill was prepared and deposited at the North Shore District Court for public inspection 
on 17 May 2010 where it remained until 8 June 2010. The Rodney Local Bill was defeated in 
its first reading in parliament on 21 July 2010. 
 
Under section 35 of the Local Government Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation Act 2009 
Rodney District Council (RDC) was dissolved on 31 October 2010.  As a consequence of the 
dissolution of RDC, the group structure ceased to exist. The functions, duties, and powers of 
RDC and group became the functions, duties and powers of the Auckland Council who is 
responsible for governing the entire Auckland region from 1 November 2010. 
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General Information 

Due to the transition to Auckland Council on 1 November 2010, this report covers a period of 
16 months i.e., 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010.  The government’s changes to reporting 
requirements for 2010/2011 have impacted the development and presentation of this report. 
The impacts are listed below. 

 The council prepared an annual plan for the 2010/2011 financial year, but this applied 
only for the four-month period in which council continued to exist (1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010).  

 This report covers the 16 month period from 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010 
(effectively reporting against year one of the LTCCP 2009/2019 for 12 months and 
against the Annual Plan 2010/2011 for 4 months). 

The new structure of local governance for Auckland from 1 November 2010 has been 
established by the Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009, the Local 
Government (Auckland Council) Act 2009, the Local Government (Auckland Council) 
Amendment Act 2010 and the Local Government (Auckland Transitional Provisions) Act 
2010. 

The new legislation also established Auckland Transport as a Council Controlled Organisation 
(CCO), provided for Watercare Services Limited to be treated as a local government 
organisation, and provided authority for the establishment of other CCOs.  These CCOs will 
work with Auckland Council to deliver services to Auckland communities. 

As a consequence of the dissolution of RDC, the group structure ceases to exist. The 
functions, duties, and powers of RDC and group became the functions, duties and powers of 
the Auckland Council who is responsible for governing the entire Auckland region from 1 
November 2010. 

 All property belonging to RDC and group vest in the Auckland Council. 

 All money payable to or by RDC and group became payable to or by the Auckland 
Council. 

 All rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements, and engagements of RDC and group 
became the rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements, and engagements of the 
Auckland Council. 

 

Overall Financial Results  

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to 
the nearest thousand dollars ($000). Full details of the council’s accounting policies can be 
found in the detailed financial statements section of this report.  

These financial statements comply with NZ International Financial Reporting Standards, and 
other applicable Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for public benefit entities. 

The summary details the revenue and expenditure of the council as well as other financial 
transactions that have impacted on the council’s net equity.  
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Actual Plan Actu

12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 October 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $000

Summarised Operating Result

. Cost of Council Services 153,547           206,635                239,978              

. Regional Amenities and Museum funding 1,532               5,303                    4,296                  

. Rate Income 99,130             132,192                131,336              

. Other Revenue 66,564             134,147                115,031              

. Surplus 10,615             54,400                  Note 1 2,093                  

. Capital Expenditure 87,471             135,072                130,916              

. Cash and cash equivalents 12,824             (5,001)                   7,636                  

. 1,623,536        1,784,741             1,813,679           

. Borrowings 292,179           312,110                Note 2 297,383              

. Times finance cost covered by rates 4.7                   5.0                        5.2                      

. Cash investments to rates income 13% (4%) 6%

. Proportion of rates to total income 60% 50% 53%

Property, plant and equipment, intangible and forestry 
assets

al 

 

 
Note 1 see the Statement of Comprehensive Income for an analysis of the operating surplus of 
$2.1 million 
Note 2 Borrowings are shown net of cash holdings 
 

The financial surplus shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income was $2.1M - $52.3M 
less than budget. 

The council’s overall surplus includes the receipt of subsidies for capital expenditure projects, 
cash contributions and other items such as costs associated with potential future costs to 
settle weather tightness claims. The council uses its surplus to fund capital expenditure and to 
provide for loan repayments. 

The primary reasons for these results were: 
 
o Change in the methodology for recognition of potential future weather tightness costs $22.2M
o Expensing the costs of file remediation costs which were previously capitalised $4.2M
o Expensing some transportation costs which were previously capitalised $6.7M
o Additional personnel costs incurred due to the implementation of Auckland Council $2.0M
o NZTA subsidies primarily related to Penlink project were not received as the project 

has been delayed 
$19.3M

o Overall the number of properties sold was less than anticipated and the value 
received was lower than budgeted.  

$26.5M

   
 Offsetting the unfavourable variances were:  
o Vested Assets were above budget by $19.1M
o Cash Contributions above budget by $4.6M
   
 
Operating Expenditure 
Operating expenditure includes the day-to-day costs necessary to run a large multi-function 
organisation. These are generally costs that impact on one year’s operations as opposed to 
capital expenditure that impacts on more than one financial period and creates a depreciable 
asset.  

Council incurs costs to run and maintain assets such as roads, wastewater treatment plants 
and pumping stations, with the physical work being contracted out rather than being 
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performed by council employees. The quality of work performed and associated costs are 
subject to regular monitoring and review by council.  

The total operating expenditure for the 16 months period was $244.3 million against a budget 
of $211.9 million a difference of $32.4 million.  

A significant factor was that during the period the council changed the methodology used to 
calculate the potential future costs of meeting weather tightness issues. As a result the 
provision was increased by $22.2 million. 

The council reassessed the accounting treatment used regarding file remediation costs, these 
costs were previously capitalised and during the year the council recognised an expense 
relating to the historic value of $4.2 million. The council also expensed $6.7 million of 
transportation costs which were previously capitalised. 

Personnel costs were $43.9 million $2.1 million or 4.7% higher than the $41.8 million 
budgeted. The additional costs were incurred due to the implementation of the new Auckland 
Council structure.  

Operating Expenditure for the 16 months to 31 
October 2010 ($244.3M)

Regulatory Services
18%

Community 
Development

2%

Economic 
Development

1%
Community Services

16%

Transportation 
Services

29%

District and 
Environmental 

Planning
7%

Civic Leadership
2%

Water Services
17%

Environmental 
Services

6%

Regional Museum 
Levies

2%

 

Operating Expenses Funding 
 
Rates revenue continued to be the major source of operating revenue for the council. Rates 
revenue received was less than 1% below budget. 

The council recognised $.8 million (2%) more revenue and user charges than had been 
budgeted. This was principally due to the recognition as revenue of $1 million of unclaimed 
damage deposits. The monies were previously held in a liability account but recognised as 
revenue as they relate to amounts collected prior to 2002 which have been unable to be 
refunded. 
 
The council received $9 million in subsidies from the NZ Transport Agency for operational 
expenditure. This was in line with the budget. 
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Operating Expenses Funding 

Revenue & user 
charges

22%

Other income
1%

Rates
64%

NZ Transport 
Agency subsidies 

13%

 
Capital Expenditure 
 
Capital expenditure is the cost incurred by the council when it buys or creates new assets or 
renews existing ones. These assets provide services to the community for a period of greater 
than one year. Council‘s budget for the period from 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010 included 
a plan to spend $135.1 million on capital expenditure. 

In preparing the budget the council was in discussion with Government regarding the funding 
for the Penlink project. This project is an integrated transport project that will link the 
Whangaparaoa Peninsula to State Highway 1 at Redvale. It appeared that funding would be 
available through the National Land Transport Fund and a budget of $16.2 million was 
included in the first year of the Long Term Council Community Plan with the remaining project 
costs spread over the next couple of years. Funding for the project was not secured in the 
period and therefore the project commencement date was delayed until the funding of the 
project can be determined. 

Capital projects valued at $130.9 million were added during the period, made up of new works 
constructed by council of $60.5 million; renewal works constructed by council of $44.9 million; 
and the value of new works vested by developers of $25.5 million.   

Capital projects ($M)
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Council spent most of its capital expenditure on infrastructural assets such as roads, 
wastewater, water and stormwater systems to meet the needs of a growing district. 

Capital works for Transport, Water and Wastewater account for 68% of capital expenditure. 

 

Capital Expenditure for the 16 months to 31 
October 2010

 ($130.9M)
Water Services

22%

Other
2%

Environmental 
Services

11%

Support Assets
3%

Community 
Services

17%

Transportation 
Services

45%
 

 

Capital projects are funded by depreciation funds, NZ Transport agency subsidies, loans, 
cash contributions and are vested by developers. As noted above, the council prepared the 
budget and included funding based on the assumption that the Penlink project would proceed. 
The subsidies from NZTA were $19.3 million less than budgeted because of the delay in 
proceeding. Vested assets were $19.1 million higher than budgeted. 

Capital Expenditure Funding 

Cash Contributions
10%

Depreciation Funds
39%

Vested Assets
20%NZ Transport 

Agency Subsidies 
14%

Loans Raised
17%
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Borrowing and Debt Management  
The council’s borrowings increased over the years with the growing investment in 
infrastructure. Net borrowings (borrowings less cash held) were $297.4 million at 31 October 
2010. It was budgeted that net borrowings would be $312.1 million, a difference of $14.7 
million. Borrowings were lower than budgeted as the Penlink project did not commence but 
this was offset as sales of properties that had been anticipated when the budget was set did 
not eventuate by year end. 

 

Change in net borrowings ($M)

43 44

36

5

60

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Net borrowings ($M)

169

212

256

292 297

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

The council raised loans to fund capital expenditure when no other appropriate revenue or 
funding sources were available. 

The council’s adopted Treasury Management Policy set out borrowing control parameters, 
with four key long-term ratios providing financial targets that the council was committed to 
operating within. The measurements for the 16 Months to 31 October 2010 were: 

 
Ratio Target Achievement 
Debt as % of equity Less than 25% 20% 
Debt as a % of income  Less than 175% 121% 
Interest as a % of income Less than 15% 10% 
Interest as a % of annual rates income Less than 30% 19% 
Liquidity (Term debt + committed loan 
facilities to existing debt) 

Greater than 110% 125% 

 
Council’s borrowing is within the key parameters of council’s Treasury Management Policy  
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Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangibles and Forestry Assets 
 

Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangibles & 
Forestry Assets ($M)

1,394

1,522
1,585 1,624

1,814

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

 
 
Council’s assets – property, plant and equipment – are valued at $1.81 billion compared to 
$1.62 billion for the previous year. The council revalued its infrastructure assets and land and 
buildings and the effect was an increase in value of $150 million. In the period, there was 
capital expenditure of $130.9 million invested in purchasing, developing and renewing council 
assets. The total amount of depreciation charged on these assets for the period was $54.8M.  

Depreciation funds are used to fund renewal works, loan repayments, new capital works (in a 
few cases) or held to meet such future requirements. 

The council has identified assets with a book value of $22.4 million which it intends to sell in 
the coming year. These assets as shown as assets held for resale in the Statement of 
Financial Position. 
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Major projects and initiatives 
Listed below is a very small sample of the projects and initiatives that the Council and 
community have been involved in during the year. Please refer to the individual activity areas 
to see details of other key projects undertaken. 

 Significant resource commitments were applied to project work with the Auckland 
Transition Agency to implement the changes to Auckland governance structure. 

 Work was undertaken on a Local bill requesting the separation of the Rodney District 
from the Auckland region. This was prepared and submitted to parliament. The Local 
bill was unsuccessful. 

 The council worked with the Auckland Transition Agency (ATA) and other council’s in 
the Auckland region to conduct the local government elections which were held 9 
October 2010. 

 Council continued to foster the development of Maori/mana whenua capacity to 
contribute to the decision making process via continued consultation and Taumata. 
Regular governance level hui/taumata held with Ngati Whatua Nga Rima o Kaipara, 
Te Uri o Hau Settlement Trust, Ngati Manuhiri (Ngati Wai) and other local iwi. 

 The Puhoi and Kaukapakapa structure plans were both adopted by council on 23 
September 2010. The Matakana Plan Change was completed and council approved 
implementation of a pre-consultation process commencing on 22 October 2010. 

 The Draft Rural Strategy was adopted by council for public notification 13 May 2010. 
Submissions closed 21 June, and hearings commenced 28 July with final adoption on 
16 September 2010. 

 During 2010 an independent review of the Penlink project (the project is designed to 
provide a second access route from the Northern Motorway to the Whangaparaoa 
Peninsula) was carried out, commissioned by the Auckland Regional Transport 
Authority (ARTA) with the support of the New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) and 
Rodney District Council.  The purpose of the review was to increase confidence in the 
project to ensure that the scheme proposed and the business case was robust. The 
results of the review confirmed that technical work such as the engineering and 
demand assessment had been undertaken to a suitable standard and that the 
proposed project will meet its objectives both now and into the future. The review also 
confirmed that the scheme was economically sound. However, funds for Auckland 
projects from the National Land Transport Fund are constrained and there are other 
Auckland projects which are currently ranked higher for funding.  Work continues on 
addressing these issues. 

 NZTA in association with Council commenced the intersection improvements project 
at Warkworth. Whilst the first stage was slightly behind earlier programming it is still 
anticipated the overall project will be completed by the scheduled mid 2012 date. 

 Work continued on the Orewa West Walkway / Cycleway which is planned to 
eventually encircle the Orewa Estuary. The Lakeside - Waru Nui Court construction 
works have been completed including planting around the new bridge abutment. 
Contracts were awarded in June to complete the remainder of the southern link 
including Maori Hut Bridge and the Orewa College section including the bridge 
connection from Western Reserve. Negotiations continuing with the Ministry of 
Education and LINZ, for acquisition of the land for the cycleway route along the 
estuary edge of the Orewa College playing fields. 

 The LTCCP made provision for the commencement of construction of the Warkworth 
western collector during the year. This was deferred as a result of slower than 
expected development in the area.  

 Land was purchased to allow the construction of a Park and Ride facility at Silverdale.  

 Construction of the Orewa Boulevard continued. The project is aimed at improving the 
environment of downtown Orewa, particularly the waterfront. The intent is to 
reconnect the town centre to the beach and provide something that optimises the 
special qualities of both. 
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 Water Supply – 98.7% of Water supply service interruptions were responded to within 
2 hours exceeding our target of 95%. Safe, potable water was supplied with Ministry 
of Health (MoH) gradings from Ab to Aa achieved. This was higher than our targets. 

 Wastewater Treatment plants -  6 out of 10 treatment plants achieved the target of 
maintaining ARC minimum gradings of  “2A” or better.  Helensville Matakana and 
Wellsford were rated 3 because of their continued non-compliance while they are 
awaiting upgrades/new consents, while Warkworth achieved a 2B which should 
improve when the peak flow is fully operational. 

 12,054 tonnes of waste diverted from landfill through recycling  

 Across the district over $8.8m was invested in Area Wide Pavement Treatment 
(AWPT), the purpose of which is to renew the current pavement to strengthen and 
restore its life.  This is generally done using the existing width of the road and may 
include minor drainage improvements.  In an urban area an AWPT may involve 
milling up the road surface and laying a new base course and sealed surface.  This 
type of treatment can be done on both a sealed or unsealed road and receives 48% 
subsidy from NZTA 

 The contestable footpath fund was used to assist the Riverhead community to 
construct a footpath from the sports ground to the village 

 Work continues on the staged redevelopment of the Warkworth Show grounds, the 
regional sports ground in Northern Rodney. The work included earth works, 
stormwater drainage, irrigation and the upgrade of rugby fields to sandfields. 

 Replacement of the seawall at Algies Bay reserve this included recontoring the land 
and building retaining walls before the masonry wall was constructed. 

 The Parakai Springs Rd boat ramp was upgraded. The upgrade involved realigning, 
widening and lengthening the boat ramp to make it an all tide ramp and a major 
launching point to the Kaipara harbour. 

 A walkway passing under the Coatesville Riverhead Highway was constructed at the 
Murray Jones reserve Riverhead  

 Moana Avenue sea outfall, Orewa Installation of new 1500mm diameter stormwater 
outfall pipe to relieve flooding of the Orewa CBD. 

 Stanmore Bay Wetland Enhancement: including the construction of a pond and 
wetland system within the Stanmore Bay reserve to provide stormwater treatment and 
create a passive environmental reserve. 

 Continuation of the Kumeu Floodway improvement project The construction of a 50m 
wide flood berm for a length of 300m immediately downstream of the SHW 16 Bridge 
at Kumeu.  This is Stage I of a flood relief project that will ultimately include some 
2km of flood berm and stopbanks. 
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Reporting on council’s activities 

This section describes what the council did, and why it was involved in activities.  It reports on 
progress made against key projects and provides detail on how performance was monitored. 
 

 Groups of activities – that is, one or more related activities provided by, or on behalf 
of, the council. 

 Activities – that is, those goods or services provided by, or on behalf of the council, 
and includes the provision of facilities or amenities, the bestowing of grants, and the 
performance of regulatory or other local government functions. 

Rodney District Council made adjustments to the group of activities and activities when it 
prepared its 2009 -2019 Long Term Council Community Plan. As a result the actual June 
2009 comparatives have been restated where applicable. 
 
Group of activities Activity 

 
Civic Leadership 
 

Governance and democratic processes 
Iwi relationships 

District and Environmental Planning 
 

Future planning  
Urban and rural design 
Natural and coastal environment 
District plan 
Property holdings 

Regulatory Services 
 

Resource consents and monitoring 
Building consents 
Health and licensing 
Bylaws 
Animal control 

Transportation Services 
 

Transport planning 
Roading and streetscape 
 

Water Services 
 

Water supply 
Wastewater 
 

Community Services 
 

Public open space 
Libraries 
Leisure centre 
Holiday parks 
Community assets 

Environmental Services 
 

Waste management 
Landfills 
Stormwater 

Economic Development 
 

Economic advocacy and facilitation 

Community Development 
 

Community policy, planning and action  
Community grants and levies 
Graffiti prevention and removal  
Safety  
Fire and emergencies  

Community Outcomes 

The first Community Outcomes were developed following discussions with the community 
about the future of the district, development of a vision and capturing priorities for the future.  
This information was used to develop Vision Rodney which was adopted in July 2003.  Vision 
Rodney was reviewed in 2008 to reflect the views of the people and communities of Rodney 
and provides an up-to-date strategic vision of and for local communities and was used as a 
strategic framework for the council. 
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Each council activity makes some contributions to community outcomes.  This is set out in a 
table at the beginning of each group of activities. 

Following amalgamation to Auckland Council, communities will work through their local 
boards.  Local boards have a significant and wide-ranging role that spans most local 
government services and activities.  They will make decisions on local matters, provide local 
leadership and support strong local communities. Local boards provide important local input 
into region-wide strategies and plans including those of the council-controlled organisations 
(CCOs). 

How the council checked progress 

The council established performance measures for its groups of activities. These measures 
helped Rodney’s people judge how well the council was meeting its commitments to them. 
They also helped inform the council’s future decision-making, for example, when existing 
policies were not achieving the expected results and needed to be amended. 

Use of Surveys in Reporting Service Performance 

Following on from the new (in-house) approach used for the 2009 Annual Residents Survey, 
a similar approach was used in 2010 to be able to compare satisfaction with a range of 
council services and related issues. 

A new stratified sample of the property database was selected to receive a copy of the 
survey, delivered by post but with the ability to respond online. Younger people were also 
targeted through local colleges to boost their level of participation. In total 3,300 survey forms 
were distributed in July 2010 with a closing date of late August. 

This approach used the same method of measuring satisfaction as the 2009 survey based on 
the scale of very satisfied, fairly satisfied, neither satisfied nor dissatisfied, fairly dissatisfied 
and very dissatisfied. Residents were also asked to rate the importance of services and 
facilities as well as to identify which were most in need of improvement giving council a 
greater understanding of the results and which activities should be prioritised. 

Throughout the activities that follow, where satisfaction with performance had been 
measured, the results are presented as an overall satisfaction rating compared to the 
previous year where possible. 

Weighting 

Based on census data for people over the age of 15, target response levels were calculated. 
For example, the target number (T) of responses within the age group of 15-24 was 
calculated to be 14% of the total number of responses. 

Weighting was then carried out to balance the actual responses against the target. The 
weighting was calculated on the actual number of responses per question as follows: 

N = number of responses to that question from the age group 

X = total number of responses to that question 

N/X = Y = % of responses from the age group 

T = target response rate as a percent of the total number of responses based on census data 

W (weighting) = T (target) / Y (actual) 

 

As an example, the response rate in the question on access to the coast was: 

15-24 age group – Y = 5.7%, T = 14%, W= 2.4 

65+ age group – Y = 54%, T= 19%, W=0.35 

 

This recalculates the number of responses within each response and age group field, for 
instance: 6 responses of very satisfied in the 15-24 age group become 14.4 responses and 8 
responses of dissatisfied in the 65+ age group become 2.8 responses. Responses where age 
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group has not been specified can then be added to the weighted responses to give an overall 
figure which is turned in to a percent to give the final results. 

 

Calculating an overall satisfaction figure 
 
The final satisfaction figure is calculated by taking the mid point from the following scale 
where satisfaction is measured from 0-10 
 

– Very satisfied is 8-10 
– Satisfied is 6-8 
– Neither is 4-6 
– Dissatisfied is 2-4 
– Very dissatisfied is 0-2 

 
Results are therefore calculated as the sum of the following: 
 
% very satisfied multiplied by 0.9 
% satisfied multiplied by 0.7 
% neither multiplied by 0.5 
% dissatisfied multiplied by 0.3 
% very dissatisfied multiplied by 0.1 
 
Total = Customer Satisfaction Index (CSI) rating or overall satisfaction 
 
Please note: This methodology and satisfaction scale can now be compared accurately to the 
results from the 2009 Annual Residents’ Survey. (Prior to 2008/2009, the scale was used 
from 0-10). 

585 responses were received from respondents giving a response rate of 18%, with 15% 
received online and 85% by post. This sample size gives a margin of error of +-4% for a 95% 
confidence level. 

Public satisfaction results from the 2009/10 year are based on the responses from the 2010 
Annual Residents’ Survey developed and implemented by the Research Manager at Rodney 
District Council. 
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GROUP OF ACTIVITIES: CIVIC LEADERSHIP 

 
Activities in this group: 
 
Governance and Democratic Processes 
Iwi Relationships 
 
Overview 
 
Any thriving and functioning community needs to be able to make decisions about those 
issues and opportunities that affect everyone living in that community. These include what 
infrastructure and services are needed, what rules are needed to protect its quality of life, how 
to respond to threats and opportunities, who should represent the community to the outside 
world and how the community should organise itself to make these decisions. 
  
These decisions can be difficult and different parts of a community often have competing 
wants. In New Zealand we elect councils to make such decisions on our behalf. Council 
decision-making is carried out in full view of the public and media, with major or difficult issues 
consulted on to ensure the community’s views are known and taken into account. 
 
Central government has responsibilities to Maori under the Treaty of Waitangi. While local 
government is not a treaty partner, central government has chosen to prescribe in law 
requirements for how councils make decisions affecting Maori.  In addition to this, much of 
what local authorities do affects land use and bodies of water and these are matters that are 
of acute importance to the tangata whenua. It is important, therefore, that council actively 
engage Maori whenever making significant decisions about the development of the district, or 
the use of natural resources. 
 
Contribution to community outcomes 
 

Outcome Outcome statement Contribution to outcomes made 
by this group of activities 

Prosperous 
 

We will have a growing and 
resilient economy based on a 
wide variety of businesses that 
fit our character 

Vibrant 
 

We will have a range of 
recreational and cultural 
facilities and events across the 
district and we will encourage 
creativity and diversity 

Distinctive We will maintain and enhance 
the character of our townships 
and rural areas through 
excellent urban and rural 
planning and the intelligent 
management of growth 

Connected 
 

We will have the infrastructure 
and services needed for our 
residents, business and visitors 

Safe and healthy 
 

We will continue to have a 
sense of community and we will 
provide for the emotional and 
physical well-being of our 
people 

Clean and green We will continue to value, 
protect and enjoy the natural 
environment 

This group of activities affects all 
community outcomes through the 
effective operation of council 
including decision-making, 
community consultation, lobbying 
and through the community 
leadership the council provides 
 
Acknowledging mana whenua 
and ensuring that Maori capacity 
to contribute to decision-making 
processes supports all outcomes, 
is of benefit to Maori and the 
wider community, and contributes 
to the underlying concepts of 
sustainability and collaboration 
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Financial results 
 

Civic Leadership
Actual Plan Actual 

12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $0

Governance and Democratic Processes 3,547 5,279 4,903
Iwi Relationships 89 234 200

Total Operating Expenditure 3,636 5,513 5,103

Operating Revenue:
Revenue & user charges 37 53 59
Targeted rates 0 5,314 5,337
General rates 3,599 0 0

Total Operating Revenue 3,636 5,367 5,396

TOTAL OPERATING SURPLUS ( DEFICIT) 0 (146) 293

00 

 
 
Significant variances to budgeted expenditure arose as the council had budgeted to hold 
Annual Plan hearings and deliberations. As the budget proposed for the last four months of 
the period was consistent with the second year of the 10 year plan, the council resolved not to 
conduct a special consultative procedure on the plan and therefore did not incur the 
expenditure.  
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Activity: Governance and democratic processes 
 
This activity dealt with decision-making processes of the council. It included the organisation 
of council elections, informal meetings and the formal meeting cycle, consultation with the 
community, relationships with other agencies and organisations, forward planning through the 
LTCCP and annual plans, planning hearings, civic functions and the support systems needed 
to ensure these processes ran smoothly. 
 
Governance is also about speaking up for the people of Rodney and working nationally, 
regionally and locally to achieve the greatest benefit for the district and its people. 
 
Why the council did it 
 
Local authorities provide a range of services which individuals, the private sector, or other 
organisations would not supply either at all, or in sufficient quantities, or at an acceptable 
price. This is often because the services have wider community benefits which cannot be 
easily charged for and are therefore unlikely to be adequately provided by anyone but the 
public sector. Such activities include parks, economic and community development, district 
planning, libraries and the shared benefits of regulations that protect people’s rights.  In other 
cases the services are local monopolies such as water supplies, wastewater networks and 
roads.  
 
These services are essential to the social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of 
local communities. To ensure they are provided at the desired quality and quantity, 
democratically elected councils, such as Rodney District Council, have been set up to 
determine which services are necessary to community wellbeing and then to provide, fund, or 
advocate for them. 
 
There is no simple formula for making hard decisions on what to provide, how much of it, at 
what quality and who should be asked to pay for it. That is why the community is asked every 
three years to elect people who can make these decisions on the community’s behalf. In 
order to ensure they are acting in the best interest of the community, the council consults, 
when necessary obtains specialist advice and makes its decisions in formal public processes. 
 
In fulfilling its role, much of what the council does is governed by legislation. The Local 
Government Act 2002 (LGA) is particularly relevant to this activity as it governs the purpose of 
local government and the council’s consultation and decision-making processes. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement 

Continuing to work with the Auckland 
Transition Agency 

Project work continued throughout the period 
with significant resource commitments rising 
steeply as key dates approached. 

Effectively manage changes that may 
flow from the decisions on 
governance 

Work has proceeded on two workstreams; 
1. Transition to Auckland Council has been 

fully supported and  
2. Work on a local bill separating Rodney from 

the Auckland region was prepared for 
submission to parliament. 

Adjust projects and operations 
appropriately for what may be a 
prolonged recession, but without 
losing sight of the longer-term needs 
of the district, which involve 
effectively responding to growth 
pressures 

There have been continued concerns with the 
Kumeu/Huapai/Riverhead wastewater project 
due to transition issues. All other projects 
addressing long term needs within the district are 
on track. 

Hold local government elections in 
2010, if Rodney is not part of the 
Auckland Council 

Changes to governance of the Auckland region 
included Rodney becoming part of the Auckland 
Council from 1 November 2010. The council 
worked with the Auckland Transition Agency 
(ATA) who planned the local government 
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elections which were held 9 October 2010. 
Review ways to consult more 
effectively with the community, 
including possibilities provided by 
technology and the increasing role of 
the internet in peoples’ lives 

The e-panel was well established at Rodney 
District Council. Surveys were circulated 
approximately every two months following its 
establishment in 2008/2009, covering a wide 
range of topics. Recent surveys covered 
Auckland governance issues, active recreation - 
which complemented a ward-based study - and 
an evaluation of road safety marketing 
messages. 
 
E-panel events undertaken in August 2010 as a 
way of saying thank you to community 
participants and further recruitment was 
undertaken through the Annual Residents’ 
Survey. 
 
The work of the web development group was 
wound down as IT were unable to support new 
development, but work to improve the council's 
engagement with the community using social 
media such as Twitter continued. Further work to 
update and promote the ”We asked, you said, we 
did” web page was undertaken. 

Develop a community outcome 
monitoring and reporting framework 

It was decided not to continue this work due to 
the impending amalgamation of the Auckland 
Council. The separation of Rodney District into 
two local boards means that community 
outcomes or community aspirations will be 
addressed differently.   
 
Local boards will provide a means by which 
communities can contribute to decision making at 
a local level, have local representation and 
provide input to region-wide strategies and plans. 
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How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of Service: 
 
We will ensure and facilitate democratic processes 
 
The 2009/10 year was relatively quiet in terms of council/committee workloads. Revision of the 
guidelines for agenda report writers was completed, and made available on the intranet for 
staff, including helpful electronic links.  
 
The Executive Manager participated in the preparation of council's position on ward boundaries 
and local boards for submission to the Local Government Commission and contributed to the 
ATA Governance workstream, attending meetings and providing feedback on a wide range of 
issues. Both the Executive Manager and Democracy Services Manager continued to contribute 
to development of processes for the Auckland council. 
 
Throughout the year processes ran smoothly, with the Democracy Services team providing 
effective support services to the elected members and organisation at large. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Number of complaints regarding 
Council democratic processes 
upheld by the Office of the 
Controller, Auditor General or 
Ombudsman 

No complaints upheld Achieved. No such 
complaints upheld 

Public satisfaction with the ability to 
make a difference in democratic 
processes 
(Baseline 2007/2008 43%) 

At least 45%* satisfaction 
achieved 
 
*measured annually 

44.2% (Not achieved) 
(44.1% 2008/09) 
 
Source: Annual Residents 
Survey 2010 

Level of Service: 
 
The Council will make decisions in a fair and transparent manner 
 
Care was taken to evaluate whether business was transacted in open or closed meetings in 
strict accordance with LGOIMA. Advice was given where required to councillors in relation to 
conflict of interest or bias and predetermination issues which may arise. 
 
During the year concerns were raised regarding aspects of the funding process which resulted 
in council re-hearing arts funding applications and subsequent satisfactory resolution. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Legal compliance in relation to 
Council and Committee meeting 
processes and procedures 
(Baseline 2007/2008 100%) 

100% compliance 
achieved 

Achieved. 100% 
compliance  
 
(100% in 2008/09) 

Percentage of Council and 
Committee agenda items dealt with 
whilst public excluded 
(Baseline 2007/2008 16%) 

Less than 18% 25% (Not achieved) 
Items were all assessed in 
terms of LGOIMA – the 
result reflects such things 
as number of appeals, 
prosecutions and property 
items dealt with during the 
year. 
(18% in 2008/09) 
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Level of Service: 
 
We will advocate on behalf of Rodney District and its communities through improving our 
partnering relationships with key stakeholders 
 
All staff continued to maintain existing relationships with external partners although no major 
new initiatives have been undertaken because of the impending amalgamation into the 
Auckland council. 
 
An ongoing contribution was made to the regional One Plan, representing Rodney on the 
Digital Auckland Working Party and to council's input on regional governance. This included 
council’s submission to the Local Government Commission on boundaries for wards and 
boards. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Demonstrated advocacy on behalf 
of communities and the district 
through improving our partnering 
relationships with key stakeholders 

Eight partnering 
agreements renewed 

Not achieved.  
 
Changing priorities as a 
result of the impending 
amalgamation of local 
authorities in the region 
mean that relationships 
with partners did not 
receive focused attention.   
 
The council continued to 
advocate for the interests of 
Rodney through 
participation in the ATA 
Local Boards project and 
participation in the regional 
One Plan project. 

Demonstrated progress towards 
achievement of community 
outcomes 

Interim report on progress 
as part of Annual Plan 

Not achieved. 
 
However, a report from a 
key partner, Harbour Sport 
on progress towards 
agreed objectives (which 
contribute towards 
achieving community 
outcomes) showed that the 
relationship was successful 
in delivering outcomes. 
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Level of Service: 
 
We will maintain a robust and transparent process for infrastructure, maintenance  and capital 
works contracts 
 
Tendering documentation has been reviewed to ensure that legislative requirements are met. A 
Tendering Process workshop was held with councillors. Relevant sections of the Corporate 
Manual have been reviewed. 
 
All contract documents were reviewed and the tendering process is in line with legislative 
requirements. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Tendering processes compliance 
with legal requirements 
(New measure; baseline to be 
established) 

100% compliance with 
tendering requirements 

Achieved.  100%.  (All 
complying) 

Standard procurement 
documentation is reviewed and 
updated with compliance of Acts 
and law changes  

All standards reviewed 
and updated  

Not achieved. 
 
During the year the 
Electronic Tender 
Summary and the Project 
Delivery Guidelines were 
updated. Also several 
minor template changes 
were made. 
 
Only those standards and 
templates requiring 
changes were updated. 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
There are no significant negative impacts on the community resulting from this activity which 
focused on ensuring the Council operates effectively and contributes to the wellbeing of the 
community. 
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Activity: Iwi relationships 

 
The council acknowledged tangata whenua and the iwi authorities which represent them. 
Council also acknowledged that council jurisdiction and responsibilities fell within ancestral 
and traditional tribal territories of iwi Maori. 

The council engaged with iwi authorities and was an active participant in, and party to three 
memoranda of understanding (MoU) with Ngati Whatua Nga Rima o Kaipara (July 2003), Te 
Uri o Hau (also Ngati Whatua, July 2004) and Ngati Manuhiri (a hapu of Ngati Wai, 
September 2007). The council also engaged with other representative iwi authorities and 
individuals. This engagement and the joint annual review of the effectiveness of consultation 
and engagement through the MoUs were the primary means that the council used to foster 
the development of Maori capacity to contribute to the decision-making processes of the 
council. The council also retained a Local Governance Statement (February 2008) which 
acknowledged and provided opportunities for Maori to contribute to the council’s decision-
making processes. 
 
A range of engagement mechanisms were used including hui, face to face contact and written 
and oral communication, with every endeavour made to work within mutually agreed 
processes. Ngati Whatua Nga Rima o Kaipara and Rodney District councillors, for example, 
held jointly supported monthly Taumata (meeting). Other formal governance level hui were 
held with mana whenua in support of the day to day liaison and engagement between the 
council and the respective iwi authorities and their representatives. 
 
The council endeavoured to ensure that the relationships it had in place were developed and 
supported and that statutory requirements were met and that the relationships were well 
founded, supported and mutually beneficial.  
 
Why the council did it 
 
The council sought to ensure that processes and outcomes of interest to Maori were mutually 
beneficial, acknowledged mana whenua and were of enduring benefit to the Rodney 
community and the environment. Working together in partnership with iwi authorities is 
considered to be best practice environmental management and acknowledges iwi Maori and 
tribal tikanga (cultural practice). 
 
The council in its exercise of its functions, duties and powers considers its legal requirements, 
and in particular the Resource Management Act (RMA) 1991 and the Local Government Act 
(LGA) 2002. In relation to lands and waters the council must “take into account the 
relationship of Maori and their culture and traditions with their ancestral land, water, sites, 
waahi tapu, valued flora and fauna, and other taonga.” (s 93 LGA). Also, the relationship of 
Maori and their culture and traditions with their ancestral lands, water, sites, waahi tapu, and 
other taonga is a matter of national importance (s6(e) RMA). The council must take into 
account the principles of the Treaty of Waitangi (Te Tiriti o Waitangi) (s4 LGA, s8 RMA) and 
have particular regard to kaitiakitanga (the exercise of guardianship by tangata whenua) 
amongst other key legislative requirements. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement  

Joint annual review of the effectiveness of 
memoranda of understanding with Ngati 
Whatua Nga Rima o Kaipara, Te Uri o Hau 
and Ngati Manuhiri 

Reviews have been conducted with all MoU 
holders. 

Active consideration of ways the Council 
can foster the development of Maori 
capacity to contribute to decision-making 
processes 

Council continued to foster the development 
of Maori/mana whenua capacity to 
contribute to the decision making process 
via continued consultation and Taumata. 
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How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service: 
 
We will undertake consultation on matters of particular interest to iwi authorities 
 
We have continued consultation on matters of particular interest to iwi authorities including 
Pou Kaitiaki o Orewa, and seabed foreshore work. 
 

Measure 16 month target for 
final report (1 July 
2009 to 31 October 

2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Two governance level 
hui completed with Te 
Uri o Hau and with 
Ngati Manuhiri 

Achieved.  
Iwi Liaison and other staff 
have continued to meet with 
Ngati Manuhiri and Te Uri O 
Hau to conduct consultation 
and advance specific 
projects. Contact and 
correspondence is 
maintained with Te Kawerau 
a Maki and Ngati Paoa 
Whanau Trust. 

Regular governance level 
hui/taumata held with Ngati Whatua 
Nga Rima o Kaipara, Te Uri o Hau 
Settlement Trust, Ngati Manuhiri 
(Ngati Wai) and liaison with other 
iwi authorities as may be required 
including Te Kawerau a Maki and 
Ngati Paoa Whanau Trust 

Monthly Taumata held 
with Ngati Whatua Nga 
Rima o Kaipara 

Achieved. 
Governance level hui have 
been held with Ngati Whatu 
Nga Rima o Kaipara via 
monthly Taumata hui at 
council. 

Level of service: 
 
We will continue to work with, and enhance, our relationship with Tangata Whenua 
 
This work continued, ensuring our relationship remained strong with all iwi. 
 

Measure 16 month target for 
final report (1 July 
2009 to 31 October 

2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Achievement of the objectives set 
out in MoUs 

Review and 
reconfirmation of 
MoUs and associated 
documents 

Achieved. 
Annual governance level hui 
with Ngati Manuhiri 
undertaken.  Meeting with Te 
Uri o Hau took place on 28 
September 2010 to the 
mutual satisfaction of all 
parties. 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
This activity contributes to the cultural and social wellbeing of the community and there are no 
significant negative impacts on the community resulting for it. 
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GROUP OF ACTIVITIES: DISTRICT AND ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Activities in this group 
 
Future planning   Urban and rural design 
Natural and coastal environment  District Plan 
Property holdings 
 
Overview 
 
District and Environmental Planning are essential tools for planning and shaping a 
sustainable future for Rodney District in line with Vision Rodney and Planning Rodney. The 
growth pressures on the district were managed through strategic and physical planning with 
the aim of ensuring the sustainable management of natural and physical resources. The 
community has been clear that the quality of Rodney’s overall environment (including the 
natural, human, social and economic elements) must be maintained and protected while the 
district grows and prospers. 
 
The council also worked with others in the region – the regional council, neighbouring 
councils, government agencies, tangata whenua - to deliver the best outcomes for the 
communities in Rodney. 
 
Contribution to community outcomes 
 
Outcome Outcome statement Contribution to outcomes 

made by this group of activities
Prosperous 
 

We will have a growing and resilient 
economy based on a wide variety of 
businesses that fit our character 

Vibrant 
 

We will have a range of recreational 
and cultural facilities and events 
across the district and we will 
encourage creativity and diversity 

Distinctive We will maintain and enhance the 
character of our townships and rural 
areas through excellent urban and 
rural planning and the intelligent 
management of growth 

Connected 
 

We will have the infrastructure and 
services needed for our residents, 
business and visitors 

Safe and 
healthy 
 

We will continue to have a sense of 
community and we will provide for the 
emotional and physical well-being of 
our people 

Clean and 
green 

We will continue to value, protect and 
enjoy the natural environment 

District and Environmental 
Planning supports all outcomes 
by ensuring that, through their 
preparation and regular review, 
the strategies, policies structure 
plans and other plans produced 
by the council enable integrated 
planning and  the future 
described in Vision Rodney to be 
achieved – in as much as that 
achievement is the role of council 
 
The quality of new developments 
and the maintenance of existing 
communities are strongly 
influenced by the promotion of 
and leadership in good urban and 
rural design 
 
The protection of the natural 
environment supports 
sustainability and enables the 
community to continue to enjoy 
their preferred lifestyle  
 
The Property Holdings activity 
helps to ensure there is land and 
other property available for the 
council’s contribution to the future 
of the district 
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Financial results 
 
District and Environmental Planning

Actual Plan Actual 
12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

0 $000 $000 

Property Holdings 11,828 10,115 8,956
Future Planning 2,812 4,064 3,440
Urban and Rural Design 52 82 15
Natural and Coastal Environment 433 819 783
District Plan 2,229 2,005 3,303

Total Operating Expenditure 17,354 17,085 16,497

Operating Revenue:
Revenue & user charges 970 478 570
Rental Income 2,682 3,345 4,154
Interest Income 0 262 3,708
Cash contributions 0 27 4
Targeted rates 4,114 175 173
General rates 580 10,831 7,927
Gain/(Loss) on sale 5,905 26,754 1,167
Other Gains 181 1,000 0
Loss on changes in investment property (1,676) 0 0

Total Operating Revenue 12,756 42,872 17,703

TOTAL OPERATING SURPLUS ( DEFICIT) (4,598) 25,787 1,206
Capital Expenditure

New capital works 335 290 403
Renewal capital works 46 81 168

Total Capital Expenditure 381 371 571

Other Funding Requirements
Loan repayments 2 1,366 6,291
Transfers to general & restricted reserves 0 43 227

Total Funding Requirement 383 1,780 7,089

Funds To Be Provided From:
Operating surplus (4,598) 25,787 1,206
Asset sales 0 0 0
Loans raised 311 1,383 0
Transfers from general & restricted reserves 105 0 0
Non cash expenses 46 1,283 2,615

Total Funds Provided (4,136) 28,453 3,821

FUNDING SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT) (4,519) 26,673 (3,268)

 
 
Additional expenditure was incurred as a higher volume of work was undertaken on the 
District Plan to try to finalise outstanding appeals.  
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Activity: Future planning  
 
The council developed strategies, policies and plans for shaping, directing and managing 
Rodney’s natural, physical, social, cultural, and economic environment in a way that achieved 
sustainable management of resources and enabled the outcomes in Vision Rodney and 
Planning Rodney to be achieved. It also provided input to the strategies, policies and plans of 
other agencies and councils involved in planning and environmental management, including 
Auckland Regional Council, NZTA, the Department of Conservation, the Historic Places Trust 
and neighbouring councils. Particular elements of this function include: 
 
 input into regional planning processes, policies and plans to ensure Rodney’s direction is 

compatible with them and recognised at the regional/national level 
 participation and input into climate change, hazard minimisation and other matters co-

ordinated at national level to ensure compatibility between national and local objectives 
 preparation of structure plans to provide a common vision of the future for identified areas 
 preparation of a Rural Strategy to provide a clear direction for the rural parts of the district 
 preparation of policies and plans (e.g., Coastal Compartment Plans) for ensuring the 

coastal and natural areas of the district are protected and managed sustainably 
 preparation of strategies, policies and plans for the provision and management of public 

open space, reserves, walkways, bridleways and other infrastructure associated with 
recreation and the use of Rodney’s natural environment 

 preparation of strategies in relation to cultural heritage, including the provision of financial 
incentives to ensure retention of the district’s cultural heritage buildings and sites 

 preparation and maintenance of general bylaws to ensure that the actions of some do not 
unreasonably impact on the quality of life of others in the district 

 research into and forecasting of growth in general, including population, dwellings, 
business growth etc., and maintaining an up-to-date view on the land available for 
development (based on land-use zoning) to inform policy development 

 researching the natural environment, e.g., trees, bush, water quality, in order to inform the 
strategies, policies and plans prepared 

 preparation of non-statutory guidelines for residential/business development, rural 
subdivision etc., to encourage and assist the general population to achieve better 
living/working environments 

 coordination of land-use and transportation planning so that they are consistent with 
Planning Rodney in order to ensure communities are liveable, acceptable, connected and 
sustainable 

 coordination and planning of infrastructure to ensure infrastructure is available when and 
where growth is expected to occur 

 planning for the acquisition of land and provision of infrastructure in a coordinated and 
timely manner. 

 
Why the council did it 
 
Rodney has one of the highest population growth rates in New Zealand. With high population 
growth come high rates of residential and commercial development. The Rodney community 
has made it clear over the years that it wants this growth managed so that the district does 
not lose those qualities that make life in Rodney so desirable. National legislation and 
regional policies also require appropriate management of land and resources.  
 
To allow growth to continue while maintaining the quality of life Rodney offers it is important to 
take a long-term view and plan for how much growth, what type of development and in which 
locations this should occur. This must be accompanied by well designed public spaces and 
facilities, quality natural and built environments, the protection of valuable natural features 
and agreed (with the community) rules and processes to guide development. 
 
These activities were therefore designed to balance the rights of those wanting to develop 
their land with the rights of their neighbours and the Rodney community in the present and 
future. 
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Key Project 
 

Achievement 

Continued involvement in relevant 
regional planning processes  

Work continued on resolving appeals under the 
LGAAA. Commercial appeals to the Regional 
Policy Statement (RPS) have been resolved 
pending one outstanding site specific appeal in 
North Shore, before the Environment Court can 
issue consent documents. Work continued on the 
rural and growth management appeals. ARC 
continued to  work on resolving matters relating to 
countryside living provisions by consent prior to 31 
October 2010.  It is anticipated this work will be 
continued by the Auckland Council. The Future 
Land Use Scenario work was put on hold pending 
the preparation of the Spatial Plan for the new 
Auckland Council. 

Research into growth trends 
including population, dwellings, 
business, land availability for various 
purposes and dissemination of 
information from the National 
Census (2011) 

Demographic trends were monitored and the 
growth model updated as required. The growth 
model did not change during the last quarter of 
2009/2010. 

Research on the state of the 
environment and the effectiveness of 
District Plan provisions 

Continued work on the Rural strategy with appeal 
evidence providing valuable data on the 
effectiveness of rural provisions of the District 
Plan. 

Completing structure plans for 
defined areas and reviewing existing 
structure plans as appropriate 

The Puhoi and Kaukapakapa structure plans were 
both adopted by council on 23 September 2010. 
The Matakana Plan Change was completed and 
council approved implementation of a pre-
consultation process commencing on 22 October 
2010.  It is anticpated this work will continue under 
Auckland Council. 

Prepare new policies and review 
existing strategies, policies and 
plans relating to public open space, 
walkways, cycleways, bridleways 
and the preparation of individual 
reserve management plans 

Wellsford War Memorial Park Reserve 
Management Plan (RMP), Point Wells Recreation 
Reserve RMP, Omeru Reserve RMP and Muriwai 
Village Green Plan have all been adopted. The 
draft RMP for Green Road Reserve was prepared 
for consideration by council. A submission was 
made on the ARC RMP for all regional parks. 
 
Work continued on the HBC Active Recreation 
Plan and on public open space guidelines.  

Completing the Rural Strategy and 
any approaches to providing for rural 
living opportunities; including 
updating the District Plan 

The Draft Rural Strategy was adopted by council 
for public notification 13 May 2010. Submissions 
closed 21 June, and hearings commenced 28 July 
with final adoption 16 September at the Strategy 
and Community Committee meeting. 

Review strategies in relation to 
cultural heritage including 
involvement in national and regional 
initiatives, e.g., Regional Policy 
Statements 

RDC continued to be involved in the Regional 
Cultural Heritage Forum. 
 
District Plan Variations - Helensville Town Centre 
Heritage, V144, and Waimauku, V134 have been 
notified. Both of these variations identified further 
heritage areas and sites and introduced 
protections for them. A Helensville Residential 
Heritage Area Variation was also prepared. 

Coordination of land-use and 
transportation planning by or 
through the creation of urban design 
plans and structure plans 

Project teams continued to work together to 
ensure integrated land use and transport in 
Silverdale, Kumeu/Huapai and Warkworth. This 
included liaison with NZTA on the SH16 upgrades 
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through Kumeu/Huapai and the proposed Route of 
National Significance (RoNS) from Puhoi to 
Wellsford. Coordination was also being ensured 
through the monthly Strategic Coordination Group 
meetings and the area based project teams.  It is 
anticpated that the projects teams of Auckland 
Council and Auckland Transport will continue to 
work together on this. 

Revision of general bylaws General bylaws reviewed over the past 16 months 
have included the Trade Waste bylaw which was 
confirmed in April 2010, an annual speed limit 
review and the Signs bylaw has been amended to 
align with the new Auckland reorganisation 
legislation. 

Involvement in central government 
initiatives such as the Review of the 
Resource Management Act, 
proposals for National Policy 
Statements and National 
Environmental Standards 

This year there have been no major proposals 
from government to consider. A request for 
comments on the draft National Environmental 
Standards (NES) for plantation forestry was 
responded to with officer comments within the 
timeframe requested. 

Dissemination of information and 
communication within the 
community on significant 
growth/development issues.  

The rural strategy process continued with 
preparation of a draft strategy and a series of open 
days at which information including rural 
development trends, population growth, and rates 
of subdivision was disseminated. The public were 
given the opportunity to comment on the draft 
strategy for a period of approximately one month 
from mid May to mid June 2010. 
 
Growth and development issues in Kaukapakapa, 
Orewa West and Puhoi were set out in the draft 
structure plans for the respective areas, and in the 
various supporting documents.  The public were 
given the opportunity to make submissions on the 
draft plans, and staff attended meetings and 
responded to customer enquiries on the various 
plans while they were open for submissions. 
 
A report and stocktake of the HBC Development 
Strategy was prepared to clearly set out progress 
towards achieving the direction set in the strategy.  
This put the individual structure plans for parts of 
the HBC e.g., Silverdale North, Orewa West, in 
context. 
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How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will have appropriate policies, strategies and plans to address the sustainable use of 
our natural and physical environment including their social, economic, aesthetic and cultural 
elements 
 
Planning Rodney and the Rural Strategy are in place to guide all growth and sustainable 
development. Structure plans are in place for all major towns. In addition, the majority of 
plan changes to implement the structure plans will also be in place this financial year. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Demonstrated alignment 
between District Plan and 
other future planning policies 
and strategies with Vision 
Rodney and Planning 
Rodney 

Define and implement key 
changes to District Plan to 
ensure alignment, 
particularly in rural areas 

Alignment of the District Plan 
to Planning Rodney occurred 
via the process of appeals to 
the Rural chapter of the plan. 
Wherever possible the 
opportunity was taken to 
align the District Plan with 
the outcomes set out in 
Planning Rodney. 
The West Coast Variation 
progressed with a hearing of 
submissions. Decision 
making was delayed due to 
the need to get Chapter 7 
Rural - of the Proposed 
District Plan (PDP) 2000 
operative. 

Completion of Rural Strategy Rural Strategy completed in 
2010 
 

The draft Rural Strategy was 
adopted by council for public 
notification in May 2010. 
Submissions closed 21 June 
2010 and hearings were 
held in July 2010. The Rural 
Strategy was adopted by the 
Strategy and Community 
Committee on 16 September 
2010.  

Preparation of structure 
plans for prioritised and 
nominated 
villages/towns/urban areas  

Complete Orewa West 
Structure Plan Review.   
 
Complete the Kaukapakapa 
and Silverdale West 
Structure Plans.   
 
Complete the Waitoki 
Community Vision 

The Orewa West Structure 
Plan review was completed 
and consultation was 
undertaken in parallel to the 
plan change process. 
 
The Kaukapakapa draft 
Structure Plan was adopted 
by council for public 
notification 27 May 2010, and 
submissions closed 19 July 
2010. 
 
Work on the Silverdale West 
Structure Plan continued at a 
slower pace pending a 
decision regarding Penlink. 
 
A Vision for Waitoki was 
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adopted 22 October 09 and a 
Vision for Kawau was also 
completed and approved by 
council. 

Continue Puhoi Structure 
Plan  

The draft Puhoi Structure 
Plan was adopted for public 
notification 8 July 2010, and 
submissions closed 19 
August 2010.  The Puhoi 
Structure Plan was adopted 
by council in September 
2010. 
 

Level of Service 
 
We will advocate to ensure Rodney's development approach is considered in regional 
development planning 
 
The completion of Rodney's strategic planning framework (Planning Rodney, Rural Strategy 
and structure plans) provides important input to regional spatial planning for the Auckland 
Council. Rodney continued to be involved with the Regional Policy Steering Group (RPSG) 
and Auckland Transition Authority (ATA). Rodney was also represented on the newly 
formed Spatial Planning team and on a number of regional environmental teams (Kaipara, 
Mahurangi). 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Participation and contribution 
to regional planning 
processes and documents 

Acceptance of RDC input 
into Regional Policy 
Statement (RPS), Regional 
Land Transport Strategy 
(RLTS) and One Plan 

The key area of work was on 
developing land use and 
transport future strategic 
options which would assist 
with the review of the RPS 
and RLTS. Work continued 
on refining centres and 
corridors.  A draft document 
was prepared however this 
work was overtaken by the 
transition process. The 
release of the draft RPS due 
in March/April 2009 was 
delayed.   
 
All of this work contributed to 
the preparation of the new 
Spatial Plan. 

Formal submissions made on 
RMA, policies and plans of 
other agencies and local 
authorities 

RDC submissions made on 
regional policy are 
accepted / adopted by the 
originating policy maker 

A formal submission was 
made on the review of the 
Kaipara District Plan in 
relation to subdivision 
standards and other cross 
boundary issues.  Hearings 
were held but decisions had 
not been issued at the time 
of writing this report. 
 
Officer comments were 
provided as preliminary input 
to MfE on their Draft National 
Environmental Standard 
(NES) on Plantation Forestry.  
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The Ministry notified their 
proposed standard on 4 
September 2010 with 
submissions closing on 18 
October 2010.  Officer 
comments were made. 
 
All other plan changes have 
been checked and no other 
submissions were necessary. 

Level of Service 
 
We will communicate with communities on environmental matters 
 
Corporate community engagement processes have been developed in addition to press 
releases and the website which provide information on general environmental/growth 
issues.  The RDC website provided an up-to-date resource on growth, economic and 
planning issues in Rodney. The planning team also communicated with local communities 
on specific issues and support local meetings, e.g., South Kaipara Forum, and the 
Warkworth Community Liaison Group.  Development of the Kumeu/Huapai area has a 
specific section on the RDC website for all related council matters.  
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
We will make information on 
growth available to our 
communities 
 

Demonstrated accessibility 
of relevant data and 
information to the public 

New population projections 
are available on the RDC 
website and are provided to 
environment court hearings 
on the District Plan.  Further 
monitoring information on 
rural parts of the district is 
made available through the 
Rural Strategy 
documentation (on the 
website and hardcopy).  A 
monitoring report in the form 
of an 'environmental 
monitoring and stocktake 
evaluation' has been adopted 
and is also available.  
Individual demographic 
studies are also prepared as 
part of structure plans and 
are made available as part of 
those processes. 
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Level of Service 
 
We will use our influence and resources to create opportunities or steer desired outcomes 
through strategic interventions and targeted planning and implementation projects 
 
The team worked with the Manager Economic Development and the Rodney Economic 
Development Trust (REDT) in the early part of the 2009/2010 year to target employment 
opportunities in the district. Work progressed in most of the major centres to ensure that 
district planning delivered opportunities for growth. 
 
Work across the organisation and externally continued to deliver projects (particularly 
Kumeu/Huapai/Riverhead wastewater; Helensville town centre, Muriwai surf club; Wellsford 
employment land; Warkworth cement works and town centre upgrades; Orewa town centre 
and Silverdale North). 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Character assessments of 
at least one urban area 
undertaken. 
 

Character assessments were 
undertaken of Wellsford in 
October 2009, and 
Warkworth in June 2010. 

Projects initiated and / or 
implemented as a direct 
result of planning 
negotiations for improved 
project outcomes MoU’s entered into in 

development of Silverdale 
North, Orewa West, 
Silverdale West and HBC 
Gateway 

Not achieved. 
 
A draft agreement for 
Silverdale North, DA 11, was 
agreed to by both RDC and 
WFH Properties and was 
finalised 25 October 2010. 

Level of Service 
 
We will plan for open space, community facilities and amenities 
 
At a high level the Open Space Strategy is complete. This will be implemented through 
more detailed action plans. The first of these (the Hibiscus Coast Recreation Strategy) is 
almost complete with the aim of reporting to council by September 2010.
 
All reserve management plans started last year have been completed and adopted by 
council. 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Number of existing reserve 
management plans reviewed 
to meet specific needs / 
address issues 

Five reserve management 
plan (RMP) reviews 
completed  

Not achieved. 
 
Wellsford War Memorial Park 
RMP adopted; Point Wells 
Recreation Reserve RMP 
adopted; Omeru Reserve 
RMP adopted; Muriwai 
Village Green plan adopted.  
A draft RMP for Green Road 
reserve was prepared for 
consideration by council; a 
submission was made on the 
ARC RMP for all regional 
parks. 
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Potential for negative impacts 
 
By its very nature, future planning needs to balance the desires of some citizens with the 
desires of the wider community. This often takes the form of influencing or controlling 
development activity so that the development of a property does not unreasonably detract 
from the quality of life of their neighbours or the wider community. In other cases development 
can impose unacceptable costs on community facilities and infrastructure, or on the 
environment. It is, therefore, inevitable that some parties will have to accept an outcome that 
is not ideal for them. 
 
Growth, if not carefully managed, can have significant negative effects on the district’s 
community, environment, economy and cultural well-being. The aim is to manage growth and 
its impacts. 
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Activity: Urban and rural design 
 
The council worked to influence the quality of new development and improve the character of 
existing communities by promoting good urban and rural design. This was achieved through 
the application of design principles to future planning, district plan policy, publication of design 
guidance, provision of design advice to those intending to develop, and promotion of good 
urban and rural design through the council’s own planning practices. 
 
At a local level, these principles are applied through the preparation of structure plans for 
many of the district’s towns and through input to resource consents. Active local participation 
is an essential component in the preparation of structure plans. 
 
Why the council did it 
 
Communities told the council that they seek places of character and quality that function well. 
Good design can contribute to making places better for people, creating value for 
communities, individuals, the economy and the environment. The council had a role to play in 
the promotion of good urban and rural design to create a high quality environment for the 
people of Rodney. 
 
The Local Government Act 2002 and the Resource Management Act contain principles that 
refer to amenity values of urban and rural environments. The council was a signatory to New 
Zealand’s Urban Design Protocol. This seeks to apply basic design principles to the urban 
and rural environment. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement  

Work with developers to apply the 
principles in the Development Design 
Guide 

Work continued with developers district wide 
to provide input at pre-application meetings 
and during the resource consent process to 
support quality land use and development 
outcomes (both commercial and residential). 

Apply urban design principles as part of 
the assessment of resource consents 
 

Ongoing urban design advice was provided 
on resource consent applications. 

Prepare rural design guidance for 
various forms of rural living 
opportunities following completion of 
the Rural Strategy 
 

The draft Rural Strategy was considered by 
council at the end of July 2010. Actions 
flowing from this strategy are now to be 
implemented by the Auckland Council. 

Report on activities within the Urban 
Design Action Plan 

The following activities have implemented the 
objectives of the Urban Design Action Plan:  
 Urban design input was provided on plans 

for council’s key growth areas including 
Silverdale, Warkworth, and 
Kumeu/Huapai.   

 Design guidelines were prepared for 
historic village and surrounding rural 
landscape as part of the Puhoi Structure 
Plan. 

 Three sets of design guidelines were 
prepared for the residential, business and 
service industry zones as part of a 
variation to the district plan to implement 
the Matakana Structure Plan. 

 A practice note was prepared for resource 
consent planning to provide siting and 
design guidance in the landscape 
protection zones.  

 Urban design input was provided into 
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council’s Open Space and Hibiscus Coast 
Recreational Strategy to ensure walking 
and cycling networks are planned for 
urban areas. 

 Urban design input was provided on all 
major applications for resource consent 
and to all requests for private plan 
changes.  

 Training sessions were provided to 
consent planners and policy staff to 
improve their appreciation and 
understanding of the implications of their 
decisions on quality urban design 
outcomes. 

 Urban design principles were advocated 
and promoted with intending applicants for 
resource consents and at various urban 
design network groups, forums, workshops 
and conferences. 

Monitor the effectiveness of urban and 
rural design policies 

The process of preparing the council’s Rural 
Strategy highlighted the fact that design of 
buildings/structures in rural areas is an issue 
for the community with many submissions 
addressing this. 
 
Proposed Variation 140 has dealt with design 
of small retail centres within the district and in 
particular limiting the scale of residential and 
commercial development in those smaller 
retail centres, to be in keeping with 
surrounding residential areas.  A hearing of 
submissions to the variation was held in early 
October 2010. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will formulate policies and plans to influence future development in the district 
 
Urban design guidelines were prepared for the Puhoi Structure Plan and Matakana plan 
change. Both of these have introduced an innovative approach to influencing the future built 
form of these townships. Urban design guidelines were prepared for Huapai South and the 
Hibiscus Coast Strategy in preparation for hand-over to Auckland Council. 
 

Measure 16 month target for 
final report (1 July 
2009 to 31 October 

2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to31 

October 2010) 

Urban design input into 
District Plan policy and 
structure plans 

Demonstrated urban 
design input into District 
Plan policy and plans 

Urban design input provided 
for Kumeu/Huapai, 
Kaukapakapa, Puhoi and 
Matakana structure plans. 

Report on activities within the 
Urban Design Action Plan 

Review and update the 
Urban Design Action 
Plan  

The action plan was updated 
August 2009. 
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Level of service 
 
We will advocate and promote appropriate design principles for the district 
 
Ongoing advice and support was provided to policy and consent staff to advocate and 
promote urban design principles. In particular, some mentoring and support was provided to 
individuals preparing plan changes, structure plans and comments on resource consent 
applications. 
 

Measure 16 month target for 
final report (1 July 
2009 to 31 October 

2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to31 

October 2010) 

Urban design advice on 
consent applications 

Urban design guide 
principles incorporated 
into Council planning 
resource consent 
procedures 

Provision of urban design 
comments on resource 
consent applications was 
undertaken in-house. Seven 
were completed in December 
2009. 
 
More recently, a number of 
pre-application meetings were 
held (e.g., Bunnings 
Silverdale, Pak n Save 
Silverdale, Mitre 10 
Warkworth) that should result 
in ongoing advice and input 
into consent applications. 

Promotional materials, 
workshops or seminars given 
to encourage good design 
principles in the district 

Workshop the urban 
design guide and 
provision of supporting 
materials with consent 
planners and selected 
professionals 

A two stage urban design 
training workshop was 
organised with the stage one 
workshop being undertaken in 
December 2009, and the stage 
two workshop undertaken in 
February 2010.  
 
A presentation on a 
walking/cycling strategy for 
Orewa was given to staff by 
Rodney Tolley based on the 
“Walk 21” conference 
principles. 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
Where urban and rural design is enforced through planning rules and processes, it is done to 
protect or enhance the quality of life available in the district.  This may, from time to time, lead 
to restrictions on or modifications to development plans.  Overall, this activity supports the 
environmental and social wellbeing of the community. 
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Activity: Natural and coastal environment 
 
The council developed, contributed to and implemented policies and plans to manage the 
environment, and participated in relevant natural and regional initiatives such as the Hauraki 
Gulf Forum. It took a sustainable approach to its own activities and was an active advocate 
for the environment and the community to promote sustainable development and look after 
the environment. 
 
The council undertook monitoring and is a custodian and advocate for the natural and coastal 
ecosystem, habitats and biodiversity. It sought to protect and enhance beaches and the 
coast, waterways, lakes and wetlands, native trees and bush, and native plant and animal 
populations and communities. 
 
The council also made financial incentives available to protect natural features, including 
cultural heritage. 
 
Why the council did it 
 
Rodney has a natural and coastal environment that has few rivals. Research shows that the 
quality of the local environment is among the top three reasons why people choose to live 
where they do or move to a new location. The district’s environment is therefore its most 
important asset. Effective environmental management and monitoring ensures that Rodney’s 
highly valued natural and coastal resources are sustainable, and the quality of our natural 
heritage is retained or enhanced. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement  

Council will seek to ensure that significant 
proposals in Rodney, with the potential to 
affect the natural and coastal values, fully 
consider the public interests in those 
resources and their sustainable 
management 

No significant proposals such as restricted 
coastal activities have arisen in the past 16 
months which required council advocacy or 
response. 

Council advocacy and participation will 
extend to representing Rodney community 
interests associated with the potential for 
outdoor field trialling or release of 
genetically modified organisms in the 
district 

All meetings of the Inter-Council Working 
Party on Genetic Engineering (WP) were 
attended and in February 2010 council 
ratified WP recommendations to address 
community risk and liability issues 
associated with field-trialling or release of 
genetically modified organisms (GMO).  
Those issues remain unaddressed and the 
WP has completed further analysis of the 
option of pursuing a regulatory response. 
 
A Colmar Brunton survey of community 
views on the GMO issue was completed 
with the results supporting council’s 
precautionary approach.  A large body of 
work supporting a regulatory response will 
pass to the Auckland Council for 
consideration. 

Council will take an active role in key 
projects and processes such as integrated 
Kaipara Harbour management, the Hauraki 
Gulf Forum and estuarine and catchment 
management plans, such as for the 
Mahurangi Harbour 

All relevant meetings were attended and an 
active role taken including the Integrated 
Kaipara Harbour Management Group, the 
Hauraki Gulf Forum, Mahurangi Action 
Plan (MAP), and the ARC led Whangateau 
Studies.  
 
The MAP Strategic Plan for the catchment 
2010 – 2030 was endorsed by council. 

Council will recognise the importance of Monitoring 37 of 42 privately covenanted 
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ecological linkages and habitat values 
through active monitoring of more than 
3,600 established privately covenanted 
bush-lots, and through participation in, and 
support for, eco-corridors such as North 
West Wildlink (Waitakere to Tiritiri Matangi 
Island 

bushlot properties in the Puhoi catchment 
was undertaken and follow up as required 
was implemented. An update and accuracy 
review of the entire bushlot database has 
been completed. 

Opportunities will be pursued to enhance 
and mediate the interface between key 
roading infrastructure and the environment 
through landscape design 
 

Animation for Concept Entry Rodney has 
been completed and is now seen as a 
legacy project and ATA informed. 
 

Natural heritage values will continue to be 
supported through the Council’s 
successful Natural Heritage Fund and the 
Council will also work with other heritage 
agencies with a view to a strategic and 
integrated approach to identify and protect 
or enhance natural heritage values in the 
district 

The Natural Heritage Fund successfully 
committed 100% of its annual budget 
allocation for the 2009/10 financial year, its 
fourth successful year since its 
establishment in 2006. The purpose of the 
Natural Heritage Fund is to assist and 
actively encourage the Rodney District 
community to manage, protect and 
enhance biodiversity, indigenous 
vegetation and wildlife habitats. 23 projects 
were successfully implemented with 
$70,500 in funding grants made by the 
Natural Heritage Fund. These grants 
leveraged $145,350 from other funding 
partners and community commitment of 
$181,170 towards a total estimated project 
value of $397,020. 

Council must respond to key national 
policy initiatives and in particular the New 
Zealand Coastal Policy Statement. Council 
must give effect to its provisions through 
its planning documents 

Release of the New Zealand Coastal Policy 
Statement by government has been 
substantially delayed and will be a matter 
for the new council.   
 
Council lodged submissions on the 
proposed Environmental Standard for 
Assessing and Managing Contaminants in 
Soil.   
 
Council continued to monitor marine 
aquaculture legislative reforms.  The 
council also lodged a submission on the 
Foreshore and Seabed reform proposals. 

The Council acknowledges the 
implications of climate change and the 
need to actively undertake climate change 
adaptation and mitigation programmes 
 

Council activity has focused on its 
contribution to the Regional Response to 
Climate Change in collaboration with other 
councils in the Auckland Region. 

The Council will ensure it has a sound 
monitoring programme in place to assess 
the effectiveness of its environmental 
policies and plans, and to identify and 
undertake review requirements 

An Environmental Monitoring Stocktake 
and Evaluation was completed in January 
2010. This referred to all council 
environmental monitoring and made 
prioritised recommendations to address 
gaps. It has been referred to the new 
council as a legacy document. 

Monitored data will be used to prepare, on 
a periodic basis, a state of the environment 
report 

Due to transition, no State of the 
Environment report (SoE) was prepared.  
This is a matter for the new Auckland 
Council. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
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Level of service 
 
We will have appropriate policies, strategies and plans to address natural and coastal 
environmental issues, including biodiversity and sustainability 
 
Council has actively contributed to the Integrated Kaipara Harbour Management Group and 
the Mahurangi Action Plan.  It has also addressed the issue of bushlot management through 
implementing a monitoring programme.  Council has focused on sustainability initiatives at a 
corporate level and has reduced the cost of energy use associated with greenhouse gas 
emissions. 
 

Measure 16 month target for 
final report (1 July 
2009 to 31 October 

2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Mahurangi Integrated 
Catchment Plan 
completed with the 
Auckland Regional 
Council and community 

The Mahurangi Action Plan 
‘Strategic Plan for the 
Catchment 2010-2030’ was 
a community and iwi 
initiative led by the ARC 
and contributed to by the 
council.  The council 
endorsed the plan in 
September 2010. 

Development and implementation 
of key environmental plans and 
policies 

Kaipara Harbour 
integrated management 
approach supported 
through the Integrated 
Kaipara Harbour 
Management Group 

During the year, we 
supported and contributed 
to: 
 enable a gap analysis to 

be completed; 
 a Web portal 

www.kaiparaharbour.net.
nz;  

 Strategic Action Plan; 
 information sharing; 
 promotion of interagency 

communication.   
 
More specifically, RDC 
actively supported the 
IKHMG through officer 
involvement and funding, 
acknowledged the 
importance of the Kaipara 
Harbour, and its 
Memoranda of 
Understanding with Te Uri o 
Hau and Ngati Whatua Nga 
Rima o Kaipara.  The Ngati 
Whatua Taumata has 
received regular updates on 
progress of the IKHMG and 
provided feedback and 
guidance as required. A 
report was prepared for the 
Strategy and Community 
Committee, 18 February 
2010. 
 
A highly successful 
governance hui was held on 
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1 July 2010 and a 
community hui was held on 
2 October 2010.  

Progress against Communities for 
Climate Protection - NZ 
programme  and monitoring 
schedule 

Sustainable Future 
Rodney Action Plan 
complete (Milestone 3) 

The CCP – NZ programme 
has been disestablished 
nationally. 
 
Instead, a new Corporate 
Responsibility Action Team 
“CREATE” was established 
to review actions and 
propose deliverables..  
 
The focus of achievement 
was on energy use and cost 
savings and the Regional 
Response to the Climate 
Change Programme. 

CCP™Milestones awarded Milestones 2 (goals) and 
3 (action plan as above) 
awarded 

N/A 
This programme has been 
disestablished nationally. 

Level of service 
 
We will use our influence and resources to create opportunities or seek desired outcomes 
through strategic interventions and advocacy 
 
We have provided ongoing active involvement in projects such as the Kaipara Harbour Sand 
Extraction Monitoring Group and provided submissions on a range of key issues of interest 
to the council and the Rodney community. 
 

Measure 16 month target for 
final report (1 July 
2009 to 31 October 

2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

All priority advocacy 
submissions lodged  

Submissions lodged on the 
ARC Strategic Parks Plan, 
the Soil Contaminants NES, 
and the Foreshore and 
Seabed reform proposals. 
 

Strategic initiatives and projects 
initiated and / or implemented 

Greater than 50% of 
submitted requests 
granted 

Unable to define result but 
confident that greater than 
50% of submitted requests 
have been granted. 
 

Advocacy and promotion 
regarding environmental and 
sustainability matters 

Key community 
awareness programmes 
initiated 

This has covered a number 
of areas: 
A substantial submission on 
the Energy and Climate 
Regional Response was 
lodged; a sandmining 
royalty request was 
declined; RDC contributed 
to the regional response to 
climate change; the NES 
Soil Contamination 
response was investigated; 
Earth Hour was delivered.  
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A submission was made on 
the Foreshore and Seabed 
Discussion Document, and 
a watching brief on the New 
Zealand Coastal Policy 
Statement.   
 
Also, the Kaipara Harbour 
Sand Extraction Monitoring 
Group and Aquaculture 
Steering Group meetings 
were attended. 

Level of service 
 
We will know, recognise and retain or enhance the special natural and coastal characteristics 
that define Rodney and its quality of life 
 
Full allocation of the Natural Heritage Fund was achieved for the third successive year.    A 
comprehensive Environmental Monitoring Stocktake and Evaluation was completed. 
 

Measure 16 month target for 
final report (1 July 
2009 to 31 October 

2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

  
Progress in accordance with 
project workplans and monitoring 
schedules 

Monitoring programme 
developed and issued 

The Environmental 
Monitoring Stocktake and 
Evaluation was completed 
in January 2010 including 
recommendations to 
address monitoring gaps.  
 

State of the Environment 
report completed 

Due to the transition it was 
inappropriate to initiate 
State of Environment 
reporting.  The State of the 
Environment report is a 
matter for the Auckland 
Council to progress. 
 

State of the Environment report 

Integrated heritage 
mapping completed 

Not achieved. 
As DoC did not complete 
their mapping RDC were 
unable to complete the 
work anticipated.  However, 
liaison with ARC and DoC 
has ensured that relevant 
heritage mapping is 
available to consent 
planners. 
Auckland Council will 
continue this work, enabling 
a reference source for 
planners through the 
Geographical Information 
System (GIS). 
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Potential for negative impacts 
 
Where protection or enhancement of the natural and coastal environment, and the protection 
of community wellbeing, requires formal rules and restrictions on development, or 
requirements to lessen the impact of development for the community and future generations, 
it inevitably places costs or restrictions on the developer. This is only done after consultation 
and any such decision is made in a public manner where those affected can put forward their 
views. 
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Activity: District plan 
 
The district plan was a key tool used by the council to ensure growth and development are 
sustainable and that the quality of life and the natural and built environment are protected for 
present and future generations. The council was required by the Resource Management Act 
to have a district plan. 
 
The district plan was primarily a regulatory tool setting out objectives and rules which 
governed how and where different land-uses and subdivision could occur, and the standards 
which both must meet. The district plan was developed in consultation with the community 
and sets out how the council will manage the effects of land-use and development, including 
subdivision, in order to achieve the sustainable management of natural and physical 
resources. Monitoring and updating the district plan to respond to changing circumstances 
was a key part of this activity. 
 
It is intended that the district plan will put into effect the principles and proposals in Vision 
Rodney and Planning Rodney. 
 
Why the council did it 
 
Rodney has one of the highest population growth rates in New Zealand. With high population 
growth come high rates of residential and commercial development. The Rodney community 
has made it clear over the years that its wants this growth managed so that the district does 
not lose those qualities that make life in Rodney so desirable. The district plan is the council’s 
most important tool in shaping the district so that development and land-use take a form 
acceptable to the community. 
 

Key Projects 
 

Achievement  

Making the Proposed District Plan 2000 
completely operative 

Since January 2009, parts of the Proposed 
District Plan 2000 have been progressively 
approved and made operative.  
 
At the final Council meeting on 30 
September 2010, additional sections of the 
proposed plan were made operative. 
 
Chapter 7 Rural (sections 7.14, 7.15 and 
7.16 relating to rural subdivision) was made 
operative as outstanding appeals relating to 
final sections of Chapter 7 had been 
resolved.  
 
Making the sections (above) of the 
proposed plan operative was possible due 
to the Resource Management Act allowing 
for parts of chapters to be made operative.   
 
Continuing to make more sections operative 
gives much greater clarity to planners, 
decision makers and the public when 
assessing the provisions of the plan(s) 
against a resource consent or plan change.  
 
In future, as the outstanding appeals are 
resolved, the remaining chapters of the 
Proposed District Plan 2000 can be made 
operative to ultimately result in the District 
Plan 2000 fully replacing the 1993 District 
Plan. 

Introducing plan changes to enable more A variation to implement the HBC Gateway 
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business zoned land in Rodney, and in 
particular to implement the Silverdale 
West Structure Plan and the Hibiscus 
Coast Gateway Plan, the Warkworth 
Structure Plan, the Wellsford Structure 
Plan/Urban Design Plan and urban design 
plans for Kumeu-Huapai 

plan was notified 24 June 2010. A variation 
to enable minor extension (7ha) to 
Silverdale industrial area was notified 24 
June 2010. Progress on Silverdale West 
Structure Plan continued, in particular with 
more traffic modelling, and further work on 
stormwater. Work on business plan changes 
in Warkworth continued with the business 
park zone progressed but then put on hold 
following a request from landowner (AMP). 
 
A private plan change request was received 
and processed in relation to the Perrendale 
development at Warkworth, seeking change 
to allow part of the land previously set aside 
for bulk retail to be used for light industrial 
activity. A report was prepared for Wellsford 
industrial land highlighting the limited 
demand for such land. Work on district plan 
provisions for the Huapai south area 
continued including the drafting of rules and 
design guidelines once the integrated traffic 
assessment for the area had been finalised 
in May 2010. 

Introducing plan changes to implement 
structure plans including the various 
Silverdale Structure Plans, Kumeu-
Huapai-Waimauku Structure Plan, 
Kumeu-Huapai Central Area Plan, 
Waimauku Structure Plan, the Riverhead 
Structure Plan, Matakana/Pt Wells/Omaha 
Flats Structure Plan the Puhoi Structure 
Plan, the revised Orewa West Structure 
Plan, the Orewa East Structure Plan,  and 
other plans completed/reviewed during 
the LTCCP period 

MUL shift requests were lodged for HBC 
Gateway at Silverdale and Silverdale 
Industrial Extension (7ha). Variations were 
publicly notified 24 June 2010. A variation to 
implement Waimauku Structure Plan was 
adopted by council in June 2010 and was to 
be notified on 1 July 2010. Variation 127 
Huapai north continued through the 
submission process and a hearing report 
was prepared. The hearing is to be held 
once integrated catchment management 
plan issues have been dealt with. A 
variation to implement the Orewa West 
Structure Plan was notified 24 June 2010. 
Variation 101 which implements the Orewa 
East Structure Plan continued with 
Environment Court hearing of appeals. 
Variation 63 which implements the Point 
Wells Sustainable Development Plan 
continued with the hearing process 
completed. Chapter 7 of the proposed 
district plan has been made operative and a 
decision was issued on Variation 63. 

Introducing plan changes to give effect to 
any significant strategies, policies and 
plans in relation to public open space, 
cultural heritage and the natural and 
physical environment 
 

The two plans being worked on - the HBC 
Active Recreation Plan and Open Space 
guidelines - are on track with the first of 
these (HBC Active Recreation Plan) 
adopted 22 September 2010.  Completion of 
the Open Space guidelines and adoption 
will be a matter for Auckland Council. 
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Introducing plan changes to reflect 
changes in legislation, including 
amendments resulting from changes to 
the Resource Management Act 
 

Work on the tree schedule to reflect RMA 
changes continued, with public nominations 
of trees and arborists recommendations 
sought and provided. The next stage of 
checking and evaluating all nominations has 
not started given the number and likely cost. 
A revised process involving a preliminary 
assessment is being considered. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will review the district plan in a timely manner and keep it current 
 
All appeals relating to the Rural Chapter have been resolved and Chapter 7 (Rural) was 
made operative by council at its 30 September 2010 meeting. (The actual operative date 
was 16 October 2010.) The only chapters remaining outstanding are those affected by the 
LGAAA appeals. 
 

Measure 16 month target for 
final report (1 July 
2009 to 31 October 

2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Operative District Plan in place 
 

All outstanding appeals 
resolved by the courts 
and district plan made 
fully operative 

. LGAAA appeals have 
delayed the remaining 
chapters being made 
operative.  The timing has 
been entirely in the hands 
of the court and the 
process has been 
managed in such a way 
that we have been able to 
meet the court’s 
requirements in terms of 
timelines. 

Prioritised plan changes notified 
to implement strategies/structure 
plans, and to respond to issues 
arising 

District plan changes to 
implement structure 
plans, Planning Rodney 
and Rural Strategy 
initiated where pre-
conditions are met  

Alignment of the district 
plan to Planning Rodney 
occurred via the process 
of appeals to the rural 
chapter of the plan. 
Wherever possible the 
opportunity was taken to 
align the district plan with 
the outcomes set out in 
Planning Rodney. 
The West Coast variation 
progressed with a hearing 
of submissions. Decision 
making has been delayed 
due to the need to get 
chapter 7, Rural, of the 
PDP 2000 operative. 
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Extent to which all processes and 
plan outcomes meet statutory 
requirements of the RMA 

100% of requirements 
met 

100% 
A challenge to the 
process associated with 
V125 (Warkworth Town 
Centre) in the form of a 
judicial review was 
lodged.  This was 
resolved via a process 
involving a resource 
consent application for a 
supermarket in the area 
affected by the variation 
being directly referred to 
the Environment Court.  
The proceedings were 
withdrawn. 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
District planning needs to balance the desires of some citizens with the desires of the wider 
community, and it must address legislative requirements. It is, therefore, inevitable that some 
parties will have to accept an outcome that is not ideal for them although it is in the interests 
of the environment or the wellbeing of the wider community. 
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Activity: Property holdings 
 
The council had a portfolio of property acquired over time for core corporate, strategic, and 
operational or investment purposes. The council managed these assets in terms of 
purchases, sales, leasing and licensing, upgrading and maintaining them as required. 
 
Why the council did it 
 
The properties were held to provide long term income streams, e.g. ground and building 
leases or to achieve strategic outcomes, e.g., town centre redevelopment. Each property was 
managed to required maintenance and compliance standards to achieve the maximum 
income yield possible. 
 
Land was acquired to construct utilities and enhance services and to create reserves and 
parks.  Land acquired for utility purposes and parks wa generally included in the relevant 
activity section of the LTCCP. Where land was not required immediately for its future use, 
income was maximised through grazing licences, residential tenancies, etc. 
 
The council was responsible for ensuring all its land and buildings were maintained to a high 
standard, that they were compliant with all acts and regulations, and were safe and 
comfortable and that facilities continued to meet their specific purpose. 
 
Rodney Properties Ltd 
 
Rodney Properties Limited (RPL) was a wholly owned subsidiary of Rodney District Council 
and a Council Controlled Trading Organisation (CCTO) under the Local Government Act 
2002. 
 
The purpose of RPL was to maximize strategic, financial and sustainable outcomes from the 
development and disposal of some of Rodney District Council’s commercial or strategic 
property assets. 
 
The Council endorsed the initial portfolio of properties on 26 February 2009. 
 
RPL has sold 20 properties to the end of September 2010 with another 11 conditional 
agreements yet to settle. 
 
On the 31 October 2010, RPL was dissolved; with business being undertaken from 1 
November 2010 by the new CCO, Auckland Council Property Ltd (ACPL).   The 
establishment of ACPL consolidates existing property management and development CCOs, 
provide a consistent approach to commercial property management across the Auckland 
Council property portfolio, and ensures an appropriate return on Auckland Council owned 
commercial property. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement  

Maintain existing properties, upgrading 
those which no longer meet community 
needs 

Information provided by our contractors 
in relation to asset condition was used 
to ensure that where properties were 
well used and required higher levels of 
maintenance, upgrades were identified 
through the Asset Management Plan 
(AMP). 

Improve our asset management systems and 
use this knowledge to improve asset 
capacity 

The information captured in the asset 
database (SPM) system was being 
used to plan future capital works and 
demand for asset capacity. The system 
was under ongoing review and we were 
looking at areas where greater 
information could be captured to assist 
in planning future works. 
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Enhance its property asset management 
plan 

The property asset management plan 
(AMP) was signed off by council in May 
2010. The AMP was under constant 
review and was being updated on a 
regular basis to ensure that all 
information relating to current and future 
works was being captured, and all other 
information remained relevant to the 
asset. 

Ensure a review of each asset’s 
maintenance and upgrade requirements on a 
cyclical basis 

As identified by the Facilities 
Maintenance contractor planned 
maintenance activity was ongoing to 
ensure assets complied and remained 
in acceptable condition. The cyclical 
programme had increased ensuring that 
there were less reactive maintenance 
requests. Upgrade of assets was also 
given to our asset management 
planners for entry into the database to 
make reviewing easier in the long term. 

The disposal of land holdings not required 
for operational purposes 

Portfolio being sold via Rodney 
Properties Ltd. During the 16 month 
period the actual disposal of properties 
were fewer than had been budgeted.   

Undertaking building condition assessment 
reports on strategic and property assets 

Building assessments were undertaken 
on the newly acquired water services 
assets by a surveyor and the contractor.  
Asset condition reports were also 
received from GHD for the rental 
portfolio linked to the Penlink project 
providing property operations with 
enough information to review the 
maintenance regime on houses in the 
designated area. 

 
 
How the council monitored progress 
 

Level of service 
 
We will manage commercial properties to ensure a rate of return in line with general 
commercial buildings in the immediate area 
 
Regular review ensures returns are within market tolerances. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Average return per square 
metre (m2) for council owned 
commercial properties 
(compared to relevant open 
market properties) 

Average return within 5% 
of open market return 

Unable to define 
meaningful, measurable 
result. 
 
Commercial properties 
were reviewed regularly to 
ensure returns were 
appropriate to market. 
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Level of service 
 
We will manage residential tenancies to ensure rate of return similar to properties in the 
immediate area 
 
We undertake ongoing rental reviews to compare to market levels.  

 
Measure 16 month target for final 

report (1 July 2009 to 31 
October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Housing rental properties 
return on investment (in 
relation to Rating Valuation) 
(New measure; baseline to be 
established)  

Average return within 2% 
of open market 

Achieved 1.6%  
 
A high land value 
component for rentable 
residential properties 
affects the return on 
investment. 

Level of service 
 
We will manage the Sandspit Carpark to ensure a rate of return 
 
The Sandspit Carpark provides a good rate of return. The intention is to align fees with 
other parking facilities across Auckland in 2010/2011 financial year. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Monthly occupancy rate for 
Sandspit Carpark 
(Baseline 2007/2008 85%) 

At least 86% occupancy 
achieved 

Achieved 88.74% 
occupancy 
(89.3% in 2008/09) 

 
Potential for negative effects 
 
There are no significant negative effects from this activity on the overall wellbeing of the 
community and it actively supports their economic wellbeing. 
 
Capital expenditure District and Environmental Planning 
 

ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Property Holdings

Blue Gum Link Rd Land Purchase 14 28  i

Capital work on rental properties 125 157  

Community House Modcom Relocation 270 269  i

HBC Res. Dacre Reserve Purchase 0 110  i

Helensville Archive Modcom 57 55  

Purchase reserve land Matakana 3 40  i

Road land purchases 25 25  

Sandspit Carpark Renewals 43 43  i

Surplus Penlink Properties 8 8  i

Warkworth carpark - re-surfacing & deck 22 22  

Wgp Land purchases 5 6  

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 571 762  
 
 i - budget carried forward 
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GROUP OF ACTIVITIES: REGULATORY SERVICES 
 
Activities in this group: 
 
Resource consents and monitoring Building consents 
Health and licensing    Bylaws 
Animal control 
 
Overview 
 
The rights of individuals, groups and communities are established, defined and protected in 
legislation and through regional and local statutory plans (e.g., the District Plan), policies and 
bylaws. Locally, councils ensure that plans and bylaws are fair and workable by consulting 
with the community before officially adopting these plans and bylaws. 
 
This group of activities includes the granting of consents when people wish to operate outside 
of what is in the plans, the granting of licences to operate food premises or sell alcoholic 
liquor, granting of building consents and the enforcement of the terms of consents, licenses 
and bylaws. 
 
Protecting people’s rights, by making such legislation, plans and bylaws effective, requires 
education, monitoring and enforcement to ensure they are not ignored. The provision of such 
instruments as food premises licenses, resource consents and building consents are to give 
the community confidence that food premises are hygienic, the natural and human 
environment is being protected and buildings are safe and durable. Activities such as animal 
control allow the council to identify owners of dangerous or nuisance animals, enforce 
considerate owner behaviour and recover any council costs of such control. Bylaws allow the 
council to set out and enforce appropriate rules around behaviour in public places and ensure 
peoples behaviours do not unreasonably impact on their neighbours’ quality of life. 
 
Regulating certain activities is one way council goes about protecting the environment and 
providing the kind of district the community has expressed a preference for. 
 
Contribution to community outcomes 
 
Outcome Outcome statement Contribution to outcomes made by 

this group of activities 
Prosperous 
 

We will have a growing and resilient 
economy based on a wide variety of 
businesses that fit our character 

Vibrant 
 

We will have a range of recreational 
and cultural facilities and events 
across the district and we will 
encourage creativity and diversity 

Distinctive We will maintain and enhance the 
character of our townships and rural 
areas through excellent urban and 
rural planning and the intelligent 
management of growth 

Connected 
 

We will have the infrastructure and 
services needed for our residents, 
business and visitors 

Safe and 
healthy 
 

We will continue to have a sense of 
community and we will provide for the 
emotional and physical well-being of 
our people 

Clean and 
green 

We will continue to value, protect and 
enjoy the natural environment 

The council contributes to these 
outcomes by processing, monitoring 
and enforcing resource and building 
consents, and responding to 
complaints about unsanitary or unsafe 
buildings. Swimming pool fencing is 
inspected to ensure under-6-year-olds 
are not at risk from drowning 
 
The council inspects and certifies 
eating establishments and manages 
liquor licensing. Water and air quality 
checks are undertaken to limit the 
level of toxins and noise levels are 
monitored to ensure community 
health 
 
Bylaws help keep the community safe 
and healthy by protecting the 
community from the adverse effects of 
the activities of others. Animal control 
protects people from dogs and other 
animals 
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Financials 
 
Regulatory Services

Actual Plan Actual 
12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

0 $000 $000 

Resource Consents and Monitoring 7,147 8,324 8,208
Building Consents 7,641 10,193 31,400
Health and Licensing 1,137 1,427 1,594
Bylaws 776 1,129 1,026
Animal Control 1,021 1,560 1,755

Total Operating Expenditure 17,722 22,633 43,983

Operating Revenue:
Revenue & user charges 12,019 17,111 18,921
Grants and subsidies 60 0 0
Interest Income 28 0 32
General rates 5,719 5,509 4,982
Other Income 0 0 25

Total Operating Revenue 17,826 22,620 23,960

TOTAL OPERATING SURPLUS ( DEFICIT) 104 (12) (20,023)
Capital Expenditure

New capital works 1,210 105 166
Renewal capital works 39 53 37

Total Capital Expenditure 1,249 158 203

Other Funding Requirements
Loan repayments 0 16 0
Transfers to general & restricted reserves 28 332 0

Total Funding Requirement 1,277 506 203

Funds To Be Provided From:
Operating surplus / (deficit) 104 (12) (20,023)
Loans raised 875 149 0
Transfers from general and restricted reserves 198 393 12
Non cash expenses 0 37 0

Total Funds Provided 1,177 567 (20,011)

FUNDING SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT) (100) 61 (20,214)
 
Significant variances to budget arose due to: 
 
A change in the methodology for recognition of potential future weather tightness costs which 
resulted in $22.2 million being shown as Building Consent expenditure. 
 
Realisation of $1 million as revenue and user charges which were unclaimed damage 
deposits held since 2002. 
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Activity: Resource consents and monitoring 
 
The council controls the effects of land and coastal development by assessing applications for 
resource consents to ensure that activities are consistent with the District Plan. Development 
is then monitored for compliance. 
 
The council also issues some coastal and air discharge permits under a transfer of powers 
from the Auckland Regional Council. 
 
Why the council did it 
 
It is important to ensure that the actions of a few do not unreasonably compromise the 
environment and the quality of life and rights of their neighbours, as well as the wider 
community. To protect the environment and the community’s quality of life and rights, it is 
necessary to place controls around certain activities. This includes controls on development 
activity and on different land uses, which is carried out under the Resource Management Act 
1991. 
 
A strong and fair regulatory environment provides a high degree of certainty that the social, 
environmental, economic and cultural wellbeing of the wider community is not unreasonably 
compromised by the actions of a few. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement  

Managing the consenting and monitoring 
process in the current economic 
downturn in a manner that minimises the 
impact on our budget while maintaining 
our staff expertise 

Despite a loss of staff in the consents area, 
existing resources were satisfactory to cope 
with workloads. Compliance was 
experiencing some resource issues 
although these were adequately managed 
with cooperation/collaboration from 
consents staff. 

Managing changes that may flow from the 
current Resource Management Act review 
and adapting processes and practices as 
may be required 

Introduction of initiatives from the Customer 
Value Proposition (CVP) have ensured work 
continued to be undertaken in an efficient 
and effective manner. New processes were 
also trialled in preparation for the transition 
to Auckland Council. 

Maintaining and building the staff 
expertise to meet changes in the 
Resource Management Act with an 
increased focus on collaboration and 
efficient practices  

The uncertainty surrounding the local 
government reorganisation resulted in a loss 
of key staff and expertise. However, this 
was successfully managed to ensure there 
was no decrease in team performance. 
Vacancies were filled with suitably qualified 
and experienced personnel. 
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How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will provide knowledgeable, informed, and consistent resource consent information and 
advice 
 
Although planned, the Valued Client meeting was not held due to a downturn in application 
numbers during the year, and no significant issues being raised that would have formed a 
basis for discussion.  We are continued to provide information and advice on an informal 
basis.   
 
The team were briefed on changes to the Resource Management Act. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Annual audit of current resource 
consents against quality 
standards 
(Baseline 2007/2008 73%) 

2% of consents issued 
audited annually with at 
least 95% meeting quality 
standards 

No audit was undertaken 
for the period 1 July 2009 - 
31 October 2010.   
 
This was due to the 
ongoing Customer Value 
Proposition (CVP) 
project which had identified 
areas for improvement and 
implementation of the 
changes required.  
 
 

Communication and provision of 
information relating to resource 
consents to assist regular 
customers 

Information to regular 
customers communicated 
at least twice during the 
year 

Although planned, no 
valued clients meetings 
were held due to a decline 
in significant applications 
and on going work with the 
district plan.  

Level of service 
 
We will ensure that all resource consent applications are efficiently and professionally 
processed 
 
There was an improvement in consent processing times and this remained consistent 
throughout the year.  The CVPproject is expected to further improve processes in this area. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Statutory requirements regarding 
resource consent applications 
processing met 
(Baseline 2007/2008 84%)  

All statutory requirements 
are met 100% of the time 

98% of applications were 
processed within their 
statutory timeframes.  (Not 
achieved)  
The CVP (mentioned 
above) has contributed to  
an encouraging result and 
continued improvement on 
previous years. 
(92.8% in 2008/09) 

Percentage of resource consent 
appeals to the Environment Court 
resolved within 12 months 
(New measure; baseline to be 

80% of appeals are 
resolved within 12 months 

67% (Not achieved) 
 
Of the 21 appeals resolved 
in this period, 67% were 
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established) resolved within 12 months 
Public satisfaction with resource 
consents service  
(Baseline 2007/2008 43%) 

10% increase from initial 
baseline established in 
2007/08 to 47% 

No survey undertaken. 
 
However, work continued  
with the Customer Value 
Proposition (CVP) project.It 
is anticipated 
improvements made 
through CVP will continue 
under the Auckland 
Council. 
 

Level of service 
 
We will proactively collaborate with developers and others towards achieving environmental 
outcomes 
 
Large scale development has slowed, however the team have met with developers as 
demand required. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Number of resource consent 
applications assessed through 
case management  

Demonstrated 
collaboration with 
developers to encourage 
appropriate outcomes  

Four resource consent 
applications were case 
managed. 
 
This year saw a significant 
drop in the number of 
larger, complex 
applications that benefit 
from case management. 
 
It is expected that the 
demand for this service will 
increase as the economy 
improves.  

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
While the council seeks to establish regulations and planning rules that the community widely 
agrees on, it is inevitable that from time to time some consent applicants will not gain 
approval for any or all of what they wish to do. This will be because the proposed activity 
causes significant negative impacts on their neighbours or on the wider community. While this 
may be seen as a negative impact by the applicant, decisions will be made by balancing the 
rights of the applicant, with the rights and wellbeing of the wider community. 
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Activity: Building consents 
 
The council provides land and project information relating to building requirements and issues 
building consents and certificates stating that buildings comply with consents and the New 
Zealand Building Code. 
 
Council also checks that certain buildings have a current warrant of fitness certificate, 
dangerous or unsanitary buildings are brought up to standard, and that swimming pools are 
appropriately fenced. 
 
The council maintains land information records and makes land information memorandums 
(LIMs) available when clients want information about a property, usually when they wish to 
purchase it. 
 
Why the council did it  
 
The building certification process under the Building Act 2004 allows people to be confident 
that properties they are entering or using are safe, durable and fit for purpose. It would be a 
significant waste of private and public resources if people had to have expert inspections 
carried out every time they wanted to use a building. It would also substantially add to risk 
and therefore to insurance and litigation costs. 
 
Having building standards enforceable through law and a certification regime that only 
requires inspections at the time of building or altering and retaining building records is an 
economically efficient way of ensuring that users and purchasers of property have, within 
reason, full and accurate information on the state of that property. 
 
Council is also required under the Building Act to investigate alleged dangerous or unsanitary 
buildings and take appropriate enforcement action to protect public health and safety. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement  

Managing the consenting and inspection 
process in the current economic 
downturn in a manner that minimises the 
impact on our budget while maintaining 
our staff expertise  

The economic downturn has been 
successfully managed. People and skills 
have been retained. 

Ensuring that we have well qualified and 
experienced staff able to maintain quality, 
provide excellent customer service and 
meet the Building Consent Authority 
competency requirements  

Core processing staff and inspection staff 
have been retained and their skill level 
improved. Competency requirements have 
been met. 

Change the culture of processing building 
consents from statutory time 
requirements to the more stringent 
customer service time requirements  

Progress has been made in this area and 
we are confident that further progress will 
continue. 

Change from a building consents paper 
based system to more online processing 
  

This project was unable to proceed due to 
the Auckland Council transition process. 
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How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will ensure that all applications are efficiently and professionally processed and monitored 
to completion 
 
Processing times for both Building Consents and Code Compliance Certificates have steadily 
increased throughout the year. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Percentage of building 
consents granted within 20 
days 
(Baseline 2007/2008 96%) 

All statutory requirements 
are met 100% of the time 

97% (Not achieved) 
 
(98% in 2008/09) 
 

Percentage of Code 
Compliance Certificates issued 
within 20 days 
(New measure; baseline to be 
established) 

All statutory requirements 
are met 100% of the time. 

98% (Not achieved) 
 
(85% in 2008/09) 

Percentage of 'Fast Track' 
building consents granted 
within 10 days 
(New measure; baseline to be 
established) 
 

Applications are processed 
within 10 working days, 
100% of the time 

64% (Not achieved) 
 
Staff shortages during the 
year have impacted on fast 
track processing. 

Effective engagement with 
regional and national special 
interest groups (e.g. BOINZ, 
LGNZ, SOLGM, building 
control managers) 

Demonstrated attendance 
of council representative at 
strategic special interest 
groups 

Not achieved. 
Effective engagement has 
been very difficult to maintain 
due to reduced staff levels 
and the priority focus on 
transition related work.  

Level of service 
 
We will undertake proactive monitoring of buildings and take appropriate action as needed 
 
Council checks that commercial buildings, which have certain fire safety features that require a 
"compliance schedule" under the Building Act, have a current warrant of fitness certificate, and 
dangerous or unsanitary buildings are brought up to standard to protect public health and 
safety.   

Measure Target  16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Percentage of all building 
'Warrant of Fitness' certificates 
audited on site 
(New measure; baseline to be 
established) 

LTCCP 2009/10: On-site 
audit of at least 15% of all 
certificates issued annually 

Achieved 15.4%*  
*This result covers the period 
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010. 
 
16.48% audited for the period 
1 July 2010 to 31 October 
2010. 

 
 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
While the system of having rules around building and enforcing them has many positive 
benefits, the rules are prepared nationally and some people blame council when they 
disagree with the rules that central government has written and passed into law.  
Nevertheless, this activity is intended to protect and enhance community wellbeing. 
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Activity: Health and licensing 
 
The council aims to promote and protect community health. Specific activities include: 
 
 licensing all commercial food premises and inspecting them to make sure they comply 

with food hygiene standards 
 licensing and inspecting all premises where liquor is sold, and certifying all managers of 

such premises 
 responding to customer complaints about food and liquor premises 
 testing public water supplies to ensure they comply with standards for drinking water 
 testing water quality at lakes and public pool facilities to ensure there is no health risk to 

recreational users 
 controlling noise and air quality. 
 
Why the council did it 
 
It is important to ensure that the actions of a few do not unreasonably compromise the quality 
of life and rights of the wider community. 
 
To protect the community’s quality of life and rights, it is necessary to place controls around 
certain activities. These include controls on food and other commercial premises, alcohol 
supply and behaviour in public places. In particular, it is important that the public has a 
reasonable degree of certainty that food premises sell safe and hygienic food and that liquor 
is supplied according to the law and consumed according to what the community considers 
acceptable behaviours. 
 
A strong and fair regulatory environment ensures that the social, environmental, economic 
and cultural wellbeing of the wider community is not unreasonably compromised by the 
actions of a few. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement  

Voluntary implementation programme for 
selected number of highly compliant food 
premises to meet the new Food Safety 
Standards, becoming exempt from the 
current Food Regulations (1974) 

A total of 31 premises have signed up to the 
Voluntary Implementation Programme (VIP) 
as at 31 October 2010.  This was a pleasing 
result following introductory sessions being 
provided for selected businesses. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will protect public health within the parameters of our statutory responsibilities 
 
Controls on food and other commercial premises along with alcohol supply are in place to 
ensure the heath and safety of the public. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Customer satisfaction with 
licensing and inspection service 
measured every 2 years 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 84%) 

At least 80% satisfaction 
maintained 
 

Achieved 84% 
 
Source: Environmental 
Health Licensing Customer 
Satisfaction Research, 
undertaken June 2010 by 
International Research 
Consultants Ltd.  A self 
completion questionnaire 
was sent to 400 
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Environmental Health 
Licencees.  92 were 
returned giving a response 
rate of 23%.  Care should 
be taken in interpreting 
results due to the small 
sample size. 

Customer satisfaction with 
service received by those who 
initiate public health service 
requests (measured every 2 
years) 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 63%) 

At least 70% satisfaction 
achieved  

59.3% (Not achieved) 
 
Source: Environmental 
Health Complainants 
Customer Satisfaction 
Research, undertaken 
June 2010 by International 
Research Consultants Ltd.  
A self completion 
questionnaire was sent to 
355 Environmental Health 
Complainants.  136 were 
returned giving a response 
rate of 38.3%.  Care should 
be taken in interpreting 
results due to the small 
sample size. 

Percentage ‘A’ grade of food 
grade certificates  issued 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 79%) 

80% of food premises at 
June 2010 

Achieved 87% 
This result covers the 
period 1 July 2009 to 30 
June 2010. 
 
Annual re-evaluation of all 
food premises is conducted 
during Jul/Aug/Sep in 
preparation for re-licensing 
in October.  The re-
evaluation process involves 
inspection of all food 
premises during this period 
to confirm grading. 
By end October 2010 86% 
of food premises were ‘A’ 
grade. 
 
(84% in 2008/09) 
 
 

RDC response to environmental 
health complaints received 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 97%) 
 

95% of complaints are 
responded to within 3 
working days 

Achieved 98% 
 
(84% in 2008/09) 
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Level of service 
 
We will promote public health to achieve desirable health outcomes 
 
We have been proactive in encouraging food premises to sign up to the VIP programme to 
meet new Food Safety Standards. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Newsletters and other activities 
to promote health education and 
good practice amongst  
operators within the district 

Promotional newsletters 
for food premise and sale 
of liquor operators are 
published* 
 
*measured annually 

A Liquor Licensing 
newsletter was sent to 
premises in December 
2009. 
 
Another newsletter was 
sent to food premises in 
January 2010, and 
newsletters from the NZ 
Food Safety Authority are 
sent direct to premises 
during the year.   

 
Potential for negative effects 
 
The enforcement of food and liquor regulations does raise compliance costs for the retailers 
and other food and liquor dispensing organisations. This cost is seen as reasonable in terms 
of the costs to the community that are avoided and the increase in social wellbeing. The costs 
appropriately fall on those dispensing food and liquor. 
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Activity: Bylaws 
 
What we do 
 
The council uses bylaws and relevant legislation to protect the community from the adverse 
effects of nuisances and activities in public and private places. Bylaws give legal force to 
council policies and enable the council or police to enforce them. All bylaws were consulted 
on before their adoption to make sure community concerns were reflected in them. A 24-hour 
service operates to respond to emergency and safety situations. 
 
Bylaws deal with: 
 
 cemeteries  use of public wharves & 

boat ramps 
 waste 

 marinas  brothels & commercial 
sex premises 

 water supply 

 stock and animal control  liquor bans  set netting 

 road & traffic control & 
numbering of premises 

 fire in the open air  speed limits 

 trading in public places  wastewater and 
stormwater  

food premises 
 

 sanitation & cleanliness of 
buildings & places of 
public resort 

 signs 

 general bylaws (e.g., 
parking on roadsides) 

 
Why the council did it  
 
The council is required by legislation to protect the quality of the environment – the natural 
environment as well as the circumstances and surroundings in which people go about their 
daily lives. This is achieved through the application of bylaws and specific legislation. 
 
Level of service 
 
We will encourage desirable effects on communities through effective bylaws and their 
enforcement.  
 
Ensuring compliance with bylaws is an important aspect of checking that legislation is 
providing the protection intended.  This includes enforcing bylaws as required. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Customer satisfaction with the 
enforcement of general bylaws 
by those who initiate bylaw 
service requests, (measured 
every 2 years). 
Baseline 2007/2008: 75% 

At least 75% satisfaction 
achieved 

74.4% (Not achieved) 
 
Source: Bylaws Customer 
Satisfaction Research was 
undertaken by International 
Research Consultants Ltd, 
during Aug – Sep 2010.  A 
self completion questionnaire 
was posted to 400 bylaw 
customers with 107 returned 
providing a 26.8% response 
rate.  Care should be taken in 
interpreting results due to the 
small sample size. 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
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The enforcement of bylaws can impose compliance costs and limit freedom of action for 
individuals, businesses and other organisations.  Bylaws were only adopted however, after 
consultation with the community, explicit consideration of people’s rights, and assessment of 
the benefits to community wellbeing.  These costs were seen as reasonable in terms of the 
nuisance and costs to the community that were avoided. 
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Activity: Animal control 
 
Most of the resources used by this activity go to registering and controlling dogs. Council 
ensures that dogs do not become a danger or nuisance in the community, and provides for 
the recreational needs of dogs and their owners. It also keeps roads and public places free of 
wandering stock and provides a pound to hold stock. Animal control activities are given legal 
force through the Dog Control Act 1996, Dog Control Amendment Act 2004 and through the 
council’s Stock on Roads, Keeping of Animals, Poultry and Bees and Dog Control bylaws. 
 
Why the council did it 
 
The council has statutory responsibilities under the Dog Control Act 1996 and the Impounding 
Act 1955. It operates a 24-hour service to deal with emergency situations. 
 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will provide timely dog and stock control services across the district 
 
Customer requests are actioned within time frames during business hours.  An after hours 
service provides a response outside normal business hours for all urgent priority one calls.  
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Customer satisfaction with 
service received by those 
who initiate dog/stock control 
service requests (measured 
every 2 years) 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 71%) 

At least 72% satisfaction 
achieved 

No survey undertaken due to 
lack of resources. 

Response to dog and stock 
related complaints and 
requests for service received 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 95%) 

95% of requests are 
responded to within 2 days 
 

Achieved 97%  
 
(96% in 2008/09) 
 

Level of service 
 
We will promote responsible dog ownership 
 
A dog education programme has been developed and implemented for (a) Primary and 
Intermediate Schools and (b) at risk work groups.   
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Annual percentage of dog 
owners who have “Selected 
Dog Owner” status 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 35%) 

At least 35% achieve SDO 
status 

Achieved 36.28%* 
 
*The result is for the period 1 
July 2009 to 30 June 2010. 
 
(Of the 10,569 registered dog 
owners, 3834 have achieved 
“Selected Dog Owner” status). 
 
(35.84% in 2008/09) 
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Potential for negative effects 
 
The enforcement of bylaws can impose compliance costs and limit freedom of action for 
individuals, businesses and other organisations. Bylaws were only adopted, however, after 
consultation with the community, explicit consideration of people’s rights, and assessment of 
the benefits to community wellbeing. These costs were seen as reasonable in terms of the 
nuisance and costs to the community that were avoided. 
 
Capital expenditure Regulatory Services  
 

ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Aerial photography & contour dataset 80 90  

Hand-held parking ticket machine 22 15  

Northern Animal shelter 64 82  i

Digital data capture 0 40  

Environmental health equipment replacement 37 40  

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 203 267  
 
 i - budget carried forward 
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GROUP OF ACTIVITIES: TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 
 
Activities in this group: 
 
Transport Planning 
Roading and Streetscape  
 
Overview 
 
Because it has a dispersed population and is largely rural, Rodney’s community and economy 
will remain highly dependent on motor vehicles for the foreseeable future. The district’s 
transport system needs to be both safe and efficient to move people, goods and services 
providing access to each other, jobs, markets, services and recreation. 
 
Traffic volumes have increased considerably over the last decade. Early indications are that 
the rate of increase in traffic volumes is slowing. 
 
A key issue for Rodney is that the traffic growth continually exceeds the rate of population 
growth or economic growth.  If current economic conditions continue and the price of oil, and 
therefore the price of fuel, rises significantly, traffic volumes in Rodney are expected to 
continue to increase but at a lower rate than in recent years. Given the rate of growth in the 
district and related development needs, another key issue is that a number of significant 
improvements to the transport network are required to enable the release of more land. For 
example, much of the development of Silverdale North is reliant on staged improvements and 
the delivery of Penlink. 
 
There is also considerable demand from part of the community for improvements to public 
transport, which can be difficult to achieve given the comparatively low population density, 
particularly in the northern parts of the district. 
 
Contribution to community outcomes 
 
Outcome Community Statement Contribution to outcomes 

made by this group of 
activities 

Vibrant 
 

We will have a range of 
recreational and cultural 
facilities and events across 
the district and we will 
encourage creativity and 
diversity 

Distinctive We will maintain and 
enhance the character of our 
townships and rural areas 
through excellent urban and 
rural planning and the 
intelligent management of 
growth 

Connected 
 

We will have the 
infrastructure and services 
needed for our residents, 
business and visitors 

Safe and healthy 
 

We will continue to have a 
sense of community and we 
will provide for the emotional 
and physical well-being of 
our people 

Clean and Green We will continue to value, 
protect and enjoy the natural 
environment 

These activities ensure that 
communities and visitors 
have the transportation 
infrastructure needed and 
that community events and 
recreation opportunities are 
able to be accessed 
 
In collaboration with other 
activities the impacts of 
transportation on 
communities and townships 
is managed to ensure local 
communities retain their 
identity, people can move 
around safely by a variety of 
transportation modes, and 
the impact on the 
environment is minimised 
and mitigated 
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Financials 
 
Transportation Services

Actual Plan Actual 
12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

0 $000 $000 

Transport planning 1,178 1,575 1,432
Roading and Streetscape 43,503 64,751 71,392

Total Operating Expenditure 44,681 66,326 72,824

Operating Revenue:
Revenue & user charges 1,275 1,409 1,533
Grants and subsidies 446 44 25
Petrol Tax 691 932 994
NZ Transport Agency Subsidies Operational 7,802 8,732 9,079
NZ Transport Agency Subsidies Capital 15,593 37,734 18,099
Interest Income (2,125) 0 (2,634)
Cash contributions 1,526 3,499 4,205
Vested asset contributions 1,902 4,127 12,525
Gain/(Loss) on sale 38 0 0
Targeted rates 25,674 36,900 36,704
Gain (Loss) on sale of assets 0 0 66
Total Operating Revenue 52,822 93,377 80,596

TOTAL OPERATING SURPLUS ( DEFICIT) 8,141 27,050 7,772

Capital Expenditure

New capital works 22,742 47,252 34,362
Renewal capital works 19,979 29,332 25,650

Total Capital Expenditure 42,721 76,584 60,012

Other Funding Requirements
Loan repayments 1,735 15,673 0
Transfers to general & restricted reserves 2,017 158 10,393

Total Funding Requirement 46,473 92,415 70,405

Funds To Be Provided From:
Operating surplus 8,141 27,050 7,772
Asset sales 0 0 8,585
Loans raised 13,443 29,457 9,554
Transfers from general & restricted reserves 4,198 5,303 9,114
Non cash expenses 19,367 30,605 29,002

Total Funds Provided 45,149 92,415 64,027

FUNDING SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT) (1,324) 0 (6,378)
 
Significant variances to budget arose due to the Penlink project with new capital expenditure, 
NZTA capital subsidies and loans all impacted by the deferral. Vested assets from developers 
(the timing of which council has little control) were significantly higher than budget.
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Activity: Transport Planning 
 
The council carries out a programme of planning, advocacy and negotiation to ensure that 
Rodney’s transport networks and services are effective in the future. In particular, the council: 
 
 enables lower-cost transport modes to become a viable choice through changing attitudes 

of travellers 
 encourages school travel planning to reduce traffic congestion and improve pedestrian 

safety around schools 
 identifies the future mobility and transport needs of Rodney’s communities and assesses 

the ability of existing and planned infrastructure and services to meet them 
 plans for future development of transport network infrastructure and services to support 

district development and growth 
 anticipates and acts to reduce the adverse effects of traffic and other transport activities on 

communities 
 advocates for a state highway network which serves the mobility and transport needs of 

Rodney’s communities 
 represents the interests of the district in the development of national and regional policies 

for transport and transport funding 
 ensures that it receives appropriate external funding for major new capital projects 
 assists the provision of public transport services 
 promotes initiatives to reduce the overall use of cars for personal transport. 
 
Why the council did it  
 
As the provider of a road network (a road controlling authority under the Local Government 
Act), the council needs to actively anticipate, research and plan for the future needs for the 
operation and development of the network. Major transport infrastructure projects typically 
have long lead-times due to the time required to gain resource consents, zoning approvals 
and funding, purchase property and construction of the project. It is important that planning for 
such projects is done well ahead of the time at which the commissioning of the project 
becomes critical. 
 
Transport planning is also required under the Land Transport Management Act 2003 to: 
 
 demonstrate that council infrastructure and activities improve access and mobility 
 assist economic development 
 assist safety 
 ensure the environmental sustainability of communities. 
 
Because of the high rates of population growth and land development in Rodney, traffic 
demand in many parts of the road network is approaching or exceeding the level at which 
levels of service are able to meet community expectations. 
 
Council also needs to represent the interests of Rodney’s communities by influencing the 
New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) in the development and management of the state 
highway network, which can be either a cause of, enabler of, or an impediment to local 
growth, or a source of adverse effects on communities. 
 
The NZTA makes significant subsidy funding available for new capital projects, and 
competition for this funding among competing projects and authorities means Rodney needs 
to maintain a high profile with the Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA), NZTA and 
central government to ensure that the importance of its projects is understood and to support 
the success of funding applications. 
 
Transportation planning now requires a multi-modal approach including roads, walkways, 
cycleways, rail and ferry, together with utilisation of public transport (PT) and travel demand 
management (TDM). Appropriate solutions need to be integrated into community planning. 
 
RDC’s educational and advocacy initiatives relate to obtaining funding priority for: 
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State highway projects such as: 
 
 the Puhoi to Wellsford route of national 

significance  
 Taupaki intersection 
 safe walking and cycle facilities on state 

highways 
 safety improvements for Schedewys Hill and 

Dome Valley 

Walking and cycle facilities in: 
 
 Kumeu-Huapai (SH16) 
 Hibiscus Coast Highway 
 Te Hana to Wellsford (SH1) 
 Helensville Mill Road to railway bridge 

(SH16) 
 

 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement  

Planning to accommodate any additional 
traffic on the local road network resulting 
from the opening of Penlink and Alpurt B2 

Traffic data continued to be collected 
monthly to monitor changes in traffic 
flows resulting from the opening of 
ALPURT B2 as well as growth on the 
Whangaparaoa Peninsula.  All counters 
were serviced and/or replaced with 
calibrations completed in March 2010 to 
ensure accuracy. 

Continue to advocate for improvements to the 
state highway network in order to meet the 
transport needs of Rodney’s communities 
and also to reduce adverse effects of the 
state highways on some town centre 
environments 

Construction of intersection 
improvements in association with NZTA 
continues at Warkworth. 
 
Work continued on concepts for the 
future layout of SH 16 through Kumeu/ 
Huapai. 
 
The 1st round high level consultation on 
the NZTA study of route options for SH 1 
between Puhoi and the north of 
Warkworth has commenced. A further 
consultation round is anticipated by 
November when more detailed 
information will be available. 

Assessing community support for public 
transport infrastructure and ensuring that 
provision is made within road corridors and 
at appropriate locations for any likely future 
(but currently unplanned) facilities 

An e-panel survey on public transport 
(PT) was completed in January 2010. 
35% of respondents said they had a bus 
service within walking distance from their 
residences while 12% said that they 
used the service. 
 
Provision of PT infrastructure, when 
demand arises (but currently 
unplanned), is totally dependent on 
funds allocated within the LTCCP and 
subsidies from ARTA (now Auckland 
Transport) which were reduced by 26% 
to $74,000 for 2009/2010. 
 
New infrastructure, when demand 
arises, is provided after assessing 
patronage, costs, and views of 
neighbours - subject to availability of 
fund (local share and ARTA subsidy). A 
new bus bay and four new bus shelters 
have been built in 2009/2010. A further 
four shelters were rebuilt or relocated in 
2009/2010. 
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Road safety initiatives (e.g., education for and 
with community groups with a high 
proportion of vulnerable road users) 

All community groups delivered their 
programmes for the 2009/2010 period.  
These included: 
 Age Concern Rodney - six seminars 

were held in the Rodney District for 
senior drivers. 

 EDUK8 Trust - a four week 
programme for youth in the Rodney 
District who had been convicted of 
driving offences. 

 Harmony Trust “One for the Road” – a 
group therapy programme for repeat 
drink-drivers in the Rodney District in 
order to assist participants to move 
towards changing their driving 
attitudes and behaviour. 

 RYDA NZ Ltd provided an all day 
workshop consisting of six sessions 
each with a different theme, targeting 
mid-teens. 

 Hibiscus Coast Community House – 
now provides and promotes a child car 
seat rental scheme. 

  Mauri Ora Ki Ngati Whatua Charitable 
Trust - “4D’s – Drink, Drive, Drugs & 
Die”, a road safety and leadership 
workshop aimed at 15-25 year olds. 

 Billy TK Jnr Ltd “Holden Driving 
Towards a Future” - an engaging 
educational road safety music show 
followed by the PRACTICE workshop 
that introduces students to the 
Practice tool developed for new 
drivers by ACC and NZTA. 

 
Neighbourhood accessibility planning 
initiatives 

Unfortunately funding for this project has 
been cut; therefore it has been 
postponed indefinitely. The project will 
be an issue for Auckland Council and 
Auckland Transport to address. 

Travel behaviour change activities (including 
facilitation of school travel plans, walking 
school buses, community car-pooling) 

Schools already implementing 
TravelWise School Travel Plans 
continued to be supported by the Travel 
Planner and Sustainable Transport 
Coordinator. One new school which 
signed up for the 2009/2010 financial 
year has completed baseline surveys 
and been involved in working party 
meetings.  
 
Existing walking school buses continued 
to be supported.  
 
The ‘Take a Mate’ carpooling 
programme continued to be actively 
promoted. 

Advertising (billboards, print media, radio, 
TV) to support community education to 
address specific local issues relating to safe 
and sustainable use of the land transport 
system such as speeding, drink-driving, use 

Advertising and educational campaigns 
ran concurrently and were developed to 
target specific occasions and seasons. 
These included driving sober, promoting 
safer after school ball parties and host 
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of safety belts, failure to give way at 
intersections, fatigue and travel mode choice 

responsibility, drive to the conditions, 
wet weather, darkness and mobile 
phone use. Campaigns also covered 
planning a safe way home at the end of 
the holidays, and intersections. 

Workshops, seminars and public meetings 
promoting aspects of land transport safety, 
accessibility or sustainability that are local 
issues, for example, presentations by health 
professionals on child restraint use, or the 
health gains of walking and cycling 

Council officers worked with other 
agencies to promote vehicle safety on 
Muriwai beach, and road safety at the 
Ngati Whatua festival.  ‘Take a Mate’ 
was promoted at the Kumeu A & H 
Show and community workshops were 
held prior to developing a new walking 
and cycling map.  A road safety 
awareness presentation was promoted 
to Year 7 classes at Orewa College and 
the Travel Planner hosted a workshop 
for lead teachers from Travelwise 
schools in the district. 

Road safety, walking or cycling displays at 
local events 

Road safety was promoted through the 
school travel plan process as well as 
through provision of support to schools 
in ‘Walk to Wednesday’ events, walking 
school buses, Helensville Active 
Mapping Project, Feet First and the 
walkablity map.  Two special events 
were organised in December 2009 for 
the walking school bus participants and 
school patrols in Waiwera in 
collaboration with the Police Education 
Officers. 
 
‘Bike to Work’ day was held 17 February 
2010, the Mayoral Challenge on 6 March 
2010, Walk to Work’ on 10 March 2010 
and ‘The Ride of Silence’ on 20 May 
2010. Other walking and cycling events 
continued at schools as per their 
individual school travel plans. 
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How the council monitored progress 
 
 
Level of service 
 
We will promote safe and responsible travel and driving behaviour through educational 
initiatives and projects 
 
The council promoted safe and responsible travel and driving behaviour through educational 
initiatives and projects such as the Mayoral Challenge, The Ride of Silence, motorcycle 
training, SADD events, advertising, Slow Down For Horses, Slow Down for Corners, World 
Remembrance Day, Speed Kills Kids, driver licensing, public awareness campaign for holiday 
traffic, and intersections. The council also worked with seven community groups/organisations 
promoting road safety through a number of projects which included: One for the Road (a 
recidivist Drink Driver Programme), The Right Track, Mature Drivers, Driver Licensing and a 
Car Seat Hire scheme. More information has been loaded onto the Land Transport Programme 
On-Line, which details all the projects completed this financial year. The road safety and travel 
demand management team completed all projects as proposed in our 2009/10 application to 
NZTA and to ARTA. 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Engagement with college 
students in Students Against 
Driving Drunk initiatives 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 5) 
 

Number of colleges involved 
in SADD initiatives  

5 
We continued to work along 
side active SADD schools to 
promote our School Ball Road 
Show and host responsibility. 
The SADD Newsletter # 5 
was distributed during July 
2010 and schools were 
supported during ‘SADD 
Awareness Week’.  

Level of service 
 
We will promote alternative modes to cars (travel planning, walking school buses) 
 
The council continues to promote alternative travel modes through a variety of initiatives. A new 
Ride Share Policy has been developed for council staff. Our ‘Take A Mate’ scheme was 
converted to the Auckland Transport Regional Authority ride share scheme. The number of 
walking school buses  increased from 20 in 2008/2009 to 26 in 2009/2010 and a total of 494 
children now walk ‘on’ these buses. The Mayoral Challenge was a significant project designed 
to encourage people to cycle and the council came third in our category (third highest number 
of participants) in 2009/2010.  

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Number of walking school 
buses at TravelWise schools 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 14) 

Numbers from 2008/2009 
levels maintained or 
increased 

Achieved 22 active walking 
school buses. An additional 
five walking school buses are 
on trial.  

Number of pupils participating 
in walking school buses 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 158) 

Numbers from 2008/2009 
levels maintained or 
increased 
 

Achieved with 411 children 
participating. 
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Potential for negative effects 
 
Transport Planning involves developing projects and activities to make the road network more 
efficient and provide for and promote alternatives to motor vehicle transportation. The net 
effect of these activities is to reduce the negative impacts of roads and motor vehicle use and 
to increase social, economic, cultural and environmental wellbeing.  
 
The negative effects of motor vehicles and roads are discussed in the Roading and 
Streetscape section. 
 
Vehicle accidents are a significant cause of death and injury in New Zealand. The numbers of 
death and injuries per kilometre driven has been substantially reduced over recent decades 
due to traffic law enforcement, driver education, safer vehicles and safer roads. The council 
has a role in all of these accident reducing factors. 
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Activity: Roading and streetscape 
The strip made up of roads, footpaths, berms, and strips either side of the road is known as 
the ‘road reserve’ or ‘road corridor’. The road corridor connects communities, residential, rural 
and business properties by allowing free movement of people, goods and services. To enable 
the use of modern vehicles, to provide a corridor for utilities such as water, waste water, 
telephone cables, power lines and gas mains, as well as allowing safe pedestrian and cycle 
travel, the council provides, maintains and improves the local road network. This includes 
bridges, footpaths, bus shelters, streetlights, and associated traffic management mechanisms 
such as signs, markings, traffic islands, traffic lights and guard rails. 
 
We provide transport infrastructure to support the ability to travel and to transport goods. The 
key aspects of the council’s role in meeting transport infrastructure needs are: 
 
 maintaining the assets in the transport network in a safe, serviceable condition 
 avoiding or mitigating network hazards as or before they occur 
 aligning the composition of the network with the district’s travel and transport needs 
 providing additional network capacity to accommodate increasing demand 
 providing effective linkages to the state highway network. 
 
Because parts of the road reserve are also heavily used as pedestrian areas, ‘streetscaping’ 
is carried out to make these attractive places to walk and relax in. This usually includes 
attractive paving, plantings, shade, lighting and litter receptacles, which supports the vibrancy 
of town centres and improving the amenity aspects of transport corridors. 
 
The council administers two quarries as investment properties. One quarry produces metal for 
roading and general construction; the other is not operating as infrastructure is being 
developed so that it meets resource consent requirements. 
 
Why the council did it 
The ability for goods, services and people to move around, into, and out of the district is 
essential for the Rodney communities’ social, economic and cultural wellbeing. To achieve 
this in an efficient way, free use of a network connecting the vast majority of properties is 
provided by the council (for local roads) and the New Zealand Land Transport Agency (for 
state highways). 
 
Having a publicly owned road network equally available to all, allows goods, services and 
people to be moved from place to place without having to enter into arrangements to cross 
non-public land. To ensure that roads are constructed and maintained to a level that the 
community is satisfied with and can afford requires accountability to that community. This is 
achieved through public ownership and democratically elected governance. 
 
The network has been added to, improved and modified for over 100 years to accommodate 
changes in vehicle volumes and technology (higher vehicle speeds and larger commercial 
vehicles). 
 
The council administers the quarries to maximise income from royalties from gravel sales. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement  

Penlink 
 

During 2010 an independent review of the 
Penlink project was carried out, commissioned 
by the Auckland Regional Transport Authority 
(ARTA) with the support of the New Zealand 
Transport Agency (NZTA) and Rodney District 
Council.  
 
The purpose of this review was to increase 
confidence in the project to ensure that the 
scheme proposed and the business case was 
robust. The results of the review confirmed that 
technical work such as the engineering and 
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demand assessment had been undertaken to a 
suitable standard and that the proposed project 
would meet its objectives both now and into the 
future. The review also confirmed that the 
scheme was economically sound. 
 
The project was considered by ARTA to be a 
technically viable, economically justifiable 
project. However, funds for Auckland projects 
from the National Land Transport Fund were 
constrained and there were other Auckland 
projects which ranked higher for funding.  Work 
continued on addressing these issues. 

Warkworth SH1 Intersection 
Improvements ($4.3M from 2009/10 to 
2011/12) 
 

Work continued on the Warkworth intersections 
upgrade project. Whilst the first stage was 
slightly behind earlier programming it is still 
anticipated the overall project will be completed 
by the scheduled mid 2012 date. 

West Orewa Walkway ($2.0M from 
2009/10 to 2012/13) 
 

The Lakeside - Waru Nui Court construction 
works have been completed including planting 
around the new bridge abutment to fulfil 
consent conditions. Prices have been obtained 
for construction of the interim cycleway link 
across the Millwater Estate - Arran Hill section 
with the underlying easement being put in 
place. The lowest price was awarded to the 
Lakeside - Waru Nui contractor as a variation to 
the existing contract. Site works will commence 
when ground conditions improve around 
October/November 2010. 
 
Construction commenced late April 2010 for 
'Shared Path 1, 4 and 5' of the southern link 
and is scheduled for completion late 
August/September 2010. 
 
Two further contracts were awarded in June to 
complete the remainder of the southern link 
including Maori Hut Bridge and the Orewa 
College section including the bridge connection 
from Western Reserve. Start dates for contract 
works is dependent on all consents being 
granted, improved ground conditions/weather 
and a likely consent condition restricting 
building of the bridges during February - May 
only, to avoid the bird nesting season. 
 
Negotiations are progressing slowly with the 
Ministry of Education and LINZ, for acquisition 
of the land for the cycleway route along the 
estuary edge of the Orewa College playing 
fields. A lighting design for the remaining 
cycleway sections and preparation of consent 
applications is in progress with the aim of 
completing the whole cycleway before 30th 
June 2011, 12 months ahead of the original 
programme. 

Achieving resource consent 
requirements for Mt Brame and 
mechanisms for operating it in future 
(i.e., lease, licence or contract) 

The Mt Brame property is on the open market. 
The resource consent has been allowed to 
lapse due to costs to implement conditions. 
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Review the ownership of quarries with 
a view to their possible sale 
 

One quarry (FlatTop) has been offered for 
purchase by its former owners under the Public 
Works Act. The other quarry (Mt Brame at 
Wellsford) is under a conditional sale contract. 
 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 

Level of Service 
 
We will continue to provide mobility via the existing 1700 km road network 
 
The local road network operated effectively throughout the year, enabling an estimated 582 
million kilometres travelled by vehicles. Inevitably, floods, slips, spillages and crashes disrupt 
the normal operation of roads and/or create hazards to road users. Disruptions of this nature 
were promptly and effectively dealt with by our contractors. Routine maintenance and periodic 
renewal of the network assets was carried out to ensure ongoing availability of the network 
and long term integrity of the assets. 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Condition of the transport 
network for normal operation 
(road surfaces, light, signs, 
control of vegetation) 
(Baseline 2007/2008: Contract 
specification 3minimum 85%) 

85% condition compliance 
achieved 

85% (Achieved)* 
 
*This result covers the 
period 1 October 2009 to 
31 October 2010. 
Measurement not possible 
in the first quarter as 
processes were being 
designed and established 
for contract performance 
monitoring. 
 
(Source: monthly 
performance scorecards for 
network operations 
contracts) 

Response to incidents and 
emergencies within specified 
timeframes 
(Baseline 2007/2008: contract 
specification minimum 85%) 

85% response within 
timeframes 

86% (Achieved)* 
 
* This result covers the 
period 1 October 2009 to 
31 October 2010. 
Measurement not possible 
in the first quarter as 
processes were being 
designed and established 
for contract performance 
monitoring. 
 
(Source: monthly 
performance scorecards for 
network operations 
contracts) 

Average chip seal age Not more than 8 years Achieved 7.6 years 
 
(Source: RAMM database, 
treatment length table, 31 
October  2010) 

                                                 
3 Contract specifications are based on, and supported by, extensive performance criteria. 
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Ride quality for road users 
(Smooth Travel Exposure [STE]) 
(New measure; baseline to be 
established) 

89% STE achieved Achieved 95%* 
 
(Source: standard NZTA 
report from RAMM 
database - “Smooth Travel 
Exposure Figures Basic 
Facts”, 4 November 2010) 

Number of slips classified as high 
risk 

Not more than 20 27 (Not achieved)* 
 
Three were classified as 
extreme risk and 24 slips 
were classified as high risk. 
(Source: Council slips 
database maintained by 
Downer EDI as at 31 
October 2010) 
 
“High risk” slips represent a 
risk to the integrity and 
operation of the roading 
network rather than 
causing any current 
disruption. 

Level of Service 
 
We will extend the roading network by adding new roads 
 
The LTCCP made provision for the commencement of construction of the Warkworth western 
collector during the year. This was deferred as a result of slower than expected development 
in the area. All of the new roads added to the council’s network during the year were funded 
and constructed by developers and transferred to the council as vested assets. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Length of new road constructed 
by Council 

Not less than 0.5km 0km.  (Not achieved) 
This is a result of the 
deferral of the development 
of the Warkworth western 
collector route. 

Level of Service 
 
We will provide facilities for walking, cycling, public transport 
 
The council recognises the benefits of encouraging transport by walking, cycling and public 
transport.  Several projects have been undertaken to enable increased walking and cycling, 
the largest being the Orewa West Walkway / Cycleway which is planned to eventually encircle 
the Orewa Estuary. Planning continued for the development of a Park and Ride facility at 
Silverdale. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Length of footpaths or walkways 
constructed by Council 

Not less than 0.7km 
constructed in the current 
year 
 

Achieved 3.707km* 
 
Centennial Park Road, 
0.165km 
Point Wells walkway - 
alongside Point Wells 
Road, 0.836km 
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Point Wells walkway - 
Points Wells Road to 
Broadlands Drive (on paper 
road), 0.900km 
Point Wells walkway - 
Jones Road to Takatu 
Road (through 64 Jones 
Road - council-owned 
property), 1.300km 
Weza Lane North footpath 
- Covers entire length of 
Weza Lane North. 0.342km 
Matakana Road - 
Riverglade Lane to 
Matakana toilets, 0.154km. 
 

Length of cycleways constructed 
by Council 

Not less than 1km Achieved 1.586 km* 
 
Orewa Estuary Walkway/ 
cycleway, 1.509km, Waru 
Nui walkway/cycleway, 
.077km  

Level of Service 
 
We will implement safety and capacity upgrades to reduce network safety deficiencies 
 
The ongoing growth in population and business activity in Rodney and the resulting increase 
in traffic mean there were a steady stream of issues arising which affected the safety and/or 
efficient operation of the road network and associated pedestrian facilities. To address these 
issues the council carried out a range of minor projects including new signs or road markings, 
providing special skid-resistant surfaces, removing trees or excavating banks to increase sight 
distance. Larger projects included realignment and or widening of sections of road or whole 
intersections. During 2009/2010, projects included: 
- Minor improvements $2.27M 
- Warkworth SH1 improvements (joint project with NZTA) $1.59M 
- Intersection improvements : Coatesville-Riverhead Highway / Goldflats Lane / Lewis Lane 

$0.30M 
- Intersection improvements: East Coast Road / Spur Road $0.18M 
- Roundabout Wainui Road / Silverdale Street (partial completion) $0.36M 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Number of injury or fatal crashes 
per 100 million vehicle-kilometres 
travelled 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 28) 

Less than 30 Achieved 29.9 
This calculation includes 
the total number of crashes 
on RDC Local Roads for 
the calendar year 2009. 
Calculation: 174 
(fatal/injury crashes) 
divided by 5.82(hundred 
mill vkt) 
 
Data sources: NZTA Police 
Crash List Report for crash 
data, standard NZTA report 
from RAMM database - 
“Smooth Travel Exposure 
Figures Basic Facts”, 13 
July 2010 for vkt 
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Expenditure on road safety and 
capacity upgrades 

Not less than $4.6M (target 
is 3.3 + 1.3 to end October) 

Achieved $4.66M 

Level of Service 
 
We will own and manage sustainable and profitable quarries in the district 
 
Metal sales have been negatively affected by the recession and consequent decline in the 
construction activity 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Returns for quarry operations 100% of budget achieved 
annually 

58.6% (Not achieved)* 
 
Income has approximately 
halved in 2009/2010 year 
due to the downturn in 
construction / infrastructure 
industries.  

 
 
Potential for negative effects 
 
Motor vehicles in Rodney almost exclusively run on fossil fuels and produce carbon dioxide 
(CO2) and other emissions.  Motor vehicles are estimated to contribute approximately 40% of 
all greenhouse gas emissions in the district. There is considerable agreement among climate 
scientists that CO2

 is the “greenhouse gas” making the largest man-made contribution to 
climate change. Traffic volume growth will increase CO2

 emissions unless offset by more 
efficient routes or more efficient vehicles. Therefore, any road expenditure that increases 
traffic volumes without off-setting efficiency gains will increase greenhouse gas emissions. 
 
In addition, roads can increase surface runoff from rainfall potentially resulting in soil erosion. 
This is mitigated through the provision and maintenance of effective drainage systems for 
road surfaces. 
 
Some vehicle pollutants, such as brake linings, also pollute local environments. 
 
Vehicle accidents are a significant cause of death and injury in New Zealand. The numbers of 
death and injuries per kilometre driven has been substantially reduced over recent decades 
due to traffic law enforcement, driver education, safer vehicles and safer roads. The Council 
actively identifies and implements projects to remove or mitigate network hazards and to 
encourage safer behaviour by drivers, cyclists and pedestrians. 
 
Quarrying and the traffic it generates can have long term impacts on the amenity of 
surrounding communities. These will be managed through resource consent requirements. 
 
This activity, therefore, can have negative impacts on the environmental wellbeing of the 
community and the council seeks to minimise and mitigate this impact.  There are beneficial 
impacts on social, cultural and economic wellbeings.  
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Capital expenditure Transportation Services  
 

ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Roading and Streetscape

Network and asset management

Contract C0821 AM & P Transport share 508 408  

Activity Management Plans

Inventory - culverts, retention walls, minor structures 0 40  

Bridge Renewals

Silverdale Intersection 2 0  

Waitakere No 4 Bridge (Waitakere Rd) 640 616  

Richards No 2 Bridge (Richards Road) 293 300  

Drainage renewals

Road outlet environmental discharge 154 129

Minor improvements

Crash reduction implementation 1,405 1,629

Minor safety - enabling 1,277 982

Minor safety projects 924 774

Network and asset management

Asset management general 601 219

Forward planning & design general 399 183

Speed management - threshold treatments 0 51  

Strategy studies general 105 188

Transportation studies general 165 146

WW Western Collector Strategy 10 357  i a

Level crossing warning devices

Railway Level Crossing Upgrade 30 0  

New roads and structures

Penlink (2010) Investigation 0 132  a

Non Subsidised

Bus shelter construction / upgrade  10-year programme 74 89  

Bus stop safety improvements 24 15  

Local area traffic  management projects 217 213

Penlink (SH1 Redvale Interchange) investigation 24 78  i

Penlink -Whangaparaoa Rd Widening Inv & Design 28 0  

Urban Upgrade - Fairhaven Walk 77 0  

Walkway to Centennial Park Wellsford 320 250  

Other Projects

Alpurt B2 - Orewa calming 1,153 1,000  

East Coast Road intersection & access to Council land 0 1,281  

Footpath Palmgreen Court 20 20  

Govan Wilson Roads 119 0  

Inventory - culverts, retention walls, minor structures 18 79  

Kumeu Main Road improvement project 3 200  a

Link - Centennial Park / Flagstaffe intersection to SH1 0 100  a

Matakana Village Upgrade Design and Consultation 36 134  i  
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ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Oaia Road walkway / cycleway 0 256  

Park and ride Silverdale 5,223 8,992  i a

Penlink - Tender Marketing and Research 0 180  i

Penlink Property Purchases 175 0  

Silverdale Parkway - Stages 1-3 landscaping 170 607  a

Silverdale Parkway - streetlighting - Stages 1-3 498 500  

Silverdale Parkway / Totara traffic  signals 61 552  a

Silverdale street landscaping & walkway 538 533  

Traffic counts - upgrade projects 94 130

Vector 33kv east and west undergrounding 4 16  i

Wainui Rd/Silverdale St Roundabout Construction 700 921  

Wainui Road upgrading - Manuel to Silverdale Street 42 184  a

Warkworth Western Collector - SH1 design & partial construct 282 2,641  a

Weiti Toll Road 808 2,050  a

Whangaparaoa Access - General 67 1,357  i a

Whangaparaoa Town Centre - Top of Plaza improvements 0 113  

Pedestrian facilities

School travel plan infrastructure 404 360

Road reconstruction

East Coast Rd/Spur Rd Intersection Improvement 180 180  

Arterial safety improvements 0 513  

Coatesvil le-Riverhead Highway improvement / realignment 295 300  

Warkworth SH1 intersection improvements 2,286 2,800  

Matakana Road / Green Road intersection 128 300  

Major arterial route improvements 0 256  

Roading and Streetscape - Non Subsidised

Roading Plans-In-Drawer 82 0  

Roading and Streetscape - Other Projects

Foothpath Fund 96 100  

Studies and Strategies

Traffic corridor planning 334 249  i

Crash reduction study 101 67

Structures component replacements

Heavy maintenance bridge upgrades general 648 722  

Total New Capital Work 21,837 34,490

Renewal Capital Work

Bridge Renewals

Bochiers Bridge (Bosher Road) 0 25

Non Subsidised

General footpath renewals 944 1,089

General vehic le crossings 46 93

Emergency reinstatement

Emergency Slips Shepherd Road RP 1600 Wellsford 282 282  
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ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Other Projects

Area-wide pavement treatment programme 596 384  i

Pavement rehabilitation

Area-wide pavement treatment general 6,661 7,155  

Area-wide pavement treatment sealed renewals 1,544 1,284  

General bridge approaches 258 471  

General maintenance seal 689 888  

General unsealed smoothing 1,061 1,525  

Renewals - Pavement Strengthening 2,620 5,181

Preventive works

General slip repairs 1,235 1,194  a

Sealed pavement maintenance

General pre-seal repairs 2,714 2,970

Sealed road resurfacing

General hotmix asphaltic concrete 885 1,702

General maintenance chip seal 4,127 3,051

Traffic services renewals

General street furniture renewals 107 104  a

Streetlight renewals 168 140

Unsealed road metalling

General heavy metal armouring 1,713 1,876  

Total Renewal Capital Work 25,650 29,414

Vested Assets 12,525 4,127

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 60,012 68,031  
 
 a – was to be completed in 2010 and proposed carry forward to 2011 
 i – budget carried forward 
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GROUP OF ACTIVITIES: WATER SERVICES 
 
Activities in this group:  
 
Water Supply 
Wastewater  
 
Overview 
 
Rapid growth and urbanisation of areas like the Hibiscus Coast, and the ongoing 
development of the district’s townships continues to put pressure on the council’s water 
services. Key issues for Rodney include its ability to maintain existing assets and service 
levels at the same time as providing adequate infrastructure and services to meet growth in 
demand. There has also been considerable community comment on how the council charges 
for such services and water. 
 
Rodney’s communities are demanding higher quality and environmentally friendlier treatment 
and disposal of wastewater. The Auckland Regional Council also places requirements on the 
quality of wastewater treatment via discharge consents. 
 
Development of new sources for water supply must also achieve high standards of 
environmental protection and meet environmental resource consent conditions. 
 
The number of schemes required to service the widespread communities of the district 
provides a fundamental challenge. There are currently six separate water supply schemes 
and ten wastewater schemes. In addition to upgrading and expanding the existing systems, 
the council needs to address the impacts of growth. For example, the impact septic tanks can 
have on water tables in the neighbourhood when public wastewater systems are not provided. 
This is particularly evident in Kumeu/Huapai and Muriwai. 
 
Any water-related engineering must consider the cultural values of Rodney’s tangata whenua. 
This encompasses holistic interaction between people, the water and the environment. 
 
Contribution to community outcomes 
 
Outcome Outcome statement Contribution to outcomes 

made by this group of activities
Vibrant 
 

We will have a range of recreational 
and cultural facilities and events across 
the district and we will encourage 
creativity and diversity 

Distinctive We will maintain and enhance the 
character of our townships and rural 
areas through excellent urban and rural 
planning and the intelligent 
management of growth 

Connected 
 

We will have the infrastructure and 
services needed for our residents, 
business and visitors 

Safe and 
healthy 
 

We will continue to have a sense of 
community and we will provide for the 
emotional and physical well-being of 
our people 

Clean and 
green 

We will continue to value, protect and 
enjoy the natural environment 

These activities ensure that the 
communities, businesses and 
visitors have safe and adequate 
water supplies and that water is 
extracted from and returned to 
the environment in such a way 
that adverse environmental 
impacts are minimised and 
mitigated 
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Financial results 
 
Water Services

Actual Plan Actual 
12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

0 $000 $000 

Water Supply 10,479 14,083 15,273
Wastewater 17,597 23,967 26,452

Total Operating Expenditure 28,076 38,050 41,725

Operating Revenue:
Revenue & user charges 1,272 12,770 11,005
Grants and subsidies 1,085 0 20
Interest Income 74 0 93
Cash contributions 1,701 2,760 5,412
Vested asset contributions 191 647 3,163
Targeted rates 25,116 23,250 22,737
Gain (Loss) on sale of assets 0 0 121

Total Operating Revenue 29,439 39,427 42,551

TOTAL OPERATING SURPLUS ( DEFICIT) 1,363 1,377 826
Capital Expenditure

New capital works 11,162 19,202 19,163
Renewal capital works 6,781 10,394 9,654

Total Capital Expenditure 17,943 29,596 28,817

Other Funding Requirements
Loan repayments 1,738 16,413 8,647
Transfers to general & restricted reserves 10,653 135 16,166

Total Funding Requirement 30,334 46,144 53,630

Funds To Be Provided From:
Operating surplus 1,363 1,377 826
Asset sales 0 0 1,906
Loans raised 10,375 34,640 12,055
Transfers from general & restricted reserves 12,685 741 29,130
Non cash expenses 5,911 9,389 9,540

Total Funds Provided 30,334 46,147 53,457

FUNDING SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT) 0 3 (173)
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Activity: Water supply 
 
The council ensures that households, businesses and industries in Rodney have access to 
adequate drinking-quality water, either from a public supply or by ensuring through consent 
processes, that supply is provided from privately owned and operated rainwater tanks, bores 
or springs. 
 
It also ensures that, in areas where there is a public water supply network, there is adequate 
water available for fire fighting - with the exception of Muriwai which is only partly reticulated. 
 
The council manages public water supply schemes on the Hibiscus Coast and at Warkworth, 
Wellsford, Snells Beach / Algies Bay, Helensville and Muriwai. The operation of public water 
supply systems is undertaken through a partnership with Rodney Water. A small portion of 
Waitakere township adjacent to the Waitakere City boundary is supplied by Waitakere City 
Council, and the user charges are recovered through Rodney District Council. 
 
Why the council did it  
 
Council provides public water supply schemes (intake from source, treatment plants, storage 
reservoirs, and distribution pipelines) to larger urban towns because it is an economically 
efficient means of providing the large quantities of safe drinking-quality water used by 
households and businesses. Public water networks have economies of scale, meaning the 
more units they supply, the lower the cost per unit. Once a network reaches sufficient size, it 
becomes a viable alternative to each property having its own private system. It also provides 
the opportunity to treat the water to safe drinking water standards. 
 
Requiring properties outside urban areas to make their own provision of safe drinking water 
ensures that users, or subsequent owners of the property, can have confidence that the water 
supply is relatively adequate and safe. This reduces the effort property users and purchasers 
have to go to in investigating the adequacy and safety of on-site water supplies. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement 

Kumeu/Huapai/Riverhead - Future Water 
Supply Scheme. The main pipelines are to 
be constructed over the next three years 
with target connection to Watercare 
supply in 2013 

The design was completed and handed over 
to Watercare. 

Wellsford future water supply - Council 
will investigate the options of a bore water 
supply or upgrading the existing system 
within the next three years  

Following an aquifer capacity study at the 
preferred drilling site, and acceptance of the 
study confirmed by ARC, an investigation 
drilling contract has been let. 

Reticulation upgrades - Upgrades will be 
undertaken where necessary to meet 
future demands. Estimated ten year costs 
$13.3 million 

Upgrades as identified in the LTCCP were 
carried out as planned along with reviews 
based on improved information available to 
council. 

Demand management - Council is 
undertaking several measures to manage 
future demand for water, which will 
reduce the need for water extraction and 
reduce the cost of expensive 
infrastructure provision. System losses 
will be lessened by reducing water 
pressure where possible, detecting leaks 
in the pipelines, and by quickly repairing 
water main breaks. Water conservation is 
the other Council target area to assist the 
community in saving water 

Demand management was carried out very 
effectively in four areas: 
 
1. pressure management, 
2. speed in responding to leaks, 
3. leak detection programme and 
4. customer advisory service on water 

conservation. 
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Public Health Risk Management Plans 
(PHRMPs) - develop PHRMPs for 
Snells/Algies and the Hibiscus Coast in 
the first two years of this Plan. PHRMPs 
are also being developed currently for all 
the small water supplies to public utilities 
outside the public water supply areas 

PHRMPs for HBC, Warkworth, 
Snells/Algies, Wellsford, Helensville, and 
Muriwai were completed and submitted to 
the District Health Board. PHRMPs for all 
the small water supplies were completed 
previously. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of Service 
 
We will provide safe, potable water 
 
Excellent performance gradings have been achieved and maintained. 
 

Measure 
16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Ministry of Health (MoH) 
grading target for rural and 
township water supply areas 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 60%) 

100% Bb grading 
achieved 

Achieved 100%* (better than 
target): 
Snells/Algies – Aa 
Warkworth – Ab 
Wellsford – Ab 
Helensville/Parakai – Ab 
Muriwai - Aa 
*Results are for the period 1 
January to 30 September 2010 

Ministry of Health (MoH) 
grading target for Hibiscus 
Coast water supply 
(Baseline 2007/2008: Ab) 

Ab grading achieved 

Achieved Aa*(better than 
target) 
 
*Results are for the period 1 
January to 30 September 2010 
 
 

 
Level of service 
 
We will aim to provide water that tastes, smells and looks good 
 
Improvements were made in areas of concern during the early part of the year. Monitoring 
continues to enable a quick reaction should any issues arise.  
 

Measure 
Target  Result for final report (1 July 

2009 to 31 October 2010) 

Number of water quality 
complaints (taste, odour, 
appearance) per 1,000 
properties 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 3.7) 

 
LTCCP 2009/10: Less 
than 5 complaints 
annually 

 
5 complaints received per 
1,000 connected properties. 
(Not achieved)* This result is 
for the period 1 July 2009 to 30 
June 2010. 
1 complaint received per 1,000 
connected properties for the 
period 1July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 
 
(Also 5 in 2008/09) 

Level of service 
 
We will respond quickly to service failures 
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Maintenance response times were within contract targets. No customer issues were raised. 
 

Measure 
16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Water supply service 
interruptions responded to 
within 2 hours 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 92%) 

 
At least 95% of the time 

 
Achieved 99.42% 
(98.7% in 2008/09) 

Service restoration within 
contract times 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 92%) 

 
At least 95% of the time 

 
Achieved 99.4% 
(97.8% in 2008/09) 
 

Level of Service 
 
We will provide a good service to customers 
 
Excellent customer service continues to be provided by responding to customer complaints 
and service disruptions within target response times, and by carrying out investigations and 
repairs to resume services within acceptable target delivery times. 
 

Measure 
16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Customer satisfaction with 
water supply service 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 76%4) 

 
At least 70% satisfaction 
achieved 

 
60.3% (Not achieved) 
 
Source: 2010 Annual 
Residents Survey. 
 
(62.2% in 2008/09) 

Level of service 
 
We will manage water as a precious resource 
 
Water resource management has been done through the water take consenting process and 
water demand management plans. Demand management includes both system loss 
management and customer demand management initiatives 
 

Reduce system losses 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 15%) 

System losses will be less 
than 14% 

17.3%* (Not achieved) 
(16% in 2008/09) 
 
*Result was for the period 1 
July 2009 to 30 June 2010. 
 
Data for the period 1 July 2010 
to 31 October 2010 is not 
available as all the data 
required to calculate the losses 
were not recorded during this 
period. 
 
There was a substantial 
increase in the frequency of 
pipe breaks possibly due to 
ground shrinkage as a result of 

                                                 
4 A different methodology was used for the 2007/08 Annual Residents Survey therefore 
2009/10 results cannot be compared directly. 
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the recent dry spell resulting in 
increased water losses. 
 
Continued pressure 
management with active 
leakage control should improve 
future performance. 

Net consumption (litres per 
head per day) 
(Baseline 2007/2008:180) 

Not more than 178 litres 
per head per day water 
consumption is achieved 

Achieved 162 litres per head 
per day water consumption. 

 
Water Treatment and distribution explained 

Distribution Zone: This is all or part of the town or community that receives similar quality 
water from its taps. If different parts of town have different water sources or conditions, then 
the community will be divided into two or more zones. The emphasis is "each zone has similar 
quality water throughout" and therefore can be graded. 

Treatment Plant: A zone receives water from one or more treatment plants, which in turn 
receive water from one or more water sources (rivers, lakes, groundwater, etc.) If there is no 
physical treatment, for example with some groundwaters, a nominal treatment plant is still 
defined so this and other details can be recorded against its name. 

The Public Health Grading 

The grading rationale and process is explained more fully on the Public Health Grading of 
Supplies page, but the meaning of the actual grades is summarised here. 

Distribution Zone Grades 

Zone grading (a1 to e) is based upon the microbiological and chemical quality of the water, 
along with the condition of the reticulation system and the quality of its care, etc. A zone 
grading should always be considered with the accompanying plant and source grading. 
 

a1  Completely satisfactory, negligible level of risk, demonstrably high quality 

a Completely satisfactory, extremely low level of risk 

b Satisfactory, very low level of risk 

c Marginally satisfactory, moderately low level of risk. 

d Unsatisfactory level of risk 

e Unacceptable level of risk 

u Not yet graded. (Not yet required if less than 500 people) 
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Source and Plant Grading 

Plant and source grading is based primarily on the likely health risks to the community arising 
from bacteria, protozoa (Giardia and Cryptosporidium) and chemical substances in the source 
water, and how effectively the treatment plant can act as a barrier to such contaminants 
passing through to the reticulation. 

Possible gradings are A1 (best), then A to E. As well as appearing against each plant, each 
zone inherits the plant grading from the worst plant providing it with water. 
 

A1  Completely satisfactory, negligible level of risk, demonstrably high quality 

A Completely satisfactory, extremely low level of risk 

B Satisfactory, very low level of risk when the water leaves the treatment plant. 

C 
Marginally satisfactory, low level of microbiological risk when the water 
leaves the treatment plant, but may not be satisfactory chemically. 

D Unsatisfactory level of risk 

E Unacceptable level of risk 

u Ungraded 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
The negative effects of water supply are predominantly around the need to dam water 
sources and inundate land to create reservoirs. This can also include reducing natural flows 
of waterways as water is extracted for human use. However, overall this activity contributes to 
economic, social and environment wellbeing of the district. 
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Activity: Wastewater 
 
The council ensures that all sanitary wastewater generated in the district is collected and 
disposed of in an efficient and sustainable manner either by public wastewater systems or 
through the consent processes for private systems, e.g., septic tanks. 
 
The council manages public wastewater systems on the Hibiscus Coast, at Waiwera, 
Warkworth, Wellsford, Snells Beach/Algies Bay, Matakana, Omaha, Helensville and parts of 
Waimauku and Huapai. The operation and maintenance of public wastewater systems is 
undertaken under a partnership with Rodney Water Ltd. 
 
Why the council did it  
 
Public wastewater collection network (pipes) and treatment plants are provided when there is 
sufficient population density to make it economic to do so, or when local land types are 
unsuitable for septic tanks and where residents are willing to meet the cost of reticulation and 
treatment.  
 
Where it is not economic to provide reticulation and treatment, the council regulates property 
size and the installation of on-site treatments, usually septic tanks. 
 
The reasons for providing public wastewater systems or regulating private systems are the 
same. That is, to ensure that human and commercial wastewater do not adversely affect 
public health and also does not pollute the environment to levels considered unacceptable.  
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement 

Kumeu / Huapai / Waimauku / Riverhead 
future wastewater scheme - connect this area 
to the Watercare regional wastewater 
collection system which sends the 
wastewater to Mangere for treatment. Locally, 
a Pressure Wastewater Collection system 
(PWC) will be adopted where possible, to 
reduce stormwater ingress into the system 
thereby reducing infrastructure cost 
implications. The estimated cost is $14.5 
million 
 

Trunk and branch sewers and the 
Riverhead pump station to be 
constructed in 2010/11. Local reticulation 
construction is planned from July-
November 2011. 

Hibiscus Coast wastewater network upgrade - 
completion of the duplication of the trunk 
main from Northhaven Hospital area to D’Oyly 
Drive ($7 million), emergency storage 
facilities ($6.3 million), a pipeline from Orewa 
terminal pump station to Bay Street pump 
station ($6.1 million), Lakeside Drive pump 
station and rising main upgrade ($2 million), 
and proposed new works at Orewa West, 
Silverdale North and South ($5 million) 

The draft HBC Wastewater Master Plan 
was delivered in June 2010. The 
Northhaven to D'Oyly pipeline 
construction commenced in August 2010. 
The Orewa pump station additional 
storage and trunk sewer to Orewa West 
and Silverdale North is being designed. 
Pump station upgrades are also planned. 

Matakana - Council will install a $1.6 million 
wastewater collection pipeline and pump 
station to send the Matakana wastewater to 
the Omaha wastewater treatment plant at 
Jones Road. Grinder pumps will be installed 
to retrofit the septic tanks at each existing 
property who will then own their grinder 
pump that connects to the pressure 
wastewater connection 

The Matakana to Omaha pipeline is 
planned for construction from January to 
June 2011. Retrofit works at Matakana 
are planned for 2011/12. 

Helensville wastewater upgrades - Council 
proposes $4.2 million in the next three years 
to upgrade the treatment plant to enable the 

Desludging work commenced in 
September/October 2010 and is now 
being progressed by Watercare.  
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discharge consent to be renewed Auckland Council (formerly ARC) is 
processing the treatment plant consent 
applications and is in dialogue with 
Watercare in this regard. 

Muriwai - progress a solution to Muriwai 
wastewater issues 

This project is on hold awaiting decisions 
by Watercare. Catchment monitoring and 
review of the proposed future public 
wastewater reticulation have been 
carried out. 

Waiwera outfall - replace the outfall which is 
not in an acceptable condition 

This is a part of Waiwera treatment plant 
upgrade scheduled for 2012/13. 

 
 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of Service 
 
We will provide a good service to customers 
 
Excellent service is provided to properties connected to public wastewater services. 
 

Measure 
16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Customer satisfaction with 
wastewater service 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 74%5) 

At least 75% satisfaction 
achieved 

57% (Not achieved) 
 
Source: 2010 Annual 
Residents Survey. 
 
The introduction of 
volumetric charging for 
wastewater may well have 
had a negative effect on 
customer satisfaction with 
wastewater services. 
 
(56.6% 2009) 

Customer satisfaction that smells 
and odours are kept to a 
minimum 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 72%) 

At least 70% satisfaction 
achieved 

This question was not 
included in this year’s 
annual residents survey. 
However, due to odour 
complaints in HBC and 
Snells/Algies, RDC has 
carried out operational and 
rehabilitative works to 
minimise odour emissions. 

                                                 
5 A different methodology was used for the 2007/08 Annual Residents Survey therefore 
2009/10 results cannot be compared directly. 
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Level of Service 
 
We will manage the impact of wastewater effluent on the environment 
 
All consent renewal applications for treatment plants have been made including air discharge 
consents. Monitoring is carried out to manage any impacts. Network discharge consent s92 
requests have been sent and accepted by ARC. 
 

Measure 
16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Achieve an ARC 2A grading for 
waste water treatment plants 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 75%) 

At least 82% of plants 
achieve grading 

60%* or 6 out of 10 
treatment plants. (Not 
achieved). 
 
*Results are for the period 
1 April 2009 to 31 March 
2010. 
 
Helensville, Wellsford and 
Matakana have been given 
a grade 3 rating due to 
ongoing non compliance.  
Warkworth has been 
graded as 2B as the peak 
flow is not yet fully 
operational.  This is being 
resolved through future 
upgrades.  

Level of Service 
 
We will minimise wastewater spills from the network 
 
Sewer rehabilitation works are in progress to address wet weather overflows in the network. 
HBC Modelling will help ascertain containment standards. Network upgrade works are planned 
to minimise spills. 
 

Measure 
Target  16 month result for final 

report (1 July 2009 to 31 
October 2010) 

Number of sewer breaks and 
chokes per 100km  
(Baseline 2007/2008: 35) 

LTCCP 2009/10: Less than 
50* breaks or chokes per 
100km 
 
*measured annually 

Achieved. 45 breaks or 
chokes per 100km for 
period 1 July 2009 to 30 
June 2010. 
13 breaks or chokes per 
100km for 1July 2010 to 31 
October 2010. 
 
(37 in 2008/09) 
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Level of Service 
 
We will respond quickly to service failures 
 
Maintenance response times have been well within target contract times. 
 

Measure 
16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
We will respond to blockages 
/overflows notifications 
(contractor team on site) within 
specified contract times 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 96%) 

At least 95% of the time 

Achieved 98% average for 
contractor team on site 
within specified contract 
times.  
 

Service restoration within 
contract times 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 98%) 

At least 95% of the time 

Achieved 99. % average for 
service restoration within 
contract times. 
 

 
Potential for negative effects 
This activity is designed to reduce the negative effects of people living in high density 
situations (towns and cities) and also low density rural living. The provision of reticulated 
treatment and disposal systems allow people to live in higher densities, raising the risk of 
large harmful discharges to the local environment. Systems are engineered, maintained and 
renewed, via rigorous asset management planning, to reduce risk (to environmental 
wellbeing) to acceptable levels. Discharge specifications for treated effluent are independently 
set and monitored by the Auckland Regional Council. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant gradings achieved 
 

Wastewater 
Treatment Plant 

Overall Compliance 
Rating for the WWTP 

Comments on Overall Plant Performance 
Rating 

Army Bay Category 1 Minor monitoring/reporting omissions were 
identified. 

Denehurst Category 2A Exceedences of flows limits. 
Huapai Category 2A Exceedences of discharge standards. 

Matakana Category 3 Exceedences of discharge standards. 
Omaha Category 1 Minor monitoring omission identified. 

Snells-Algies Category 2A Exceedence of discharge standards. 
Helensville Category 3 Exceedence of low limits and discharge 

standards. 
Waiwera Category 2A Exceedence of flow limits during ‘no discharge’ 

period 
Warkworth Category 2B Peak flow plant is not yet fully operational. 

Discharge limits met. 
Wellsford Category 3 Exceedence of flow limits and discharge 

standards. 
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Wastewater Treatment Plant gradings explained 
 

N1 The resource consent condition was not assessed or inspected. 
 

NE 
The resource consent condition has not been exercised. The condition may 
refer to a future date or the activity the condition refers has yet to be undertaken 
. 

 
Category 1 

The resource condition has been complied with. Where a condition refers to a 
provision in a Management Plan, then the Plan has been referred to in 
assessing consent compliance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Category 2 

The resource consent condition has not been complied with. ARC officers have 
assessed the non-compliance as technical in nature or having no more that 
minor actual or potential adverse effect. 
 
Category 2 non-compliance is further divided into the following categories: 
 
2A – self monitoring or one-off data is incomplete, outstanding or not compliant. 
 
2B – the item has not been constructed, maintained or operated as required by 
the resource consent condition or relevant management plan. 
 
2C – combination of 2A and 2B. 

 
 

Category 3 
 
 

The resource consent condition has not been complied with. ARC officers have 
assessed the non-compliance as either resulting in an adverse effect on the 
environment or having the potential to result in an adverse effect on the 
environment. Alternatively since the last audit there is evidence of repeat 
Category 2 non-compliance where ARC officers have previously requested the 
matter be addressed. 

 
Category 4 

The resource condition has not been complied with. ARC officers have 
assessed the non-compliance as resulting in significant adverse effects on the 
environment or having the potential to result in significant adverse effects on the 
environment. 
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Capital expenditure Water Services 

ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Water Supply

Assets condition assessment water supply 0 4  

Backflow Prevention 1 0  

Contract C0821 AM & P Water Supply share 75 160  

Districtwide Data Project 19 0  

HBC water supply pump stations planned renewals 12 34  
HBC water supply pump stations reactive renewals 22 16  

HBC water supply reservoirs planned renewals 33 23  

HBC water supply reservoirs reactive renewals 4 16  

HBC water supply reticulation planned renewals 487 400  

HBC water supply reticulation reactive renewals 194 204  

Helensville Chemical Building 9 9  

Helensville Dams Upgrade 11 18  

Helensville water supply future supply - project west 82 73  

Helensville water supply headworks planned renewals 70 19  

Helensville water supply headworks reactive renewals 51 16  

Helensville water supply reticulation planned renewals 321 191  

Helensville water supply reticulation reactive renewals 9 16  

Helensville water supply reticulation upgrades / extensions 408 260  

Helensville water supply treatment plants planned renewals 162 38  

Helensville water supply treatment plants reactive renewals 5 31  

Helensville water supply upgrade Mangakura Dams 173 100  

Helensville water supply upgrade Mangakura pipe bridges 9 103  

Helensville water supply upgrade Sandhills weir & intake 58 100  

Helensville Water Treatment Plant Resource Consents 81 30  

Kumeu / Huapai / Riverhead water supply scheme 732 1,800  

Meters & connections renewal water supply 101 142  

Muriwai water supply reservoirs planned renewals 0 10  

Muriwai water supply reticulation planned renewals 116 27  
Muriwai water supply reticulation reactive renewals 1 6  

Muriwai water supply treatment plants planned renewals 3 34  

Muriwai water supply treatment plants reactive renewals 4 13  

New connections self funded water supply 228 484  i

New connections water supply 44 120  

Planned water meter renewals 101 134  

Pressure & system loss management water supply 110 0  

Pressure & system soss management water supply 325 436  

Project North (Wk portion) - Warkworth/Snells Future Supp 98 0  

Public Health Risk management Plans 3 0  

Reticulation extensions water supply 728 911  

Silverdale North to Maire Road reservoir J route 93 167  i

Snells Algies W ater Treatment Plant Resource Consent 27 0  

Snells/Algies water supply reservoirs planned renewals 3 15  

Snells/Algies water supply reservoirs reactive renewals 1 5  

Snells/Algies water supply reticulation planned renewals 14 23  

Snells/Algies water supply reticulation reactive renewals 30 35  

Snells/Algies water supply reticulation upgrades/extensions 15 0  

Snells/Algies water supply treatment plants planned renewals 16 15  

Snells/Algies water supply treatment plants reactive renewal 16 13  

Warkworth  Meters & Connections 0 0  

Warkworth Sanderson Road bore 46 408  

Warkworth water supply headworks planned renewals 98 10  
Warkworth water supply reticulation planned renewals 90 191  

Warkworth water supply reticulation reactive renewals 25 28  

Warkworth water supply reticulation upgrades / extensions 540 793   
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ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Warkworth water supply treatment plants planned renewals 37 67  

Warkworth water supply treatment plants reactive renewals 67 11  

Warkworth Water Treatment Plant Resource Consent 29 0  

Warkworth Water Treatment Plant Upgrade 15 0  

Water main loop Warkworth 1,287 375  i

Water Supply Network Mangement 77 89  

Wellsford  Water Treatment Plant Resource Consents 39 28  

Wellsford Bulk Meters 0 0  

Wellsford future water supply 309 193  

Wellsford water supply headworks planned renewals 75 10  

Wellsford water supply reticulation planned renewals 29 134  
Wellsford water supply reticulation reactive renewals 40 39  

Wellsford water supply reticulation upgrades / extensions 74 78  

Wellsford water supply treatment plants planned renewals 60 29  

Wellsford water supply treatment plants reactive renewals 55 24  
Wellsford Water Treatment Plant Upgrade 1 1  

Vested Assets 1,854 197

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 9,948 8,952

Wastewater

Army Bay grit handling facility 0 150  

Army Bay sludge management consent/land purchase 1 0  

Army Bay wastewater treatment plant planned renewals / upgra 1,134 1,002  

Army Bay wastewater treatment plant reactive renewals 107 67  

Army Bay wastewater treatment plant upgrade 800 1,363  

Army Bay wastewater treatment plant water supply 0 40  

Asset management CCTV & manhole surveys 23 81  

Asset management outfall dive inspections 40 40  

Asset management pipe bridge inspections 0 10  

Asset management pipe bridge renewal work 26 355  

Asset management plan 76 19  

Asset management telemetry 297 38  
Contract C0821 AM & P Wastewater share 137 120  

Denehurst wastewater treatment plant reactive renewals 3 3  

Helensville pumping station  reactive renewals 72 40  

Helensville Pumping Station Planned Renewals 17 0  

Helensville South & Parakai pressurised collection trunk 21 27  

Helensville wastewater outfall reactive renewals 1 7  

Helensville wastewater reticulation reactive renewals 10 40  

Helensville Wastewater Strategic Review 37 0  

Helensville wastewater treatment plant reactive renewals 3 13  

Helensville Wastewater Treatment Plant Resource Consents 3 0  

Helensville wastewater treatment plant upgrade 585 460  

Hobbs Bay Pump Station Refurbishment 16 350  

Huapai Treatment Plant Planned Renewals 12 0  

Huapai wastewater pumping station reactive renewals 8 16  

Huapai wastewater reticulation / grinders renewals 2,205 1,600  

Huapai wastewater reticulation reactive renewals 3 16  

Huapai wastewater treatment plant decommissioning 141 0  

Huapai wastewater treatment plant reactive renewals 4 7  

Iinfiltration inflow investigations 115 127  i

Infiltration inflow strategy 0 39  
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ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Infiltration inflow strategy implementation 397 877  

Inflow modelling measuring devices 26 67  

Jackson Crescent wastewater reticulation 1 46  

Jackson Crescent Wastewater Upgrade 19 0  

Kumeu / Huapai local pressure wastewater reticulation 660 600  

Kumeu / Huapai wastewater pump station 262 500  

Kumeu / Huapai wastewater reticulation 370 140  

Kumeu main trunk system 115 2,800  

Martins Bay wastewater pump station storage 106 20  

Matakana pumping station reactive renewals 21 20  

Matakana wastewater reticulation reactive renewals 10 36  
Matakana wastewater reticulation retrofit 134 0  

Matakana wastewater treatment plant decommissioning 118 5  

Matakana wastewater treatment plant reactive renewals 3 7  

Matakana Wastewater Treatment Plant Resource Consents 4 0  
McKinney Valley/Woodcocks LPS trunk 124 0  

Muriwai W astewater TP Replacement 32 0  

Odour control 300 205  

Omaha wastewater pumping station  reactive renewals 1 40  

Omaha wastewater reticulation reactive renewals 10 40  

Omaha wastewater treatment irrigation reactive renewals 33 13  

Omaha wastewater treatment plant planned renewals 79 133  

Omaha wastewater treatment plant reactive renewals 29 27  

Omaha wastewater treatment plant upgrade 411 120  

Orewa/Hatfields pump station storage upgrade 168 60  

Outfall cathodic protection reactive renewal 162 107  

Point Wells / Matakana Wastewater Scheme 12 0  

Point Wells wastewater reticulation reactive renewals 1 13  

Pumping station  reactive renewals wastewater 171 202  

Pumping station planned renewals wastewater 312 447  

Red Beach to Poplar Road Stanmore Bay pipeline wastewater 631 750  

Reticulation planned renewals / upgrades wastewater 797 466  

Reticulation reactive renewals wastewater 161 188  

Septage land purchase/implmnt 8 0  
Silverdale, Orewa and Whangaparaoa wastewater reticulation u 2,286 2,600  

Snells Outfall Planned Renewals 5 87  i

Snells/Algies effluent disposal anode renewals 41 63  

Snells/Algies effluent disposal reactive renewals 18 40  

Snells/Algies wastewater pumping station  reactive renewals 44 40  

Snells/Algies wastewater reticulation planned renewals 3 40  

Snells/Algies wastewater reticulation reactive renewals 26 24  

Snells/Algies wastewater strategic review / investigation 0 5  

Snells/Algies wastewater treatment plant planned renewals 101 99  

Snells/Algies wastewater treatment plant reactive renewals 26 40  

Snells/Algies wastewater treatment plant upgrade 135 286  

Waiwera wastewater planned renewals 79 55  

Waiwera wastewater pumping station  reactive renewals 38 34  

Waiwera wastewater reticulation reactive renewals 12 32  

Waiwera wastewater treatment plant reactive renewals 2 32  

Waiwera wastewater treatment plant upgrade 18 0  

Warkworth Pulham Rd Gravity W astewater Main Upgrade 34 0  

Warkworth pumping station  reactive renewals 12 40  

Warkworth wastewater reticulation extension 1,176 976  

Warkworth wastewater reticulation planned renewals / upgrade 144 606  
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ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Warkworth wastewater reticulation reactive renewals 16 40  

Warkworth wastewater treatment plant planned renewals 174 61  
Warkworth wastewater treatment plant reactive renewals 206 34  

Warkworth Wastewater Treatment Plant Resource Consents 9 0  

Warkworth wastewater treatment plant resource consents 17 0  

Warkworth wastewater treatment plant upgrade 567 430  i
Warkworth/McKinney Valley Strategic Review 5 0  

Wastewater biosolids management strategy 0 17  

Wastewater data management project 67 42  

Wastewater master plan 9 26  

Wastewater modelling 46 52  

Wastewater network discharge consents 190 19  i

Wastewater Network Mangement 74 38  

Wastewater treatment plant health & safety 272 203  

Wastewater treatment plant reactive renewals 17 32  
Wellsford wastewater pump station storage upgrade 0 5  

Wellsford wastewater pumping station reactive renewals 3 40  

Wellsford wastewater reticulation reactive renewals 2 40  

Wellsford wastewater reticulation Workers Road upgrade 0 10  

Wellsford wastewater treatment plant planned renewals 56 260  

Wellsford wastewater treatment plant reactive renewals 3 27  

Wellsford wastewater treatment plant upgrade Phase 2 44 0  

Vested Assets 1,310 449

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 18,869 20,884  
 
 i – budget carried forward 
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GROUP OF ACTIVITIES: COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Activities in this group: 
 
Public open space 
Libraries 
Leisure centre 
Holiday parks 
Community assets 
 
Overview 
 
The success of a community not only lies in having physical infrastructure such as water, 
sewerage and roads, it is also highly reliant on community infrastructure such as open space, 
parks, libraries, swimming pools and other community facilities. These services and facilities 
make a significant contribution to the quality of life of Rodney’s people. They allow for passive 
and active recreation, further learning, and the social and cultural needs of communities. 
 
Contribution to community outcomes 
 

Outcome Outcome statement Contribution to 
outcomes made by this 

group of activities 
Prosperous 
 

We will have a growing and resilient economy 
based on a wide variety of businesses that fit 
our character 

Vibrant 
 

We will have a range of recreational and 
cultural facilities and events across the district 
and we will encourage creativity and diversity 

Distinctive We will maintain and enhance the character 
of our townships and rural areas through 
excellent urban and rural planning and the 
intelligent management of growth 

Connected 
 

We will have the infrastructure and services 
needed for our residents, business and 
visitors 

Safe and 
healthy 
 

We will continue to have a sense of 
community and we will provide for the 
emotional and physical well-being of our 
people 

Clean and 
green 

We will continue to value, protect and enjoy 
the natural environment 

Community services 
provide much of the 
community structure such 
as parks, libraries, 
swimming pools, public 
space in urban areas, 
holiday parks, etc.  
Community services 
support passive and active 
recreation, lifelong 
learning, and social and 
cultural opportunities for 
residents, businesses and 
visitors 
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Financial results 
 
Community Services

Actual Plan Actual 
12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 

Public Open Space 10,088 15,640 16,515
Libraries 5,684 7,799 8,090
Leisure Centres 4,110 5,104 5,361
Holiday Parks 2,039 2,678 2,844
Community Assets 3,445 5,296 5

$000 

,272

Total Operating Expenditure 25,366 36,517 38,082

Operating Revenue:
Revenue & user charges 5,630 7,536 7,885
Grants and subsidies 3 7 16
Rental Income 174 172 242
Interest Income 1,313 0 31
Cash contributions 2,911 1,451 2,367
Vested asset contributions 278 827 3,389
Targeted rates 18,881 1,945 1,865
Gain/(Loss) on sale 23 0 0
General rates 0 26,587 27,996
Other Income 11 0 4
Gain (Loss) on sale of assets 0 50 27

Total Operating Revenue 29,224 38,575 43,822

TOTAL OPERATING SURPLUS ( DEFICIT) 3,858 2,059 5,740
Capital Expenditure

New capital works 10,868 11,403 17,325
Renewal capital works 2,468 5,470 4,907

Total Capital Expenditure 13,337 16,873 22,232

Other Funding Requirements
Loan repayments 721 5,699 0
Transfers to general & restricted reserves 4,093 278 1,013

Total Funding Requirement 18,151 22,850 23,245

Funds To Be Provided From:
Operating surplus 3,858 2,059 5,740
Asset sales 0 0 0
Loans raised 7,873 15,652 0
Transfers from general & restricted reserves 3,370 610 8,389
Non cash expenses 2,341 4,524 4,743

Total Funds Provided 17,442 22,845 18,872

FUNDING SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT) (709) (5) (4,373)
 
New capital works were higher than budget this arose as the value of vested assets is 
included as new capital works and we received $2.5 million more vested assets than we 
budgeted. In addition we completed some projects which were carried forward from the 
previous financial year. 
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Activity: Public open space 
 
The council is responsible for planning for the open space needs of Rodney’s residents and 
then acquiring, developing and maintaining parks and reserves and the facilities on them. 
Public open space includes neighbourhood parks, water access reserves (including coastal 
and river walkways), conservation (habitat protection) reserves, esplanade reserves (through 
coastal subdivision), and reserves for halls and sports parks. Public open space also includes 
roads, particularly those functioning as ‘mainstreets’ in urban areas. 
 
The development and maintenance of parks, reserves and their facilities includes establishing 
and maintaining turf (parks, streetscapes and sports fields) gardens, playgrounds, furniture, 
coastal structures (wharves, ramps and sea walls), public toilets, carparks and walkways. 
 
Why the council did it  
 
Public open space makes a significant contribution to the quality of Rodney’s living 
environments. It allows for both active and passive recreation, provides access to the 
coastline and beaches, protects natural landscapes, flora and fauna, all of which are identified 
in Vision Rodney as contributing to Rodney’s attractiveness and liveability. Parks, reserves 
and other open spaces also influence the nature and quality of Rodney’s built environment. 
The arrangement of reserves and other areas of open space such as streets are important in 
defining the liveability of urban centres, particularly as they intensify. 
 
Open space can also offer protection of natural features, provide overland flow paths, flood 
storage and natural stormwater attenuation. 
 
The council is a primary provider of Rodney’s public open space, thereby influencing the 
extent of community access to the coast and beaches and the protection of natural features, 
the provision of land and facilities for recreation and the level of amenity in Rodney’s towns 
and villages. Private providers also play a role in contributing to the open space in Rodney 
(e.g., golf courses and forests such as Woodhill Forest). However, this land does not have the 
same guarantees of access for the public. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievements 

Focus on developing open space and 
reserve management strategies that 
identify locations where more and better 
open space is needed and areas where 
there are adequate open space provisions 

Adopted standards for the supply of public 
open space were defined through the Open 
Space Strategy (December 2009). A review 
of feasibilities and standards of active sports 
facilities within the Hibiscus Coast was 
completed and was adopted by Council 22 
September 2010.   

Asset management plan improvements 
will also be undertaken to provide for 
sustainable open space and recreation 
strategies 

Next year’s asset improvement work was 
scoped with the focus on coastal assets. 
The 10 year master project list is being 
updated to properly inform the new 
Auckland Council. 

Complete a Public Open Space Strategy 
early in the period of the LTCCP and work 
to implement that over time 

The HBC Active Recreation Plan and Open 
Space Guidelines are currently under 
preparation in line with the council resolution 
adopting the public Open Space Strategy. 
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How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will develop and implement appropriate policies and strategies to cater for future growth 
and community needs  
 
The Open Space Strategy was adopted 3 December 2009.  No public consultation was 
undertaken as this will occur as part of the geographically based action plans to implement 
the strategy. 
 
Two plans were worked on during 2009/10 - the HBC Active Recreation Plan and Open 
Space Guidelines.  The Open Space Guidelines will now be finalised by the new Auckland 
Council. 
 

Measure 
16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Development and 
implementation of public 
open space, sport and 
coastal facility related 
policies and strategies 

Implementation of Public 
Open Space strategy to 
commence 

The Open Space Strategy 
was adopted 3 December 
2009. In line with this, the 
HBC Active Recreation Plan 
was adopted 22 September 
2010 and Open Space 
Guidelines are near 
completion.   
 
These will facilitate the 
integration of the open 
space of Rodney into the 
greater Auckland Council. 
 

Level of Service 
 
We will provide sufficient parks and coastal facilities to meet community demand in the 
future 
 
Adopted standards for the supply of public open space have now been defined through the 
Open Space Strategy.  A review of feasibilities and standards of active sports facilities within 
the Hibiscus Coast is currently being finalised. 
 

Measure 
16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

Total hectares of parkland 
per 1,000 residents 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 6.8) 

6.8ha parkland per 1,000 
residents 

Achieved 15.3ha* 
 
*Measured annually. 
 
(16.7ha in 2008/09) 
Decrease is due to 
population increase, and re-
categorisation of reserve 
land. 

Total hectares of sports 
fields per 1,000 residents 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 0.4) 

0.4ha of sportsfields per 
1,000 residents 

Achieved 0.84ha* 
 
*Measured annually. 
 
(0.86ha in 2008/09) 
Decrease is due to 
population increase and not 
a decrease in sportsfields. 
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Public satisfaction with parks 
and reserves 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 
79.3%6) 

Levels of public satisfaction 
with parks and reserves is 
maintained or improved at 
2007/08 baseline 

70.6% (Not achieved) 
 
Source: 2010 Annual 
Residents Survey  
(69.7% 2009) 

Number of public toilets per 
1,000 residents 
(Baseline 2007/2008: one) 

Maintain existing number of 
toilets at 2007/08 level 

Achieved. 1 per 1,000 
residents* 
 
*Measured annually 
 
(1 per 1,000 in 2008/09) 

Public satisfaction with 
conveniences 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 68%7) 

Levels of public satisfaction 
with conveniences is 
maintained or improved at 
2007/08 baseline 

64.7% (Not achieved) 
 
Source: 2010 e-Panel 
Survey ran from 27 
November 2009 to 5 
January 2010. 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
There are no significant negative impacts arising from this activity and there are significant 
benefits to the social and environmental wellbeing of the district. 

                                                 
6 A different methodology was used for the 2007/08 Annual Residents Survey therefore 
2009/10 results cannot be compared directly. 
7 As Note 3. 
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Activity: Libraries 
 
The council operates seven libraries – at Helensville, Kumeu, Mahurangi East, Orewa, 
Warkworth, Wellsford and Whangaparaoa. The council also supports volunteer-run libraries at 
Kaipara Flats, Point Wells, Leigh and Tapora. Two libraries (Whangaparaoa and Helensville) 
also deliver council information and services. 
 
Why the council did it 
 
Libraries are provided in response to customer demand and to provide opportunities for 
lifelong learning, recreation, support for formal education programmes and access to 
information technology. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievements 

Maintain the current assets All assets were maintained. 
Increase the accessibility of library services 
through the Internet 

Freely available web-based applications 
(Facebook, Flickr, Twitter, Google 
Calendar and Blogger) and RDC library 
website were used to promote services 
and programmes, and to build 
relationships with customers online. 
Visitor numbers have increased. 
Friends/fans/followers on web-based 
applications have also increased. 

Continue improving access to local history. Progress was made at a steady pace 
with the storage and organisation phase 
of the photo collection.  
 
Organising and numbering of negatives 
and photos continued with about 10,000 
photos and negatives sorted and 
numbered (by end September 2010).. A 
revised estimate of approximately 40,000 
photos to be organised is considerably 
higher than the original estimate of 
16,000. 

Continue collaborative relationships with 
libraries in the greater Auckland region 

Excellent outcomes achieved with 
eLGAR Best Customer Experience 
implementation. The ‘My Card’ project 
implementation is well underway with 
resources being provided from RDC 
libraries to support the project.  This will 
provide region wide access to library 
customers under the new Auckland 
Council. 

The digitisation of the Rodney Times 
newspaper and its inclusion in national 
databases 

Negotiations have been successful for 
the digitisation of several historic Rodney 
papers to be included in the 'Papers 
Past' national database. Digitisation has 
yet to start, however the Rodney Times 
has been allocated a timeslot and this is 
expected to be loaded early 2011. 

Further development of the Rodney Libraries 
website (including web 2.0 and social 
technologies) 

An agreement has been reached to 
include the Rodney Libraries website 
development within the interim ‘My Card’ 
project website giving content and 
accessibility from 1 November  2010. 
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Development of the local history online 
image collection based on images donated 
by the Nor-West News 

Phase One, consisting of organising and 
numbering the images and selecting a 
range for digitisation and indexing into 
Local History Online, is well under way 
with the organisation of 10,000 images 
by end September 2010.. 

 
 How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will provide access to library and information services 
 
Access (both walk-in and remote) and presentation has been maintained or improved in all 
libraries including the Warkworth and Orewa service areas. 
 

Measure 
16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Customer satisfaction with 
libraries  
(Baseline 2007/2008: 84%8) 

At least 85% customer 
satisfaction with libraries is 
achieved 

69.9%* (Not achieved) 
 
*Source: 2010 Annual Residents 
survey. 
(71.3% 2009) 

Level of service 
 
We will provide collections that meet national standards and benchmarks 
 
Not achieved. The budget allocation was not adequate to provide collections to meet national 
standards, however there was an increase in 2009, which it is anticipated, will help towards 
achieving this target within the next three years. 
 

Measure 
16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Total visits to library 
electronic database 
(New measure; baseline to 
be established) 

At least 35,000 visits to 
electronic databases 
provided by the library are 
recorded 

Achieved.  138,749 visits to the 
electronic database. 
 
 

Total items in collection 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 
236,000) 

Total collection size of 
246,700 items is achieved 

Not achieved.  
 
As at 31 October 2010 the total 
collection size was 240,126 
items. 

Collection size to meet 
district population needs 
(New measure; baseline to 
be established) 

2.3 items per head of 
district population is 
achieved 

Achieved.  2.44 items. 
 
 

                                                 
8 A different methodology was used for the 2007/08 Annual Residents Survey therefore 
2009/10 results cannot be compared directly. 
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Level of service 
 
We will develop local history services in line with best practice 
 
Improved service is now favourably comparable to other New Zealand library services. 
 

Measure 
16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Number of virtual visits to the 
local history online website 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 100) 

At least 100 virtual visits per 
annum to the local history 
online website 

Unable to define Rodney 
specific result. 
 
There were 122,963 visits to the 
entire ROWANS* Local History 
Online site however there is no 
way to separately identify visits 
to Rodney at this stage. 
*ROWANS is an acronym for 
Rodney, Waitakere and North 
Shore libraries. This was a 
collaborative local history 
indexing project which 
culminated in the production of 
Local History Online, a website 
that contains each of these 
library’s newspaper indexes, 
photographs, oral histories etc 
on the one site. 

Level of service 
 
We will provide facilities and digital space in line with national standards 
 
Digital facilities and spaces are improving with increased Web 2.00 applications. There will be 
an interim website developed for 1 November 2010 as part of the ‘My Card’ project. 
 

Total library buildings floor 
space in square metres per 
1,000 district population 
(National standard is 7003m2 

per 1,000 head of 
population) 

Total library building floor 
space of 3660m2  per 1,000 
district population is 
achieved 

3641m2* (Not achieved). 
 
*Measured annually. 
(Approximately 52% of national 
standard) 
It was considered unrealistic to 
be able to achieve the national 
standard for floorspace given 
our population and number of 
libraries; however the intention 
was to gradually increase 
floorspace over a 10-year period 
within approved funding levels. 
 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
There are no significant negative impacts arising from this activity which enhances the social, 
cultural and economic wellbeing of the district. 
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Activity: Leisure centre 
 
The council owns and manages the Hibiscus Coast Leisure Centre; a comprehensive indoor 
sport and recreation facility at Stanmore Bay. It provides a wide range of services and 
activities such as two swimming pools, a swim school, stadiums for basketball, gymnastics, 
indoor netball, soccer and other sports, a range of group fitness classes, circuit classes, 
individual fitness including contracted personal trainers and rehabilitation programmes, and a 
fitness gym, squash courts, circuit express and ‘cardio’ theatre. The leisure centre also leases 
space to an early learning centre, massage therapist, physiotherapist and a café. 
 
Why the council did it  
 
The purpose of the leisure centre is to positively influence customers and the people of 
Rodney in the area of health, leisure and recreation by delivering value and encouraging 
community involvement in the centre. The leisure centre’s vision is to encourage all members 
of our community to a better and healthier lifestyle. The centre is barrier free, making it 
accessible for people with disabilities. 
 
Having high quality public amenities enhances the quality of life for our community. The 
private sector provides very few swimming pools in New Zealand compared with the local 
government sector. This is because they are often not financially viable. The community, 
however, has an expectation that such facilities will be available for such activities as ‘learn to 
swim’, fitness and water activities. To balance meeting community expectations with the need 
to minimise the cost to the rate payer, facilities such as the leisure centre are built in areas of 
high population to ensure high use and reasonable cost recovery. 
 
To enhance cost recovery and increase use of aspects of the facility, such as changing 
rooms, the council also provides a gymnasium and indoor sports facilities within the leisure 
centre. 
 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will provide a programme of upgrading and replacement of existing facilities and 
equipment 
 
In January 2010 the centre completed a bleacher seating upgrade in the pool area. Due to 
transition to the new Auckland Council, larger projects in regards to facility up-grades have 
been placed on hold. 
 
Capital expenditure for the new financial year has been split to ensure the up-grading and 
replacement of equipment in order to maintain a quality level of service for our users. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Mystery Shopper ratings for the 
Leisure Centre 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 87%) 

At least 90% rating 
achieved 
 

Achieved 91%. 
 
Source: Mystery Shopping 
Survey (Linnie Osborne 
Marketing), August 2009, 
using five mystery shoppers 
each visiting the Leisure 
Centre seven times. 
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Level of service 
We will provide services and programmes in line with best practice standards 
 
The Leisure Centre provides a wide range of services and programmes in line with best 
practice, including; Group Fitness - Les Mills, Swim School - Swim NZ Standards, Fitness NZ 
Code of Ethics, AUT - Never2old, National & Regional Sporting Bodies e.g., Hibiscus Coast 
Netball Association, Playgym, and NZ Heart Foundation - Cardiac Club.  
 
During 2009/10 the reception team achieved a SFRITO Customer Service award and the 
fitness centre received a Fitness Foundation Diploma. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Sport and Fitness Recreation 
Industry Training Organisation 
accreditation (SFRITO) 

Annual accreditation 
achieved 

The Skills Active (formerly 
SFRITO) contract was 
replaced with annual 
registration as of March 
2009.  
 
Training agreements and 
training plans continue to be 
managed in collaboration 
with the Skills Active 
Relationship Manager on a 
quarterly basis. 
 

Level of service 
We will ensure effective and efficient management of Leisure Centre assets and services 
 
Whilst not quite achieving our target, and given the current economic climate, there has been a 
steady increase in membership and visitor numbers. We continue to engage with our members 
to ensure continuous improvement. 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Number of visitors to Leisure 
Centre (Baseline 2007/2008: 
255,197) 

470,000 visits achieved 430,247 visits*. (Not 
achieved). 
 
This result is for the period 1 
July 2009 to 31 October 
2010. 
 
(288,545 in 2008/09) 

Number of Leisure Centre 
members (Baseline 2007/2008: 
1,852) 

At least 2,300 members 2,179 members*. (Not 
achieved) 
 
*Measured annually. 
 
(1913 in 2008/09) 

Leisure Centre focus groups 
 

One focus group 
undertaken and results 
actioned 

Achieved.  A members’ focus 
group survey was 
undertaken via email in 
March 2010.  Nine members 
responded; with the results 
being communicated and 
actioned by staff in response 
to feedback received. 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
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This activity increases the social and cultural wellbeing of the community and there are no 
significant negative effects arising from it. 

Page 111 



Rodney District Council’s 16-month Report for the period 1July 2009 – 31 October 2010 

 

Activity: Holiday parks 
 
The council operates three holiday parks - at Orewa Beach, Martins Bay and Whangateau. 
The parks are run as businesses. They provide caravan and campervan sites and cabin 
accommodation. The council also operates a 14-site camping ground at Shelly Beach. 
Holiday parks can be considered as part of Rodney’s public open space network, and their 
future strategic development is considered in the council’s Public Open Space Strategy which 
is referred to in the public open space activity. 
 
Why the council did it  
 
Rodney District Council’s holiday parks are on reserve land directly on the foreshore. Their 
reserve status means that their ownership and the use they can be put to is controlled by 
legislation. Generally, this means that they must remain in council ownership and be used for 
recreational purposes and to provide public access to the coast. 
 
The council, however, is conscious that the community should get some economic benefits, 
while also providing for community use. Configuring this reserve land for camping is a means 
to achieve these objectives; the holiday parks make an operating profit, attract visitors to the 
district who support local business, provide access to the beaches and are used for camping 
by our own citizens. 
 
Key projects 
 

Achievements 

Greater emphasis will be placed on 
marketing the parks to increase casual 
camper occupancy outside the peak 
holiday period. Opportunities to attract 
new customers such as school camps will 
be investigated 

New tourist accommodation has proved to 
be a good investment. The Whangateau 
Holiday Park in particular has had more 
seasonal workers stay, increasing the 
income for the shoulder season. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will provide high quality, reasonably priced holiday parks which attract visitors to the 
district 
 
Occupancy and satisfaction rates confirm our holiday parks continue to be a popular 
destination for holiday makers. Tourist units operating at the Martins Bay and Whangateau 
holiday parks are proving to be popular particularly with seasonal workers at Whangateau. 
Visitor numbers remain similar to previous years. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Customer satisfaction with 
holiday parks (users only) 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 88%) 

88% satisfaction achieved No survey undertaken 
 

Annual hospitality rating of 
Whangateau, Orewa and 
Martins Bay holiday parks  

Annual ratings retained Achieved. Orewa Beach 
Holiday Park maintained their 
4½ star rating this year with 
Martins Bay Holiday Park 
qualmark rating increasing to 
a 4 star. Whangateau have 
also retained their 4 star 
qualmark rating. 

Mystery shopper ratings for 
holiday parks 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 85%) 

At least a 90% rating on 
average across two visits 
maintained 

Achieved. 91%  
NB: Result based on one 
visit in October 2009 as 
Holiday Parks management 
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team decision was to reduce 
the Mystery Shopper survey 
to one per annum. 
Source: Holiday Park 
Mystery Shopper survey, 
(Linnie Osborne Marketing) 
October 2009. 

Overall holiday parks 
occupancy rate, per month 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 73%) 

70% occupancy rate 
achieved 

Achieved 72.8% overall even 
with the weather conditions 
during the months of May 
and June being less than 
favourable.  

 
Potential for negative effects 
 
Holiday parks do result in high usage of coastal amenity areas at peak periods. High numbers 
of people living at the campgrounds, albeit for short periods, produces human and other 
waste that needs to be dealt with in a way that does not diminish the quality of these highly 
valuable environments. Council protects the wellbeing of these local environments through 
refuse collection and disposal and onsite wastewater treatment. 
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Activity: Community assets 
 
The council owns and operates 25 halls and community centres. Advisory groups made up of 
elected representatives from the community manage the use of these facilities and the council 
maintains the buildings and grounds on advice from these groups. 
 
The council operates nine cemeteries, and also owns and maintains marine structures 
(wharves, jetties, ramps, moorings, seawalls, etc.) along 1,019 km of coastline. Coastal 
engineers are engaged in providing coastal protection in key areas by planting, landscaping, 
dune protection and access-way management. 
 
 
Why the council did it  
 
Local halls and community centres are a central focus for their communities. The council 
manages them on behalf of communities to ensure that community groups have access to 
functional, comfortable, affordable and well-maintained buildings. The halls are mainly older 
facilities comprising a public space, stage, kitchen, ablutions and are utilised by community 
groups and for private functions. Community centres tend to be newer, provide a hall facility 
and may house other services such as a library, Citizens Advice Bureau, or a service centre. 
 
The council is required by legislation to ensure that burial facilities are available to local 
communities. These facilities can be shared with, or made available by, neighbouring 
councils. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievements 

Some halls are not as well used as others 
and the Council will look at preparing a 
policy for the long-term future of these halls 

The long term future of the halls will now 
be considered by the new Auckland 
Council. 

Maintain existing assets including upgrading 
assets in order to meet community needs 
and statutory requirements 

Maintenance and upgrades are 
undertaken on an ongoing basis. Our 
contractors are maintaining high 
performance as per the Asset 
Management system. 

Improve our asset management planning for 
community assets 

Asset Management Plans have been 
completed and signed off. 

Complete activity management plans for 
community assets 

Asset Management Plans have been 
completed and signed off. 

Ensure that each asset is reviewed on a 
cyclical basis for maintenance and upgrade 
requirements according to the activity 
management plans 

After the first anniversary of the new 
contract with Fulton Hogan (FH) cyclical 
maintenance has increased where 
identified resulting in less need for 
reactive maintenance. Existing minor 
works which were not part of the FH 
contract are progressively being moved 
across to the facilities maintenance 
contract in an effort to provide a 
seamless level of service. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will work with local communities to provide and maintain adequate hall and community 
centres in the district 
 
The new facilities maintenance contractor undertakes proactive maintenance wherever 
budgets allow, in conjunction with the programme of capital works, focussing on heath and 
safety projects. 
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Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Public satisfaction with 
facilities and service in halls 
and community centres 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 70%) 

At least 75% satisfaction 
achieved 

No survey undertaken in 
2009/10 

Usage of selected 
community centres and halls 
(based on bookings 
received) 
(New measure; baseline to 
be established) 

At least 52% usage achieved 
for selected halls/community 
centres 
 

Data not available. 
 
Community centres and halls 
are now the responsibility of 
Auckland Council, (Local 
Boards). 

Level of service 
 
We will manage and maintain the nine Council cemeteries to provide adequate burial 
facilities within the district 
 
A report on growth in the district and needs of burial facilities has been being undertaken. 
Relationships between RDC, funeral directors and cemetery contractors are working very 
well. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Burial area available in the 
district (ha) 

15.6 ha available Achieved. 16.689ha 
available.  

Customer satisfaction with 
cemeteries 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 70%) 

At least 75% satisfaction 
achieved 

No survey was undertaken 
this year however, there 
have been no complaints 
received. 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
This activity enhances the social and cultural wellbeing of the community and there are no 
significant negative impacts arising from this activity. 
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Capital expenditure Community Services 
 

ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Public Open Space

Arts Centre (Visual & Performing Arts) 18 20  i a

Carpark renewals 277 220

Contract C0821 AM & P Parks/Coastal share 181 107  

Cooper Lea - replacement toilet block 198 200  

Green Road Sports Park 77 75

Hard court development 142 135  

Helensville public toilet 351 361  

Huapai major renewal sportsfield 1 104  

Jamieson Bay Developments 54 50  i

Kohuroa Stream track (Matheson Bay) walkway 46 40  

Kumeu/Huapai -Town Entrance 144 138  i

Land acquisitions 38ha by 2016 323 350  i

Mahurangi West Hall & reserve car parking 292 241  i

Major upgrades (full replacement) toilets 140 266  
Manly Beach - upgrade carpark by play area 0 31  

Manly Park - veterans tennis club - wall & fence 12 20  

Metro Park (East) MP and Leisure Centre Consent 11 13  i

Metro Park new playground 5 0  

Metropark sportsfield future 11 900  

Metropark W est 82 82  i

MetroPark/Sportsfields development 43 26  i

Muriwai - replacement playground 0 104  

Murray Jones Reserve (Riverhead) under-bridge walkway 108 80  

New Development Reserve Acquisition 5 774  

Omaha South Toilets/Changing Rooms 37 0  

Orewa W est walkway / cycleway 2,608 3,919  i

Playground replacement 428 407

Reserve water supply improvements 115 235  
Riverhead War Memorial Park - court upgrade 35 17  i

Riverhead War Memorial Park - major renewal sportsfield 6 190  

Sand field & irrigation renewals 151 50  

Sandspit Rd weed & vegetation project 17 0  

Schoolhouse Bay Wharf Helipad 0 8  i
Silverdale North - Metro Park West - earthworks 0 900  

Silverdale North Esplanade enhancements 166 73  i

Silverdale Parkway - Stage 4 landscaping Orewa West walkway 144 228  i

Silverdale Parkway development reserve acquisition RMA51730 857 857  

Silverdale Parkway Reserve Purchases 351 350  

South Head Walk Ways 19 17  i

Sports & sand field irrigation 586 369

Stanmore Bay Reserve replacement playground 318 300  

Stillwater Reserve - replacement toilet 12 155  
Te Hana field development 10 10  i

Te Hana Hall - form & seal car park (10) 0  

Toilet & changing room renewals 108 40  

Toilet & changing rooms minor upgrade 182 118

Toilets design, consultation & consent 34 30
Training Lights Stanmore Bay 162 150  i

Victor Eaves Park development landscaping 60 100  

Walkways renewals 315 133

Warkworth Cement W orks 155 147  i
Warkworth Showgrounds 1,411 1,235  i  
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ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Warkworth skateboard park 21 25  

Warkworth Town Centre Upgrade 807 709  i
Wellsford Corry farm Dev'mt 0 75  i

Whangaparaoa Town Centre 7 39  i

Libraries

Helensville Library capital items 1 1  

Kumeu Library capital items 94 104  

Library books & materials renewals 1,526 1,482  

Library capital items 46 65  

Library capital items 42 84  

Library furniture and chattels 25 57

Library materials multimedia 289 356  

Library new miscellaneous capital items 66 68  

Mahurangi East Library interior renovation 208 206  i

Mahurangi East Library renewals 1 3  

Point Wells Library minor capital i tems 0 1  

Wellsford Library - New 3 77  

Wellsford Library building 8 10  i

Wellsford Library minor capital items 4 5  

Leisure Centre

Fitness equipment 151 233  

Leisure Centre refurbishments 60 183  

Pool construction, design, building 0 167  i a

Swim pool renewals 123 123  

Holiday Parks

Martins Bay - Water Tanks 203 203  i

Martins Bay Holiday Park - renewals 61 72

Martins Bay Holiday Park Tourist Accomodation 278 277  

Orewa Beach Holiday Park - renewals 56 89  

Whangateau Holiday Park - renewals 14 13  i

Whangateau Holiday Park Tourist Accomodation 420 374  

Community Assets

Algies Bay Seawall 594 500  

Annual coastal replanting 89 41

Arkles Bay - remove loose rock, rebuild wall & give access 8 46  
Campbell/Baddeleys Beach stair addition 0 21  

Cemeteries general maintenance, health & safety 15 9

Coastal protection design, consent & consult 209 183

Coastal structures renewals 445 401

Coatesvil le Hall Sewer System 41 35  i

Glasgow Park Hall renewals 37 40  

Gulf Harbour Breakwater 70 80  

Gulf Harbour Walkways 3 63  

Halls  maintenance & health & safety 182 95

Helensville Community Centre renewals 1 8  

Kaukapakapa Hall renewals 25 25  

Leigh Hall refurbish toilets 53 40  

Mahurangi East Community Centre renewals 13 23  
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ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Manly Beach - dune development at Glamis 1 1  

Manly Beach - dune development at Manly Park 0 21  

Moorings renewals 75 61  

Muriwai - foreshore protection 36 60  

Omaha replace fibrolite sea wall - Stage 2 1 154  

Orewa Beach access coastal protection nourishment 509 200  

Orewa Community Centre renewals 16 13  

Pakiri Hall renewals 8 10  

Parakai ramp upgrade 215 212  i

Point Wells Hall renewals 82 25  

Pomona Hall Reconstruction 77 20  

Puhoi Cemetery Expansion 52 0  

Rainbows End - replace & extend timber sea wall 7 0  

Ramp upgrades - general 149 50  

Sandspit Diesel Supply 87 90  

Sandspit jetty safety upgrade 0 26  

Shelly Beach - seawall 0 82  

Silverdale Hall renewals 13 10  

South Head Hall renewals 20 10  

Stillwater Hall 0 52  

Swann Beach (Hurdlow Beach) - new stair access 0 8  

Tauhoa Hall renewals 21 20  

Warkworth Community Centre Development 6 5  

Warkworth Womens Bowling Club Compensation 10 0  

Wellsford Community Centre renewals 28 23  

Whangaripo Hall renewals 2 0  

Whangateau Domain - upgrade sea wall - Stage 1 6 138  

Wharf upgrades 178 129

Wharves & jetties renewals 146 123

Vested Assets 3,389 827

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 22,232 23,455  
 
 a – was to be completed in 2010 and proposed carry forward to 2011 
 i – budget carried forward 
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GROUP OF ACTIVITIES: ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 
Activities in this group: 
 
Waste management 
Landfills 
Stormwater 

Overview 
 
This group of activities deals the development, operation and maintenance of stormwater and 
waste assets. The protection of public health and the environment are key objectives of this 
group of activities and they are statutory obligations that the council must fulfil. The council’s 
Zero Waste Plan provides a systematic approach to how these objectives can be achieved. 
Any water-related engineering must consider the cultural values of the tangata whenua. This 
encompasses holistic interaction between the people, the water and the environment. 
Increasingly the values and the goals that come from the tangata whenua are shared by the 
wider Rodney community. 
 
Contribution to community outcomes 
 

Outcome Outcome statement Contribution to outcomes 
made by this group of 

activities 
Vibrant 
 

We will have a range of recreational and 
cultural facilities and events across the 
district and we will encourage creativity 
and diversity 

Distinctive We will maintain and enhance the 
character of our townships and rural areas 
through excellent urban and rural planning 
and the intelligent management of growth 

Connected 
 

We will have the infrastructure and 
services needed for our residents, 
business and visitors 

Safe and 
healthy 
 

We will continue to have a sense of 
community and we will provide for the 
emotional and physical well-being of our 
people 

Clean and 
green 

We will continue to value, protect and 
enjoy the natural environment 

These activities ensure that 
daily life, business and 
special events are safe and 
that the environment is 
protected from contamination.  
Services are delivered in a 
way that enhances and 
protects the urban and rural 
environments 
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Financial results 
 
Environmental Services

Actual Plan Actual 
12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

0 $000 $000 

Waste Management 2,619 4,365 4,452
Landfills 3,526 199 628
Stormwater 6,123 9,130 9,809
Total Operating Expenditure 12,268 13,694 14,889

Operating Revenue:
Revenue & user charges 122 251 278
Grants and subsidies 356 227 194
Interest Income 5 0 (22)
Cash contributions 1,075 725 1,067
Vested asset contributions 777 900 6,469
Targeted rates 5,984 8,289 8,291
General rates 2,678 4,438 4,277

Total Operating Revenue 10,997 14,830 20,554

TOTAL OPERATING SURPLUS ( DEFICIT) (1,271) 1,135 5,665
Capital Expenditure

New capital works 6,033 6,163 12,904
Renewal capital works 485 718 877

Total Capital Expenditure 6,518 6,881 13,781

Other Funding Requirements
Loan repayments 358 2,899 6,655
Transfers to general & restricted reserves 1,039 102 0

Total Funding Requirement 7,915 9,882 20,436

Funds To Be Provided From:
Operating surplus (1,271) 1,135 5,665
Asset sales 0 0 0
Loans raised 5,100 6,944 0
Transfers from general & restricted reserves 3,549 110 12,690
Non cash expenses 467 1,691 1,109

Total Funds Provided 7,845 9,880 19,464

FUNDING SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT) (70) (2) (972)
 
During the period the council reassessed the calculation for future landfill monitoring costs 
obligations which will occur over the next 35 years and increased the provision by $0.47k. 
 
New capital works were higher than budget this arose as the value of vested assets is 
included as new capital works and we received $5.5 million more vested assets than we 
budgeted. In addition we completed some projects which were carried forward from the 
previous financial year. 
 
 
 

Page 120 



Rodney District Council’s 16-month Report for the period 1July 2009 – 31 October 2010 

 

Activity: Waste management 
 
Under its Waste Management Plan, the council primarily performs a regulatory function, 
requiring licenses for private refuse operators who provide a collection service to individual 
households. This collection service is funded from the household purchase of branded 
rubbish bags, or contracted servicing of wheelie bins. Council also monitors waste collections 
from a public health perspective. Waste operators must also, as a requirement of their 
licences, report to the council on the quantities of waste they handle. 
 
Research shows that the majority of Rodney’s residents support recycling. The council 
therefore adopted a Zero Waste Plan in 2002. Kerbside recycling was started in August 2003, 
and since then the community has diverted more than 43,000 tonnes of waste from landfill to 
recycling. The council also supports various recycling facilities, some of which are run by 
community organisations. 
 
Why the council did it  
 
The council carries out its waste management function to protect public health and the 
environment. It is committed to reducing the amount of waste going to landfill, and considers 
this to be a key environmental objective. Details of the activities the council is involved in are 
contained in its Zero Waste Management Plan. 
 
Council also has statutory responsibilities under the Waste Minimisation Act 2008 and the 
Health Act 1956, and is responsible for administering the Litter Act 1979 in the district. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievements 

Organic (food) waste recycling investigation Council provided funding for a Phase 
Two report, which was compiled to 
identify preferred option(s) for organic 
waste in Auckland, to the Auckland 
Transition Agency (ATA) with the 
intention that this was included in the 
draft Auckland Council WMMP. This 
process was delayed pending the 
release of the new NZ Waste Strategy.  

Investigation and implementation of 
commercial recycling 

A kerbside business recycling service is 
in place throughout the district providing 
the same level of service as household 
recycling.  

Business sustainability programme The Ecobiz business sustainability 
programme was introduced across 
Auckland and was subsidised by all the 
Auckland local authorities. The 
programme had 38 businesses 
participating including two from Rodney 
by end September 2010.  New initiatives 
being investigated in addition to EcoBiz 
included the Conscious Consumer 
Programme from Wellington and the 
potential to work with the Employers and 
Manufacturers Assocation to introduce a 
joint program to the region. 

Solid waste analysis audit of the districts 
waste 

A solid waste analysis/audit has been 
carried out of Rodney District's waste. 
The report provides information on the 
amount and types of waste the district is 
producing. This information will be used 
in developing Waste Minimisation Plans. 
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Public place recycling trial Public recycling is in place with five bins 

currently available. This is part of the 
LoveNZ programme in conjunction with 
the Ministry for the Environment. Further 
bins will be added as funding becomes 
available. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will ensure regular and consistent refuse removal throughout the district 
 
Waste operators and facilities in the district are all licensed. All refuse issues are dealt with 
promptly. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Attendance at monthly 
operations contract meetings, 
conducted to keep track of 
performance and maintain an 
effective relationship with 
contractors 

Monthly meetings 
attended by Council 
officer 

Regular meetings have 
been held where 
performance was 
discussed, any issues 
resolved and continuous 
improvement actions were 
put in place. Monthly 
reports received. 
 

Level of service 
 
We will work towards reducing waste with the aim of zero waste to landfills 
 
This is being achieved through the implementation of the Zero Waste Plan.  Priority waste 
areas have been identified and initiatives put in place in order to reduce waste to landfill 
within each of these areas i.e., kerbside recycling, hazardous waste drop-off facilities. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Tonnage of waste diverted 
from landfill through recycling 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 8,009 
tonnes) 

8,200 tonnes diverted 
annually 
 

Achieved. 12,054 tonnes 
of waste diverted.  
 

Number of free public 
workshops held on waste 
minimisation 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 11)  

At least 13 workshops 
facilitated  

Achieved. 15 workshops 
were held throughout the 
year and were well 
attended. 

Number of Waste Wise 
Schools in the district 
(New measure; baseline to be 
established) 

At least 2 schools 
complete the Waste Wise 
programme and 2 schools 
commence the two year 
programme 

Achieved. Stanmore Bay 
and Kingsway schools 
commenced the 
programme last year with 
Matakana and Snells 
Beach schools joining up 
this year.* 
 
*Measured annually. 
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Public satisfaction with 
residential recycling collections 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 77%9) 

At least 78% satisfaction 
achieved 

63.3% (Not achieved) 
(65.3% 2009) 
 
Source: 2010 Annual 
Residents Survey. 
 
Feedback from the survey 
indicated a number of 
residents would like to see 
an inorganic collection 
introduced.  This will be a 
matter for the new 
Auckland Council to 
consider, 

 
 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
Failure to comply with regulatory requirements could lead to prosecution. Recycling collectors 
may leave refuse on the streets, causing loss of amenity and safety from, for example, broken 
glass. The council will continue to mitigate or eliminate this potential effect on social and 
environmental wellbeing by ensuring contractors collect all waste. The council will undertake 
regular performance audits. 

                                                 
9 A different methodology was used for the 2007/08 Annual Residents Survey therefore 
2009/10 results cannot be compared directly. 
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Activity: Landfills 
 
The council looks after 19 of the 29 closed landfills on Rodney’s closed landfill register. The 
remaining ten closed landfills are not owned by RDC and the management responsibility of 
these does not lie with the council. 
 
The council manages closed landfills to comply with regulatory requirements, for example, by 
ensuring that resource consents are obtained and all required environmental monitoring and 
maintenance is carried out. By doing this, the council aims to minimise the potential for 
adverse environmental effects from closed landfills. 
 
Council does not own any operational sanitary landfills within the district. However, a major 
private commercial landfill is located at Redvale. 
 
Why the council did it  
 
The council is required by legislation to ensure that the landfills in its control have all 
necessary resource consents and that any leachate or other discharges are effectively 
managed. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievements 

Obtain 3 resource consents for 
unconsented landfills 

No new resource consents were applied for 
this year. Funding has been used to meet 
existing consent conditions. 

Carry out investigations on all remaining 
unconsented sites 

No further investigation work carried out this 
year due to budget restrictions. 

Carry out annual visual inspections Visual inspection of all closed landfills has 
been carried out with the exception of 
Kawau Island. In addition to the routine 
inspections of consented landfills, all the 
remaining unconsented sites have also 
been inspected. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will manage and monitor landfills to minimise adverse environmental effects 
 
10 of the RDC closed landfills have been consented, monitored and maintained. The 
remaining sites are visually inspected on an annual basis. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
6-monthly report to Auckland 
Regional Council (ARC), 
providing evidence that landfill 
consent obligations are met 

6 monthly reports provided  Achieved. Six monthly 
monitoring reporting has 
been carried out and reports 
forwarded to the ARC.* 
 
*Measured annually. 
 

Annual landfill inspections by 
RDC staff 

1 landfill inspected Achieved. All closed landfill 
sites investigated except 
Kawau Island.* 
 
*Measured annually.  
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Options developed for future 
use of remediated landfill sites 

Future options for 1 site 
developed 

Achieved.  The landfills at 
Hamatana Road Snells 
Beach and Wilson Rd 
Warkworth have been 
developed as green 
space/reserve and have 
been handed over to Parks 
for maintenance.* 
 
*Measured annually. 
 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
Potential negative effects are from uncontrolled leachate escaping into the environment and 
from exposed refuse creating a hazard to people and leading to a loss of amenity. The council 
will manage the risk of this impact on environmental wellbeing by complying with regulatory 
requirements, including ensuring that appropriate resource consents are obtained and all 
required monitoring and maintenance is carried out. 
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Activity: Stormwater 
 
Council provides and maintains stormwater drainage infrastructure to some degree in most 
urban areas of the district, typically comprising a network of gravity pipes and open channels 
that ultimately discharge to natural watercourses or coastal environments. In rural and 
undeveloped areas public stormwater drainage systems are usually limited to those provided 
alongside the public roading network. Council also: 
 
 allocates operating funding for private drainage schemes at Te Arai, Tapora and Glorit 
 considers district-wide water quality, erosion, flooding, stream blockages and pest 

management issues 
 has an advisory and educational role with respect to private (and rural) stormwater systems 
 is responsible for identifying and managing development risk in flood plains and other 

hazard areas 
 manages growth through planning and demand management. 
 
Why the council did it  
 
Council manages the district’s stormwater to help support community outcomes. The activity 
is important to the district’s economy (effective stormwater infrastructure is important to 
property values and prosperous businesses) and the environment (pollution and erosion from 
urban stormwater run-off can be damaging to the natural environment). The council provides 
and maintains some stormwater drainage infrastructure in most urban areas while in rural and 
undeveloped areas public stormwater drainage systems are limited. 
 
The council acts to ensure that the interests of those not creating pollution and flooding are 
protected through appropriate networks and infrastructure, regulation, and monitoring. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievements 

Focusing on minor capital works, 
reticulation extensions and renewals 
where infill has, or may occur 

Projects related to infill pressure have been 
completed at Glenelg Road, William Bayes 
Place, De Luen Avenue and Centreway 
Road. 

Developing catchment management 
strategies for future development areas 
such as Orewa West, Matakana and 
Huapai North 

Kumeu/Huapai network discharge consent 
hearing complete. ARC has received draft 
Silverdale and Orewa West reports for 
comment.  Following amalgamation, these 
reports will be considered by a specialist 
unit within the new Auckland Council. 

Improve the stormwater network along 
Whangaparaoa Road to support transport 
improvements on the peninsula 

Design complete, work is now being 
tendered through maintenance contract 
partners. 

Continue to manage the environmental 
impact of stormwater in growing urban 
areas through management of existing 
ponds and the development of new ponds 
associated with growth 

Stanmore Bay Wetland is near completion. 
Huapai North discharge consent hearing 
complete. We have been negotiating with 
Kensington Properties and Perrendale Ltd 
regarding ponds. Green Road sediment 
disposal project is underway. 
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How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
We will mitigate the adverse environmental effects of stormwater activity 
 
Some issues around odours and weeds in drains were experienced with the warm dry weather 
earlier in the year. Mechanical weed removal from Maygrove lake was completed. A fish 
passage was provided at perched pipe in Stanmore Bay. 
 
Stanmore Bay wetland went to tender and is nearing completion. 
 
Enviropods were installed in the Warkworth CBD. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Percentage of urban areas with 
stormwater treatment 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 19%) 

At least 20% of areas Achieved 20%* 
 
*Measured annually. 
 
(18.95% in 2008/09) 

Level of service 
We will effectively discharge and manage stormwater flows 
 
There have been few problems this season, but we are actively monitoring sand build up at 
outfalls. We have also applied for coastal outfall consents in several areas. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Number of properties less than 
1000sqm at risk in 1% flood event 
(as shown on flood hazard maps)  

Not more than 1,373 
properties 

1,537 properties* (Not 
achieved). 
 
*Measured as at 30 June 
2010. Properties identified 
annually. 
Information from regional 
Lidar aerial surveying 
(undertaken on 2 - 5 year  
cycles) together with aerial 
photography and latest 
information available on 
coastal inundation is used to 
update geographical 
information systems enabling 
better estimates to be made.  
 
The increase is due to better 
mapping of flood plains, not 
more subdivision in flood 
prone areas.  
 

Level of service 
We will provide a good service to customers 
 
Summer stream clearing activities were undertaken. Significant clearing of the Kaipara and 
Kaukapakapa catchments was completed. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
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Customer satisfaction with overall 
stormwater service 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 61%10) 

At least 60% satisfaction 
achieved 

56.9% (Not achieved) 
(56.9% 2008/09) 
 
Source: 2010 Annual 
Residents Survey 
 
Feedback from the survey 
was minimal and 
inconclusive. 

Level of service 
We will provide a stormwater service in urban areas 
 
Upgrades were completed at Riverside Road, Rosario Crescent, Sun Valley, and minor capital 
works were undertaken throughout the Hibiscus Coast area. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Percentage of urban properties 
with formal connections 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 63%) 

At least 66% of properties Achieved. 66.5%* 
 
*Measured annually 
 
(66% in 2008/09) 

Level of service 
We will undertake appropriate planning to cater for future growth 
 
Catchment management planning and the consent renewals programme is on track.  
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
CMP’s aligned with 
planning / zone changes 
are developed  

New Silverdale (South and 
Township) and Hatfields 
Catchment Management 
Plans (CMP’s) have been 
prepared to address ARC 
comments. The Kumeu CMP 
is complete and the Kumeu 
Network Consent has been 
obtained. The Orewa West 
revised draft is complete and 
expected to be notified soon. 
There have been some 
delays due to resourcing 
(RDC and ARC), but the 
CMP programme is still 
tracking well with Plan 
Changes. 

Catchment Management Plans 
(CMP) development as per CMP 
development programme 

Demonstrated timely 
progress with consent 
renewals for urban areas  

The Stanmore Bay and 
Orewa areas have both 
received consent.  An 
application for renewal of the 
Hatfield’s consent has been 
prepared.  

 
Potential for negative impacts 
There are no significant negative impacts arising from this activity and the council works to 
ensure there is no negative impact on environmental wellbeing. 

                                                 
10 A different methodology was used for the 2007/08 Annual Residents Survey therefore 2009/10 results 
cannot be compared directly. 
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Capital expenditure Environmental Services 
 

ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Stormwater

Contract C0821 AM & P Stormwater share 249 102  

Erosion protection 67 62

Kaipara townships stormwater network 610 750  

Kumeu River protection scheme 522 633  i a

Manly Reserve and local Area HBC drainage 26 25  i

Matakana, Point Wells, Leigh & Omaha stormwater works 0 15  

Muriwai stormwater disposal 35 40  

Orewa stormwater CBD upgrades 412 400  

Red Beach Peninsula Golf Course lakes 0 103  

Red Beach stormwater flood storage & networks improvements 8 0  

Replacement of Glorit Floodgate 124 68  i

Riverside Road Stormwater Diversion 356 33  i

Silverdale North Stormwater Pond A5 1,026 1,111  i

Stormwater minor capital works 883 843 i

Stormwater Network Mangement 74 25  

Stormwater pond renewals 99 150  

Stormwater Ponds Major Rehab - HBC 10 10  i

Stormwater renewals 609 678  i

Stormwater reticulation extensions 583 882  a

Stormwater Stanmore Bay wetland 635 700  a

Stormwater treatment facilities 137 259

Stream works 119 143

Taupaki stream improvements 37 37  i

Warkworth stormwater upgrade 115 200  

Wellsford township stormwater upgrades: 1 0  

Whangaparaoa stormwater networks 179 287  

Waste Management

Kerbside recycling bins - new 226 236

Kerbside recycling bins - replacement 44 45

Landfills 40 61  i a

Public litter bins - new 45 55

Public litter bins - replacement 41 62

Vested Assets 6,469 900

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 13,780 8,913  
 
 a – was to be completed in 2010 and proposed carry forward to 2011 
 i – budget carried forward 
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GROUP OF ACTIVITIES: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 
Activities in this group: 
 
Economic advocacy and facilitation 
 
Overview 
 
If the district is to make the most of its economic potential, it needs organisations that can, 
when necessary, coordinate the district’s businesses, collect and provide necessary 
information, advocate to government and liaise between business and council. Much of this 
activity is done by the Rodney Economic Development Trust (REDT), with funding and 
assistance from the council. 
 
The council is required by law to promote the economic wellbeing of communities; Rodney 
residents and businesses are particularly interested in promoting opportunities to increase the 
number of local jobs for local people and in providing a wider variety of employment 
opportunities and a more balanced economy. The council and the community is well aware 
that over a quarter of Rodney’s economy is generated by people who live here but work 
‘south of the border’ in North Shore, Waitakere, Auckland and Manukau cities. So while the 
Council and REDT are active in promoting investment within Rodney’s borders, we also 
recognise that Rodney’s economy is linked to the larger regional economy. To this end we are 
represented in regional initiatives such as the Regional Economic Development Forum, the 
Regional Broadband Advisory Group and the Rugby World Cup 2011 Regional Steering 
Group. 
 
In addition, the council administers forestry holdings to maximise income and contribute 
towards operational costs. 
 
Contribution to community outcomes 
 
Outcome Outcome statement Contribution to outcomes 

made by this group of 
activities 

Prosperous 
 

We will have a growing and resilient 
economy based on a wide variety of 
businesses that fit our character 

Vibrant 
 

We will have a range of recreational 
and cultural facilities and events 
across the district and we will 
encourage creativity and diversity 

Connected 
 

We will have the infrastructure and 
services needed for our residents, 
business and visitors 

Clean and 
green 

We will continue to value, protect and 
enjoy the natural environment 

Without a robust economy, both 
in its own right and linked to the 
wider regional, national and 
global economies, the district 
cannot achieve other objectives.  
This activity works to strengthen 
the economy through facilitation, 
lobbying, research and direct 
participation in a number of 
initiatives 
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Financial results 
 
Economic Development

Actual Plan Actual 
12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

0 $000 $00

Economic Advocacy and Facilitation 1,643 2,354 2,416

Total Operating Expenditure 1,643 2,354 2,416

O

0 

perating Revenue:
Revenue & user charges 93 64 187
Targeted rates 187 260 261
General rates 1,090 1,450 1,969
Other Gains 344 0 125

Total Operating Revenue 1,714 1,774 2,542

TOTAL OPERATING SURPLUS ( DEFICIT) 71 (580) 126
Capital Expenditure

New capital works 0 0 0
Renewal capital works 9 0 24

Total Capital Expenditure 9 0 24

Other Funding Requirements
Loan repayments 162 7 0
Transfers to general & restricted reserves 0 0 0

Total Funding Requirement 171 7 24

Funds To Be Provided From:
Operating surplus / (deficit) 71 (580) 126
Asset sales 0 0 0
Loans raised 0 7 0
Transfers from general & restricted reserves 266 250 0
Non cash expenses 9 0 13

Total Funds Provided 346 (323) 139

FUNDING SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT) 175 (330) 115
 
Other gains is the increase in the value of the forestry assets held 
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Activity: Economic advocacy and facilitation 
 
The council had a partnership agreement and service contract with the Rodney Economic 
Development Trust (REDT). The Trust’s role was to support and develop Rodney’s economy. 
The service contract, which was designed to help deliver the district’s economic strategy and 
other economic development initiatives, highlights the need for mutual effort and co-operation 
between all parties to maximise economic development opportunities in Rodney. The 
substance of this relationship was defined in more detail in the council’s contract with the 
Trust. 
 
The contractual arrangement with the Trust is in place until 30 June 2011, and the Trust’s 
performance will be monitored accordingly by Auckland Council.  Discussions are underway 
with Auckland Tourism, Events and Economic Development (ATEED), a Council Controlled 
Organisation, in regard to incorporating REDT but have not yet concluded. 
 
The council’s activities and planning must be based on an understanding of local, regional 
and national economies and how they interrelate. This includes understanding business 
needs, motivations and issues. To this end the council: 
 
 takes part in regional and undertakes local surveys of business land-use trends and 

business types, including business activities in rural areas in Rodney 
 undertakes research to understand what drives Rodney’s economy and analysis of town 

centre development and Rodney’s employment and skill needs 
 plans strategically around issues that have a long-term impact on the local economy, such 

as energy and future energy sources and broadband capacity and usage. 
 
A robust and sustainable local economy underpins Rodney’s quality of life. While the council 
is just one of many players in Rodney’s economy, it understands the relationship between 
employment, business growth, transport, residential growth and educational opportunities. It 
enables economic development and growth by: 
 
 providing political leadership 
 ensuring that economic development considerations are taken into account when 

developing or facilitating physical infrastructure 
 advocating in local, regional and national forums to ensure economic opportunities for 

Rodney are recognised 
 facilitating economic development opportunities, or identifying funding sources to assist 

economic development 
 promoting and marketing the district, its economic opportunities and the goals of its 

communities 
 providing Rodney-based economic research and analysis to local firms, government, 

educational agencies and the council 
 administering the collection and distribution of a targeted rate for any Business 

Improvement District (BID) where a business association has held a successful voting poll 
and council is satisfied with the purpose and governance structure of the BID 

 administering six forestry holdings to maximise their income and to minimise costs. 
 
 
Why the council did it  
 
Local authorities are inevitably involved in economic development. Primarily this is through 
the provision of the infrastructure and services that make economic growth possible. There is 
an expectation within the business community, however, that local authorities should also 
carry out roles such as funding economic development initiatives. Councils do this because 
there is insufficient incentive for single, or even a few firms, to market, plan for, lobby for, or 
undertake research for a whole area. Councils, with their ability to tax local areas or the whole 
district, can act as funder on behalf of the whole business community. This is essentially the 
rationale behind REDT funding. 
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Key Projects 
 

Achievements 

Implementation of the programme for Rugby 
World Cup in 2011 

Rodney District is on track in planning 
and implementation for the Rugby 
World Cup (RWC). Rodney District 
contributes proactively to the Auckland 
Region programme delivery. 
 
A dry run of the RWC team hosting was 
held when Japan visited for one week. 
They stayed at the Gulf Harbour Lodge, 
trained at the Leisure Centre and the 
Silverdale Rugby Club before playing a 
game against North Harbour. A trial 
community engagement open training 
session was held and much positive 
media was generated. 

Facilitating improved broadband provision in 
the district 

Work was undertaken with the Digital 
Auckland Working Party (DAWP) to 
make a joint submission on the 
Auckland Region.  
 
Unfortunately, however, Expression of 
Interest stage required high level detail 
about cost and location of fibre 
provision from telecommunication 
companies and there was insufficient 
information available from them to 
make a compliant submission.  
 
In partnership with DAWP, progress 
has continued with development of a 
high level of detail, including 
stakeholder feedback and demand 
identification, for the Warkworth / 
Matakana and Helensville initiatives. 
  
Discussions have also taken place with 
several telecommunication providers on 
possible joint submissions in the 
Request for Proposal stage.  
This work will be continued by the new 
Auckland Council. 
 

Review ownership of forestry holdings with a 
view to possible disposal of this land as it is 
not a core activity 

Two forestry blocks are subject to offer-
back under provisions of S40 PWA. 
One is being prepared for marketing. 
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How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will use current and relevant research to develop annual and long term plans that deliver 
high value economic outcomes 
 
BERL research and regional reports are used to plan activity. Sector based research is used 
around tourism, events, broadband and aquaculture. The BERL report on Rodney's economy 
was considered at the April 2010 council meeting. 
 
No new research is being carried out although we continue working with REDT to promote 
various business sectors. 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Effective business databases  Accurate business contacts 

database established and 
operative 

Achieved.  
REDT continue to update 
the business database as 
agreed in the annual 
contract for service. 

Business activity in the district Above national average 
growth in GDP and 
employment 

Not achieved. 
 
Rodney’s contribution to 
GDP shrank by -5.4% in 
the 2009 calendar year, 
whereas GDP for New 
Zealand as a whole 
shrank by -1.1%.  
Employment in Rodney 
for the 2009 calendar year 
shrank by -0.6% 
compared with growth of 
0.7% for all of New 
Zealand. (Source: BERL 
Jan 2010) 
 

Level of service 
We will advocate at regional and national levels to ensure an appropriate share of investment 
is delivered to support economic development for the district 
 
There has been continued focus on funding opportunities for aquaculture and broadband with 
successful outcomes.  
 
New arrangements for Government funding proposals for broadband were released in 
September 2009 which divided ultra-fast (urban) and rural broadband initiatives.   We are 
part of the Digital Auckland Working Party which focuses on ensuring a joined-up approach 
to broadband opportunities with strong representation and a voice for the whole of Auckland. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Rodney business initiatives 
promoted for regional and/or 
national funding 

Demonstrated funding 
applications made for 
targeted industries 

Achieved. 
Completing work on the 
Rural Broadband Initiative 
Request for Proposal 
phase (Deadline for 
submissions is November 
2010 so this work will 
continue under Auckland 
Council).  
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Comment on and input to 
regional economic planning, 
initiatives or projects 

Demonstrated increased 
representation of Rodney’s 
needs at a regional level 

Achieved. 
We have made significant 
contribution and have 
influence in regional 
activity through projects 
such as RWC planning, 
Aquaculture project, 
Broadband, Digital 
Auckland Working Party, 
and Screen Production 
Leadership group. 

Level of service 
 
We will form strong partnerships with various stakeholders to deliver value for money 
economic services for the district 
 
We have a continuing partnership with REDT. Also working with Matakana Coast tourism 
sector and New Zealand Tourism Research Institute to fund a tourism development strategy 
for the area. 
 
We have supported Destination Orewa Beach and the Warkworth Business Association with 
business improvement district (BID) work. 
 
Our partnership has strengthened with Tourism Auckland for tourism promotion (Auckland 
Guide) and Manaakitanga awards. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Establishment of formal cluster 
groups for targeted industries 

Demonstrated progress 
made towards formation of 
tourism cluster 

Achieved, 
REDT and RDC 
continued to focus on the 
aquaculture and food and 
beverage clusters.  
 
The Manaakitanga 
Awards are part of the 
strategy to network and 
strengthen the hospitality 
cluster.  
 
Tourism clusters are 
working well in Kumeu 
and Matakana.  
 
The Aquaculture cluster 
became an incorporated 
society so that it can 
apply for Tech NZ 
funding.  
 
A database is being 
developed for the 
equestrian sector. 

Effective service level 
agreements (SLA) with economic 
delivery agencies 

Demonstrated effectiveness 
of partnerships and SLA 

Achieved. 
Service level agreements 
are operating satisfactorily 
with iwi MoU partners and 
the Rodney Economic 
Development Trust 
(REDT).  

Page 135 



Rodney District Council’s 16-month Report for the period 1July 2009 – 31 October 2010 

 

Level of service 
 
We will own and manage sustainable and profitable forest blocks in the district 
 
Forest blocks are being maintained on a best practice silvicultural basis with a number of 
blocks close to harvest. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Independent review of forestry 
operations every three years and 
recommendations implemented 
within a year 

N/A N/A. 
Reporting due following 
end of 2010/11 financial 
year. 

 
 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
There is likely to be impacts on local roading and traffic during harvesting of the forests. This 
will be managed through a traffic management plan, a health and safety plan and by 
compliance with any resource consent conditions and the harvesting plan. Economic 
advocacy and facilitation contributes to the economic wellbeing of the community. 
 
 
Capital expenditure Economic Development 
 

ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Broadband Pilot Projects 0 20  i a

Maintenance, Health & Safety Orewa VIC 5 5  

Orewa VIC new roof 19 21  

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 24 46  
 
 a – was to be completed in 2010 and proposed carry forward to 2011 
 i – budget carried forward 
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GROUP OF ACTIVITIES: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
Activities in this group: 
 

Community policy, planning and action 

Community grants and levies 

Safety  

Graffiti prevention 

Fire and emergencies 

 
Overview 
 
It has been identified, through the creation of community outcomes, how important it is to 
local people that they live in safe, active and caring communities. When social issues arise in 
the community, the council is often the first agency that people come to for advice and 
assistance. Such issues include funding for community organisations, graffiti prevention, 
support for artistic activities, support for groups working with youth and the elderly, and crime 
reduction in collaboration with the police. 
 
The council also coordinates rural fire prevention and responds to civil emergencies such as 
floods and earthquake. 
 
Key features of these activities are partnerships with community organisations and 
government agencies, representing the community to various parts of central and regional 
government, as well as the reliance on coordinated support from community volunteers. 
 
Contribution to community outcomes 
 

Outcome Outcome statement Contribution to outcomes 
made by this group of 

activities 
Vibrant 
 

We will have a range of recreational and 
cultural facilities and events across the 
district and we will encourage creativity and 
diversity 

Distinctive We will maintain and enhance the 
character of our townships and rural areas 
through excellent urban and rural planning 
and the intelligent management of growth 

Safe and 
healthy 
 

We will continue to have a sense of 
community and we will provide for the 
emotional and physical well-being of our 
people 

Clean and 
green 

We will continue to value, protect and enjoy 
the natural environment 

Participation in the 
community is supported by 
having a safe environment for 
people, strong social and 
cultural networks, 
opportunities for artistic and 
creative expression and a 
network of services that 
contribute to the stability, 
sustainability and 
distinctiveness of 
communities. Direct service 
provision and working with 
other agencies and 
organisations are used to 
support community 
development 
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Financial results 
 
Community Development

Actual Plan Actual 
12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 

Community Policy, Planning and Action 559 861 917
Community Grants and Levies 2,067 6,378 5,363
Safety 171 253 292
Fire and Emergencies 1,335 1,922 1,788
Graffiti Prevention and Removal 200 353 393

Total Operating Expenditure 4,332 9,767 8,753

Operating Revenue:
Revenue & user charges 93 132 168
Grants and subsidies 137 122 348
Interest Income 47 0 54
Targeted rates 0 3,536 3,539
General rates 5,075 3,710 5,279
Other Income 8 0 3

Total Operating Revenue 5,360 7,500 9,391

TOTAL OPERATING SURPLUS ( DEFICIT) 1,028 (2,267) 638
Ca

$000 

pital Expenditure

New capital works 489 326 561
Renewal capital works 428 332 614

Total Capital Expenditure 917 658 1,175

Other Funding Requirements
Loan repayments 0 122 0
Transfers to general & restricted reserves 47 0 0

Total Funding Requirement 964 780 1,175

Funds To Be Provided From:
Operating surplus / (deficit) 1,028 (2,267) 638
Asset sales 0 0 0
Loans raised 457 677 0
Transfers from general & restricted reserves 132 46 97
Non cash expenses 59 163 115

Total Funds Provided 1,676 (1,381) 850

FUNDING SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT) 712 (2,161) (325)
 
A significant variance arose to budget as the Council budgeted two full year’s of the cost of 
the grants to be paid to Auckland Museum and MOTAT as the grants must be paid on the 1st 
of July each year. At 31 October 8 months of the second year remained. 
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Activity: Community policy, planning and action 
 
The council has a suite of strategies, policies and bylaws that relate to the community’s social 
wellbeing, including a Community Development Framework, a Youth Strategy (4Uth), a 
Physical Activity Strategy, gambling and alcohol policies and the Brothels and Commercial 
Sex Premises bylaw. These need to be regularly reviewed and updated to ensure that they 
continue to reflect the needs and perspectives of the community. 
 
Council also works with communities and government agencies to enhance the social and 
cultural wellbeing of Rodney’s people by advocating for increased services and funding for 
the region and by facilitating the networking and collaboration of existing service providers.  
This includes the co-facilitation of the Social Wellbeing Advisory Group (SWAG) that enables 
the council to work with local iwi, and with government agencies, such as the Ministry of 
Social Development, Waitemata District Health Board, New Zealand Police, Child Youth and 
Family Service and the Department of Internal Affairs, to achieve social-cultural outcomes. 
 
The council also supports the cultural well-being of Rodney communities by supporting 
creative endeavours by implementing an arts strategy, by commissioning and purchasing 
public art works, and by providing administrative support for local arts councils and arts 
related community groups. 
 
Why the council did it  
 
The Local Government Act 2002 requires the council to promote the social and cultural 
wellbeing of communities and to consider the views of all of its communities. The people of 
Rodney have told the council through their community outcomes that they want to be safe 
and healthy, connected, vibrant and prosperous. For communities to be able to achieve this 
and to be able to address their own particular issues with their own mix of people and other 
resources, requires good research, information and coordination between local organisations.  
Councils are well placed to carry out such research, be stores of local knowledge, have 
access to community resources and bring together those individuals and organisations 
needed to address each situation. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievements 

Facilitate the implementation of the Rodney 
Social Wellbeing Strategy 

The Rodney Social Wellbeing Strategy - 
Annual Report was completed in August 
2010; presented to the Strategy 
and Community Committee on 16 
September 2010 and formally launched 
to the community at the Helensville War 
Memorial Hall on Tuesday 21 
September.  It will be provided as a 
briefing document to incoming local 
boards.    

Continue to oversee the implementation of 
the Youth Strategy (4Uth) 

Implementation of the Youth Strategy 
(4Uth) continued with particular focus 
on:  
1) Encouraging young people to 

participate in and influence the 
future shaping of their communities 

2) Young people want things to do 
3) Young people want access to 

opportunities 
 
Some of the initiatives undertaken within 
these areas were: 
 co-facilitated regular South Kaipara 

Youth Forum meetings including 
supporting three youth from the 
forum to attend the Youth in Local 
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Government conference 
 facilitated the involvement of seven 

young people in the Auckland Social 
Policy Forum consultation  

 assisted the Hibiscus Coast Youth 
Centre allowing them to provide two 
youth week events.  

 
We also hosted ‘BLAST’ training (youth 
facilitation) for young people and youth 
workers and hosted Eva-Maria, a 19 
year old international speaker, author 
and coach, to run a workshop with 
young people in Rodney. 
 

Implement and review the Rodney Physical 
Activity Strategy 

The proposed review of the Rodney 
Physical Activity Strategy was put on 
hold due to the transition to Auckland 
Council. The North Harbour Physical 
Activity Strategy and the Auckland 
Regional Physical Activity Strategy are 
also being wound up as part of transition 
to the new Auckland Council. 
 

Review the Brothels and Commercial Sex 
Premises Bylaw 

The amended Brothels Bylaw was 
adopted in December 2009 and formally 
took effect from 28 January 2010.  
 

Develop an Alcohol Strategy to minimise the 
impact of alcohol related harm on our 
communities 

The comprehensive Alcohol Strategy 
was put on hold due to transition and 
likely changes to the national legislative 
framework for alcohol sales and 
consumption.  
However, we have completed a joint 
research project with ALAC and North 
Shore City Council and presented the 
findings to the Strategy and Community 
Committee on 16 September 2010. It is 
hoped that this will assist the new local 
boards to establish local alcohol plans 
under  the new political and structural 
environment. 

Develop an Affordable Housing Strategy in 
accordance with the findings of a district 
housing needs assessment 

The Affordable Housing Policy 
Statement and short term action plan 
was adopted by council in April 2010. A 
Rodney Community Housing Network 
has been established, and meetings are 
being held quarterly. 

Continue the implementation of the Arts 
Strategy 

The Arts Strategy (2004-2009) has now 
expired. However, in light of governance 
changes, the Arts Strategy continues to 
be implemented through the provision of 
arts integrated within infrastructure, the 
support of active community 
participation, the support of Toi Maori, 
and links with economic development 
and the arts. A number of projects were 
also developed and supported including 
the Matariki fund, the Creative 
Communities scheme and the 
Whangaparaoa Library art project. 
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How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will develop and initiate social well-being policies, strategies and projects that improve the 
quality of life for Rodney residents 
 
Outcomes of last year’s review of community support mechanisms have been implemented, 
including the development of a new Community Support Grants Policy in April 2010 and the 
establishment of four new contestable grants. 
 
The Brothels and Commercial Sex premises bylaw was formally adopted in January 2010. The 
Gambling Venue Policy and Affordable Housing Action Plan were formally adopted by council 
in May 2010. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Policy, strategy and project 
development and 
implementation 

Affordable Housing policy 
completed and other 
policies, strategies and 
projects implemented 

Achieved. 
The Gambling Venue Policy 
review was completed in April 
2010 and the Affordable 
Housing Policy statement and 
short term action plan have 
been completed.  
 
An Alcohol Off-licence Venue 
survey was completed and 
ALAC have contracted a 
research analyst to write up the 
final report of the findings This 
combines HBC and East Coast 
Bays data, and a draft was 
presented to the Strategy and 
Community Committee 16 
September 2010. The final 
report is to be presented to the 
new Local Boards. 

Review of social well-being 
policies and strategies 

Alcohol Strategy 
completed and Physical 
Activity Strategy reviewed 

Not achieved. 
 Comprehensive Alcohol 

Strategy put on hold due to 
transition and likely changes 
to national legislative 
framework for alcohol sales 
and consumption 

 Physical Activity Strategy 
review cancelled due to the 
Auckland Council transition. 

 Brothel Bylaw review 
completed in December 
2009 

 Community Support Grants 
Policy completed in 
February 2010 

 Affordable Housing Action 
Plan completed in April 
2010 

 Gambling Venue Policy 
review completed in April 
2010 
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Level of service 
We will advocate at regional and national level to ensure an appropriate share of investment is 
available to deliver social services for the district 
 
Work continued with government agencies through the Rodney Social Wellbeing Advisory 
Group and we have made connections with the Northern Multiple Agency Strategic team in 
anticipation of the transition to an Albany ward. 
 
Rodney is represented on the Social Policy and Community Development, Arts and Culture 
sub-workstreams working on transition matters under the Auckland Transition Agency. 
 
Overall good progress in attracting social services investment into Rodney was achieved 
especially in health services and connectivity, for example an expanded hospital shuttle. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Social Wellbeing Advisory 
Group strategy and work 
programme development and 
implementation 

Demonstrated 
implementation of the 
strategy and associated 
work plan 

Achieved. 
Monthly meetings to oversee the 
implementation of the strategy 
have continued. The 
Implementation Plan has been 
updated and the Annual Report 
is well advanced. 

Wellbeing initiatives promoted 
for regional and / or national 
funding 

Funding applications 
made for targeted social 
initiatives 

Achieved. 
Facilitated community agency 
representation for Ministry of 
Social Development funding 
presentations. 
Panel member for the 
Community Response fund, as 
well as providing assistance with 
applications and references to 
support the establishment of 
new services in the district. 

Level of service 
We will use current and relevant research to develop annual and long term plans that deliver 
high value social services outcomes 
 
Specific research is being used in areas of the Liquor Act submission, and affordable housing 
strategy development. Research and statistical analysis was added to the Social Wellbeing 
Annual Report released in November 2009. 
 
A Local Social Impact Assessment was commissioned as part of the review of the Gambling 
Policy and a joint research project is being undertaken with North Shore City Council to shape 
a legacy document for a future Local Board Alcohol Plan. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Use of current and relevant 
research to develop annual 
plan and LTCCP to deliver 
high value social services 
outcomes 

Demonstrated use of 
research 

Achieved, 
National, regional and local 
research (including census 
results, the Quality of Life 
survey and the Social Report) 
were used to review the Social 
Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
A local survey of off-license 
premises was completed and is 
being integrated with North 
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Shore City Council results to 
shape input into future local 
alcohol plan/s for Hibiscus and 
Bays Local Board. 

Level of service 
We will work with others to provide opportunities for creative arts development 
 
Processes implemented by the Arts Advisor to streamline the Creative NZ (CNZ) Creative 
Community Scheme (CCS) implemented in June and July 2010 have continued to work well. 
An education and promotion campaign was run and a record number of applications for 
funding were received. 
 
The Arts Advisor continues to deliver the arts e-newsletter, working directly with arts groups 
and individuals as a community development and arts development tool. Subscriptions have 
doubled over the past year and it receives very positive feedback from contributors and 
readers. 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Satisfaction levels of arts 
agencies and organisations in 
Rodney with the level of 
Council support provided 
(New measure; baseline to be 
established)  

At least an 80% 
satisfaction achieved 

48.4% Overall Satisfaction. (Not 
achieved) 
 
Arts Staff Support 58.09% 
Arts Policy Support 39.95% 
Arts Funding Support 43.12% 
 
Source: Survey developed by 
Research Manager and 
Community Development 
Manager in conjunction with Arts 
Advisor using postal and 
website to reach 300 recipients 
of the arts newsletter.  34 
responded. 

Funding opportunities 
baseline established 
 

Not achieved. 
Significant process changes to 
the Creative Communities 
Scheme make data misleading 
to compare across years.  
 
42 applications were received in 
July 2010, of which 22 were 
successful with full funding for 
projects. 

External funding opportunities 
for the development of arts  
sourced and local artists, arts 
organisations and agencies 
supported 

Demonstrated support in 
accessing external funding 
opportunities 
 

Achieved. 
Processes implemented to 
streamline CNZ Creative 
Communities Funding have 
been working well.  
 
Changes to this scheme have 
been promoted to notify the arts 
communities. 

Customer satisfaction with the 
amount of arts in their 
community 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 60%) 

At least 50% satisfaction 
achieved 

Achieved 58.3% 
(59% 2009) 
 
Source: 2010 Annual Residents 
Survey. 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
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There are no significant negative impacts arising from this activity which substantially 
contributes to the social and wellbeing of the community. 
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Activity: Community grants and levies 
 
Every year the council invites community based organisations to apply for funding to support 
and promote local social service, sporting, recreational and cultural activities. The community 
grants funding is allocated by ward on a per-capita basis. 
 
Other forms of council support and funding for the community include councillors’ 
discretionary grants ($1,000 per councillor per annum), council scholarships, heritage grants, 
natural heritage and environmental education. Council also provides limited support to some 
community groups by other mechanisms such as rates rebates or subsidised leases on 
council owned facilities or land. 
 
Also included in this activity are the council’s grants to local organisations such as Citizens 
Advice Bureaux (CAB), and the council’s contribution to regional amenities and organisations, 
including the Auckland War Memorial Museum, the Auckland Zoo and the Museum of 
Transport and Technology (MOTAT). Some of these grants and levies are mandated by the 
Auckland Regional Amenities Act 2008. 
 
Why the council did it  
Many organisations operating in the district provide valuable services to the community. The 
value of these services is significantly added to by volunteer effort. Without the funding and 
other support the council offers, many of these organisations would not be able to continue to 
deliver the services, projects and events they currently provide. Grants also enhance the 
quality of life for Rodney’s communities by encouraging volunteerism, building community 
cohesion and nurturing a positive sense of community. 
 
Key Projects 
 

Achievement 

Continue to support the community 
through a range of grants and funding 

Preparations have been made to ensure 
that Community Support Grants funding is 
disbursed prior to 1 November 2010.  
 
Funding information evenings have been 
held attracting approximately 200 attendees. 
76 individual organisations have discussed 
their applications and sought further 
information from the Manager Community 
Development as a result of promotion and 
advertising of the fund.  
 
New application forms have been designed 
and distributed along with funding guidelines 
and criteria.  
 
Conflict of Interest guidelines were 
approved by the Executive Team and 
distributed to staff and councillors to support 
a transparent and unbiased process.  
 
A total of $413,000 will be distributed as part 
of the Community Support Grants.  
 
The Rodney Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) 
has been supported through Service Level 
and Funding Agreements to June 2012. 

Implement changes to the way community 
organisations are supported as a result of 
the review of the Community Grants 
Scheme 

The Community Support Grants Policy was 
adopted and Service Level Agreements with 
the CAB's approved.  
 
Application forms and processes for the new 
grants have been approved and an 
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assessment tool has been developed to 
evaluate the applications when received. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will provide financial grants to support community based organisations providing social, 
recreational and other services. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
A review of the Community 
Grants Scheme completed 

Achieved. 
A review was undertaken and 
issues identified were 
discussed in a workshop with 
Councillors in January 2009.  
 
As a result of this review 18 
recommendations were made 
to the Strategy and Community 
Committee and these were all 
adopted at the meeting on 16 
March 2009. 
 
Work has been undertaken with 
the Community Development 
Team along with the 
Democracy Services Team to 
implement the changes 
introduced through those 
recommendations. 

Equitable funding support 
through the Community 
Grant Scheme 

Demonstrated provision of 
funding to community 
organisations  

Achieved. 
The Community Support Grants 
Policy was approved by the 
Strategy and Community 
Committee on 1 April 2010. 
Information evenings on new 
grants were held in Helensville 
on 31 May 2010, Warkworth on 
1 June 2010 and Silverdale on 
2 June 2010. 
 
The Large Grants Community 
Fund, the Large Grants 
Recreation Fund and the Large 
Grants Youth Fund were 
advertised with applications 
closing 30 July 2010. These 
grants are also complemented 
by the provision of a Small 
Grants Youth Fund, the 
Community Grants Scheme 
and Service Level Agreements 
to the Citizens Advice Bureaux 
located in Helensville, Wellsford 
and Hibiscus Coast. 
 

Percentage of Community 
Grant Scheme recipients 

100% of recipients meet 
obligations by the end of the 

95% (Not achieved)  
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meeting reporting 
obligations 
(Baseline 2007/2008: 81%) 

financial year  77 recipients met their reporting 
obligations of the 81 who 
received grants. 
 
Two letters have been sent out 
to Community Grants Scheme 
2009 recipients to request and 
remind of accountability reports. 
Organisations have been made 
aware that failure to complete a 
report amounts to  a breach of 
the agreement. 
 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
This activity has a positive impact on the social and cultural wellbeing of the district and there 
are no significant negative impacts arising from it. 
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Activity: Graffiti prevention and removal 
 
The council undertakes proactive and reactive activities that contribute to a decrease in graffiti 
and tagging across the district. It ensures the removal of graffiti and tagging from all public 
assets, any graffiti and tagging that contravenes Chapter 8 of the General Bylaw and enforces 
compliance with the Summary Offences (Tagging and Graffiti Vandalism) Amendment Act 
2008. 
 
Chapter 8 of the General Bylaw states that “no person shall in, any public place: (a) leave, 
paint, draw or write any offensive or indecent matter of any kind”. 
 
The Summary Offences (Tagging and Graffiti Vandalism) Amendment Act 2008 makes 
provision for council to monitor the sale of spray cans across the district in order to prevent 
the supply of materials to persons under the age of 18. 
 
The “Respect Rodney Graffiti Eradication Project”, which is facilitated by council, encourages 
and supports communities to develop local responses to graffiti vandalism.  
 
Why the council did it 
 
The community has communicated its expectation that the council and other agencies such 
as the New Zealand Police should prevent and remove graffiti. 
 
Graffiti and tagging are considered anti-social activities that contribute to the unsafe feeling of 
a place and have been demonstrated to attract other criminal activity. Whilst the level of 
graffiti vandalism recorded in Rodney is comparatively low compared to other councils across 
the region, it is none-the-less a problem which is growing and becoming increasingly 
noticeable in both urban and rural areas. 
 
It is important that responses are in place to prevent the spread of graffiti and to ensure that 
our communities look and feel safe and to enhance the attraction of the district. 
 

Key Projects Achievement 
 

Encourage the active participation of 
communities to respond to local graffiti and 
tagging issues 

The community group ‘Springboard’ has 
set up in Warkworth/Snells Beach and 
have been very proactive in painting out 
graffiti in their community. They are 
making a remarkable difference in 
keeping the community graffiti free. We 
continue to support the other graffiti 
removal groups in their work. 
 
‘Respect Rodney’ pamphlets are being 
handed out on a regular basis; they 
contain useful information and 
suggestions to deter graffiti and provide 
guidance on how the community can 
assist by reporting, recording and 
removing graffiti. There is still a steady 
increase of graffiti removal volunteers 
registered for the ‘Respect Rodney’ 
project. 
 
A ‘Crime Prevention through 
Environmental Design’ (CPTED) course 
with a graffiti theme was held in late 
June 2010 for staff and the public. 
Feedback was positive. 
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An opportunity to create a mural was 
advertised locally and letters were sent 
to all schools and youth service 
providers in the Rodney District inviting 
applicants to paint a mural in a graffiti 
prone area of their community. Three 
applications were received and they will 
each receive $600 from Resene to cover 
the cost of paint. 

Continue monitoring the sale of spray paint 
cans to ensure compliance with relevant 
legislation 

Monitoring inspections for the year took 
place and found 100% compliance with 
requirements of the legislation. 
 

Ensure graffiti is removed from publicly 
owned assets 

Graffiti reported through the Call Centre 
or Front of House is registered in the 
council’s Pathway system and referred 
to the appropriate contractor to remove 
from council owned assets. Although 
there are varying response times across 
the contracts, graffiti removal is 
undertaken within contractual 
timeframes. 

Work with young people, youth services 
providers and schools to reduce incidents of 
graffiti and tagging 

The Graffiti Project Officer has 
continued to work with two youth 
providers in our community, HBC Youth 
Centre and Springboard Community 
Works in Warkworth in undertaking 
youth focused projects.  
 
The Team Leader Safer Communities 
and the Graffiti Project Officer are also 
planning to provide support for the Tag 
Free Kiwi Education Package being 
promoted in Rodney schools. 

Engage with the Auckland Region Graffiti 
Free Project to reduce the incidents of graffiti 
and tagging in Rodney 

The Safer Community Team continued 
regular contact with the Auckland 
Region Graffiti Free Project (ARGF), 
attending Steering Group meetings and 
also being directly involved in the 
Partnership and Local Programmes. 

Continue to seek external funding to assist 
with graffiti minimisation programmes 

Following the provision of end of year 
reporting detailing obligations met and 
outcomes achieved, Ministry of Justice 
funding has been extended to enable 
the “Respect Rodney” Project to be fully 
evaluated next year.    
 
Other means of funding continue to be 
investigated and include the Keep NZ 
Beautiful funding which may be 
accessed by schools and was being run 
as a competition beginning in April 2010. 
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How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will contribute to a decrease in the occurrence of graffiti in the district 
 
We have a number of graffiti paint-out teams registered which help minimise incidents of 
graffiti in the community. Retail outlets are monitored to ensure compliance with the Summary 
Offences (Tagging and Graffiti Vandalism) Amendment Act 2008. This is undertaken by the 
bylaws department. The number of reported graffiti type occurrences has decreased. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Number of community 
paint-out teams 

2 community paint out-teams 
established 

Achieved, 
There are four graffiti paint-out 
teams including 70 individually 
registered volunteers. 
 

Cost of graffiti eradication 
from public places 

Baseline cost established $196,054* was spent on graffiti 
eradication 
 
*This result is for the period 1 
July 2009 to 30 June 2010. 
 

Monitoring of retail outlets 
to ensure compliance with 
Summary Offences 
(Tagging and Graffiti 
Vandalism Amendment Act 
2008) 

Information on legislative 
responsibilities provided to 
all retail outlets selling spray 
cans  

Achieved. 
All spray can outlets have 
received a Ministry of Justice 
pamphlet specifying 
responsibilities of retailers 
around selling or displaying 
spray cans, and a personal 
visit by a Council Officer. 
 
 
100% of outlets are compliant.  
 

 
 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
There are no significant negative impacts arising from this activity which aims to enhance the 
social wellbeing of Rodney communities. 

Page 150 



Rodney District Council’s 16-month Report for the period 1July 2009 – 31 October 2010 

 

Activity: Safety 
 
The council delivers community safety projects aimed at reducing crime, crashes and injury, 
as outlined in the Rodney Road Safety Action Plan. We also work on road safety initiatives 
with the New Zealand Transport Agency and Road Safe Auckland. Education initiatives will 
continue to focus on the issues listed as most serious for the district. We work in partnership 
with local groups and service providers, as well as engaging with key partners such as New 
Zealand Police, Auckland Regional Transport Authority, Ministry of Education, Ministry of 
Justice and the Accident Compensation Corporation. Coordination and support of activities 
include targeted road safety campaigns, school and workplace travel plans, community 
patrols and neighbourhood support activities and coordination of the Rodney Safe-Kids 
network to reduce child injuries. 
 
Many of the activities delivered by council are made possible by attracting subsidies, as in the 
case of road safety and sustainable transport activities, from the New Zealand Transport 
Agency or through the successful application for central government contestable funding 
through the Ministry of Justice.  
 
Why the council did it 
 
The Rodney communities have made it clear that they value belonging to safe and caring 
communities, and want Rodney to be safe for everyone. Freedom from violence and other 
criminal activity is essential to our social, economic and cultural wellbeing. It is no coincidence 
that the most prosperous countries are also among the safest. 
 
Road safety is considered a major issue by Rodney’s people and they are concerned about 
reducing the number and severity of road traffic accidents and the number of pedestrians hurt 
on roads. 
 
Walking and cycling are important transport options, particularly for shorter trips. One third of 
all car journeys are less than 2 km and two thirds are less than 6 km. These distances are 
well within the walking or cycling ability of most people. Alternative and active modes of 
transport have a number of benefits to the community and to individuals, such as improved 
health and fitness, cost effectiveness, increased independence and mobility for children and 
senior citizens. Other benefits include the reduction of air, noise and water pollution, plus 
reduced traffic congestion. There is also an increase in neighbourhood security with more 
eyes in the street. With the added value of a multi-nodal transport network there is a reduction 
of costs associated with road maintenance. 
 
The council recognises that safe communities rely on active participation by the people within 
those communities. This means supporting ‘people helping people’ through groups that work 
with individuals, with other groups and with agencies to develop self-reliance and strength. 
We respond to and aim to prevent increasing crime and injury risks and road safety risks that 
come with population growth and urbanisation. 
 
Key Projects Achievements 

 
Deliver at least seven road safety projects 
each year to address specific local issues 
such as speeding, drink-driving, use of 
safety belts, failure to give way at 
intersections, crashes on bends and 
fatigue 

All projects have been completed as per the 
2009/10 Road Safety Action Plan.  These 
included: 
 Alcohol/School Ball Road Show 
 National SADD Awareness Week 

Education 
 Intersections 
 Driver Licensing 
 Fatigue (Promoting and providing 

Fatigue Stops) 
 Motorcycles 
 RDC Local SADD Workshop 

Identify four new schools each year for 
the school travel plan programme 

One new school, Riverhead Primary, joined 
the programme in the 2009/10 financial 
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year. Four other schools were approached 
to join, however they advised they will look 
into it at a future date. Two further schools 
(Gulf Harbour Primary and Taupaki Primary) 
have been identified to join the programme 
in the next financial year. 

Work with three businesses in developing 
workplace travel plans, specific to the 
needs of those businesses, by 2012 

An area based travel plan is currently being 
worked on for Warkworth town centre. A 
survey on travel choice and parking in the 
town centre was undertaken in June 2010. 
Results have been analysed and a draft 
report is being prepared. Verbal agreement 
has been obtained by the Warkworth 
Business Association to work with council 
on a business travel strategy. 

Support bike-wise initiatives such as the 
Mayoral Challenge, Go by Bike to Work, 
and the Work Place Bike Challenge 

Support was provided for the following Bike-
wise activities: 
 Be Safe Be Seen/new road code for 

cyclists 
 Go By Bike Day/bike to work breakfast 
 Mayoral Challenge 
 Bikewise Challenge 
 Share the Road (promoted as part of 

Bikewise month). 
 Planning will commence August/September 
2010 for Bikewise 2011. 

Maintain the existing level of support for 
walking activities such as Walking School 
Buses and Feet First Week 

The existing level of support has been 
maintained for Walking School Buses and 
Feet First, with new schools joining up to 
increase the numbers participating in both.  
Whangaparaoa Primary School celebrated 
their 8th Walking School Bus in Term 3 of 
2009 which meant they had the highest 
number in the Auckland Region. 

Promote the Take a Mate carpooling 
scheme 

An advertising campaign approved by NZTA 
has been delivered across the district using 
a variety of media which resulted in an 
increase of new sign ups to the ‘Take a 
Mate’ scheme. 

Will respond to community safety 
concerns in partnership with New Zealand 
Police and other agencies 

The council continues to work in partnership 
with the NZ Police in responding to 
community safety concerns. We have been 
working with them in relation to issues 
identified by our communities along with 
local organisations on the Safer Community 
Working Group of Helensville / Parakai. 
Further collaborative work is being 
undertaken in relation to spray can 
legislation and enforcement. 
 
The police continue to support the 
‘2Educate’ project and they are also a 
supportive partner on the ‘Respect Rodney’ 
and ‘Rodney Guardians’ projects. 
 
Community meetings have been attended 
by council and police where discussions 
have taken place following issues being 
raised regarding liquor bans. 
  
We continue to work with ACC in support of 
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our 2Educate project.  
 
The ‘Safekids’ workshop held in Rodney 
was a success with community 
representatives confirming their attendance 
was beneficial. 

Lobby central government for funding to 
address community crime and safety 
issues 

Funding was sourced from the Ministry of 
Justice (MoJ) for Project Gravity. This 
project has been undertaken in Northern 
Rodney targeting high risk male youth 
offenders.  
 
The Rodney Guardian Project also 
continued with funding support from the 
MoJ. 
 
ALAC support with funding provided by the 
Community Alcohol Action Fund has 
enabled the 2Educate Project to go ahead 
which is aimed at reducing the supply of 
alcohol to under age drinkers. 
 
In addition, we have supported Te Rito 
Rodney in their application for funding from 
Community Organisations Grant Scheme 
(COGS) to run a Children’s Day Project 
which was successful. 
 

Undertake reviews of the Liquor Ban 
Bylaw to assess the impact of the bans on 
offending and anti-social behaviour 

The council approved a reviewed Liquor 
Ban Bylaw for public consultation on 13 
August 2009. Submissions closed 25 
September 2009 and a hearing was held 19 
October 2009. 
 
The reviewed Liquor Ban Bylaw including 
the addition of two new areas was 
completed and adopted by council on 5 
November 2009. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will contribute to the reduction in crime by implementing crime prevention projects 
 
Projects undertaken during the last 16 months continued with funding support for crime 
prevention activities from the Ministry of Justice. 
 
Controlled purchase operations aimed at reducing supply of alcohol to youth were conducted 
within the district.  We continued working with the Safer Community Working Group 
Helensville/Parakai in relation to ensuring liquor bans are working and appropriate within the 
communities. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Level of funding to support 
crime prevention activities 
available from the Ministry of 
Justice  

Maximum level of funding 
obtained 

Funding was received from 
the Ministry of Justice to 
continue the ‘Rodney 
Guardian’ and ‘Respect 
Rodney’ projects.  
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Accountability reports were 
completed and retuned to 
ensure this continued. 
 
Further funding has been 
received for another six 
months (as at 30 June 
2010) for a youth project in 
north Rodney.  
 
Springboard Community 
Works applied to and was 
successful in gaining 
funding from the Rodney 
District Council Community 
Grants scheme for the Vault 
Project. This project which 
is a natural extension of the 
Gravity Project will be 
integrated into “Vault”.  
 

Controlled purchase 
operations aimed at reducing 
supply of alcohol to youth 
within the district 
 

At least two operations 
conducted each year  

Achieved. 
Two controlled purchase 
operations have been 
undertaken by police with 
the support of council. In all, 
49 off-licence premises 
were targeted with six 
breaches noted during the 
second operation.  
 
Both of these operations 
have been funded through 
the ‘2Educate’ project. 
 

Level of service 
 
We will promote safe and caring communities 
 
We have undertaken the ‘2Educate’ project and have worked with local youth service 
providers to gain funding from central government agencies for a number of projects 
promoting safer and caring communities.  
 
We also support the Rodney Neighbourhood Support Group and the four local community 
patrols. Community Service awards are held annually. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Establishment & maintenance 
of a database of local 
community organisations 

We will establish a database 
of local community 
organisations 

Achieved. 
The community 
development database 
established in  2008/09 
continued to develop and 
grow with relevant and key 
information being captured 
and available to the 
organisation to support 
community outcomes. 
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Educational campaigns 
targeting potential suppliers 
of alcohol to youth  

We will undertake at least 
one educational campaign 
targeting potential suppliers 
of alcohol to youth in the 
district annually 

Achieved. 
We applied for and received 
funding from ALAC's 
Community Alcohol Action 
Fund (CAAF) to undertake 
Project 2Educate.  
 
This project targets whanau 
and 18 to 24 year olds who 
supply alcohol to under age 
drinkers which helps to 
raise awareness within 
these two target groups of 
the impacts this action can 
have. 
 
This project was supported 
by radio advertising in 
relation to the liquor bans 
and road safety messages 
also undertaken by the 
council. 
 

Community Service awards We will hold a ceremony 
recognising Community 
Service annually 

Achieved. 
The Community Service 
Awards were held in May 
2010 in a civic ceremony 
recognising the efforts of 
volunteers in the 
community. Twelve 
volunteers and seven 
community groups received 
awards. 
 

 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
This activity increases the social and cultural wellbeing of the Rodney communities and there 
are no significant negative impacts arising from it. 

Page 155 



Rodney District Council’s 16-month Report for the period 1July 2009 – 31 October 2010 

 

Activity: Fire and emergencies 
 
The council ensures that people in the district are prepared to deal with any situation that 
cannot be dealt with by the normal emergency services or which require a significant and 
coordinated response under the Civil Defence and Emergency Management Act 2002. In 
partnership with local agencies, the council’s civil defence and emergency management work 
supports strong communities that are aware of local hazards and takes steps to reduce risks. 
 
The emergency services team is also responsible for ensuring that the Rodney rural fire 
brigades are adequately staffed and resourced and work collaboratively with emergency 
management staff and volunteers to ensure a co-ordinated local response to disaster events. 
 
Rodney District has seven volunteer fire forces to ensure that fires and other emergencies 
outside the urban areas are responded to and handled in a timely and professional manner.  
The volunteers are trained to respond to medical emergencies, hazardous substance spills, 
motor vehicle accidents as well as property and vegetation fires. The council also supports 
the Kawau Island volunteer fire force which is managed by the Department of Conservation. 
The council is also a member of the Woodhill Riverhead Rural Fire District and as such 
provides support for responses to fires occurring in these forest areas. 
 
Why the council did it 
 
An adequate capability to respond to civil emergencies and rural fires is beyond the resources 
of most of the district’s citizens. In risk management terms the effects of such events on 
safety and property are large, but the probability of them occurring to any one of us is low. 
There is, therefore too little incentive on individuals to provide for their own needs and it would 
be inefficient for everyone to provide for all their emergency and fire response themselves. 
The council is required by the Civil Defence Emergency Management Act 2002 to plan and 
provide for civil defence emergency management in Rodney. This includes identifying and 
implementing cost effective risk reduction and ensuring there are trained and competent 
people, including volunteers, to cope with an emergency. 
 
Under the Forest and Rural Fires Act 1977 and Forest and Rural Fires Regulations 2005 the 
council is responsible for preventing and controlling fires in areas not included in urban fire 
districts, and for ensuring that land owners clear rank vegetation to reduce fire risk on 
unoccupied urban land. 
 
Council maintains local and regional relationships with key stakeholders to ensure that 
responses to disaster events are coordinated and that resources are utilised in order to 
reduce and prevent loss of life and damage to property. 
 
Emergency management activities coordinated by council enable recovery activities to occur 
in order to enable the social, economic and physical recovery of the district following a 
disaster event. 
 
Key Projects Achievements 

 
Civil Defence - Follow on of Tsunami 
Warning Siren implementation 
throughout potentially threatened 
coastal areas  

Stage Two of the tsunami sirens installation at 
Omaha has been completed. Siren testing 
held 13 April 2010 was successful. 

Rural Fire - Annual upgrading of a fire 
appliance to an allocated station with a 
cost of approximately $160,000 per 
vehicle 

A second hand fire appliance was sourced 
and purchased from England to replace the 
aging appliance based at Shelly Beach. 
 
The truck had to be repainted and fitted with 
New Zealand standard fittings. 
 
Following successful resolution of NZTA 
issues relating to the diesel exemption for the 
truck, it was completed and handed over to 
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the Shelly Beach Rural Fire Force to 
commence operational use.  

Ongoing upgrade of Personal Protective 
Equipment (PPE) and operational 
equipment  

All PPE scheduled for replacement has been 
purchased and provided to volunteers. 

A fume extraction system is to be 
implemented to draw all diesel fumes 
out of the engine bay when the fire 
appliance is started (all stations to have 
implementation complete by year three) 

Extraction systems have been installed in the 
Kaukapakapa, Shelly Beach and Muriwai fire 
stations, and the new fire station at Ahuroa. 

 
How the council monitored progress 
 
Level of service 
 
We will facilitate the provision of rural fire and emergency services in areas not served by 
NZ Fire Rescue Services 
 
Weekly training has been held by all Volunteer Rural Fire Forces managed by the Rodney 
District Council. Three rural fire training weekend courses were conducted with new recruits.
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Implementation and review of 
the Rural Fire Plan in 
accordance with National Rural 
Fire Authority requirements 

Readiness and Response 
sections reviewed and 
updated 

Achieved. 
The plan was reviewed and 
no update was required. 
 

A current CDEM Response 
and Recovery Plan in 
place 

Achieved. 
All plans reviewed and 
updated to ensure 
continuity throughout the 
district should they be 
required. 
 

Level of Civil Defence 
Emergency Management  
(CDEM) response and 
recovery 

At least one Response and 
Recovery exercise is 
conducted  

Achieved. 
To ensure competency 
levels are maintained an 
exercise called ‘Rodney 
Wave’ was conducted on 
17 June 2010. This 
exercise was attended by 
Rodney Emergency 
Service stakeholders and 
was a successful training 
forum. 
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Level of service 
 
We will provide for capability and preparedness to respond to emergency situations 
 
Rodney Rural Fire and CDEM have maintained the required volunteer numbers to provide 
effective response including 28 staff. There is one active Civil Defence 
Community Emergency Response Group and 14 - 20 rural fire volunteers at each of the 
seven stations. Monthly training meetings have been maintained. Bi-monthly meetings have 
been well attended by the external Emergency Service agency groups.  
 
Rural fire volunteers undertake weekly in-station training sessions, along with structured 
training programmes including helicopter, basic skills, chainsaw and Rural Fire Officer 
courses resulting in four national certificates being achieved. Rodney Rural Fire also 
achieved a top five rural fire incident response position in New Zealand.  
 
Collaborative relationships have been enhanced with Emergency Services agencies 
that provide strong support to the Rodney Emergency Services Team and representation in 
the Emergency Operations Centre (EOC) during an activated response situation. Rodney 
CDEM staff were actively involved in a successful region wide desktop Tsunami exercise, 
achieving a competent sign-off from the Ministry CDEM.  
 
Education and advisory programmes have been delivered to community organisations, 
retirement/rest homes and schools on an as requested basis, averaging two presentations 
per month. The ‘Rodney Council Emergency Response Tree’, text and email notification 
contact lists have been tested during various incidents, resulting in information being 
distributed efficiently and effectively to a large number of customers. 
 

Measure 16 month target for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 

16 month result for final 
report (1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010) 
Number of active volunteer 
rural fire brigades 

Seven active brigades 
maintained and supported 
 

Achieved. Seven active 
brigades maintained and 
supported. 

Emergency management 
exercises are conducted  

An emergency 
management exercise is 
conducted annually 

Achieved. 
Exercise ‘Rodney Wave’ 
was held 17 of June 2010 
with all local emergency 
services including police, 
fire, coastguard and surf 
lifesaving.  

Provision of relevant 
educational and advisory 
information to the public 

Educational and advisory 
information is provided for 
public awareness annually 

Achieved. 
A ‘You Against the Storm’ 
campaign was conducted 
over the winter period. This 
campaign was provided 
through local media 
including the newspaper 
and the local radio station. 
Ongoing information for 
preparedness in an 
emergency is also provided 
at public events and public 
talks and is available on the 
RDC website. 

Participation in regional 
working groups to promote 
greater coordination in 
emergency response 

Demonstrated 
representation at the 
Emergency Services 
Regional Committee, Co-
ordinating Executive 
Group, Auckland CDEM 
Group and Auckland 

Three meetings were held 
between the Auckland 
Region Civil Defence 
Emergency Management 
Officers Group on 14 April, 
12 May and 9 June 2010. 
Meetings with the North 
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Engineering Lifelines 
Group 
 

West Emergency 
Management Committee 
took place on 12 April and 
14 June 2010, and one 
meeting on 24 June with 
the Auckland Regional 
Welfare Advisory Group. 
 

 
 
 
Potential for negative impacts 
 
This activity enhances the social, cultural, economic and environmental wellbeing of the 
community and there are no apparent significant negative impacts arising from this activity. 
 
 
 
 
Capital expenditure Community Development 
 

ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Community Policy, Planning and Action

Arts embellishment 13 62  

Fire and Emergencies

Ahuroa minor equipment & plant 3 3  

Ahuroa Station Upgrade 253 250  i

Appliance portable pumps 43 46  

Breathing apparatus cylinders & components 20 22  

CDEM HQ Building Consent and Fitout 275 275  i

Exhaust fans fire station 56 61  

Fire station  radios 14 15  

Hose replacement program 12 13  

Implementation of radios into centres 28 34  

Kaukapakapa minor equipment & plant 3 3  

Kawau Island equipment & plant minor purchases 1 2  

Matakana fire tanker replace 40 0  

Matakana minor equipment & plant 3 3  

Muriwai minor equipment & plant 3 3  

Plant & equipment promotion & education 9 13  

Protective clothing renewals 50 54  

Public warning systems 147 147 i

Puhoi minor equipment & plant 3 3  

Safety equipment & protective c lothing 26 30  

Shelly Beach fire appliance replace 169 168  

Shelly Beach minor equipment & plant 3 3  

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 1,174 1,212  
 
 i – Budget carried forward 
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SUPPORT ASSETS 
 
In addition to the council’s activities described in the preceding pages, it also has and 
manages a number of assets providing work space for staff and resources that enable council 
work to be undertaken. 
 
Overview 
 
These support assets include council offices, vehicles and information technology (IT). The 
vehicle fleet comprises 103 vehicles (which includes 13 rural fire vehicles) as at 1 October 
2010. The IT assets comprise around $0.8M worth of business application software and 
$2.7M worth of IT equipment 
 
Financial results 
 
Support Assets

Actual Plan Actual 
12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 
Operating Revenue:
Interest Income 1,419 0 0
Vested asset contributions 0 0 40
Gain/(Loss) on sale 63 0 0
General rates 434 0 0
Gain (Loss) on sale of assets 0 0

$000 

(189)

Total Operating Revenue 1,916 0 (149)

TOTAL OPERATING SURPLUS ( DEFICIT) 1,916 0 (149)
Capital Expenditure

New capital works 1,194 898 1,067
Renewal capital works 3,204 3,044 3,036

Total Capital Expenditure 4,398 3,942 4,103

Other Funding Requirements
Loan repayments 448 23,464 0
Transfers to general & restricted reserves 519 167 0

Total Funding Requirement 5,365 27,573 4,103

Funds To Be Provided From:
Operating surplus / deficit 1,916 0 (149)
Asset sales 0 26,413 0
Loans raised 11,566 (21,297) 0
Transfers from general & restricted reserves 1,790 486 3,497
Non cash expenses 3,204 2,172 754

Total Funds Provided 18,476 7,774 4,102

FUNDING SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT) 13,111 (19,799) (1)
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Capital expenditure Support Assets 
 

ACTUAL PLAN Reason

$000 $000 Code

Support Assets

AMIS/GIS 12 75  i a

Art collection renewal 6 6  

Business applications 378 633  i a

Document management 96 180  i a

Health & Safety  Service Centres 1 4  

ICT infrastructure 1,580 1,089  i a

Library computer infrastructure 326 337

Orewa generator shed 9 10  

Orewa office furniture renewals 41 47

Orewa office refurbishment 59 60 i

Payroll / HR 0 45  i a

Pontoon Boat for Harbour Master 16 0  

Project Database 0 150  i

Property Records Management 279 295  

Service centres minor renewals 1 3  

Silverdale fi le remediation 547 546  i

Telephony infrastructure 40 191  i a

Vehicle renewals 243 748  

Workplace Equipment 429 679  i a

Vested Assets 40 0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 4,102 5,098  
 
 a – was to be completed in 2010 and proposed carry forward to 2011 
 i – budget carried forward 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 161 



Rodney District Council’s 16-month Report for the period 1July 2009 – 31 October 2010 

 

Page 162 

 

PART IV 
 

F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  
A N D  P O L I C I E S  

 ............................................................................................................................Page 

Statement of Comprehensive Income ........................................................................... 163 

Statement of Financial Position..................................................................................... 164 

Statement of Changes in Equity .................................................................................... 165 

Schedule of Capital Expenditure ................................................................................... 166 

Statement of Cash flows................................................................................................. 167 

Notes to the Financial Statements................................................................................. 168 

Audit Report ..................................................................................................................... 215 

 

 
 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND RESPONSIBILITY 
 
Responsibility 
 
Auckland Council is authorised and required by the Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau 
Reorganisation) Act 2009 to complete and adopt an annual report for Rodney District Council.  
The Council and management of Auckland Council accept responsibility for the completion of 
the Financial Statements and the judgements used in them and hereby adopt the financial 
statements as presented.  When completing the annual report and financial statements 
Auckland Council has relied on the system of internal control maintained by Rodney District 
Council and the confirmations received from management of Rodney District Council. 
 
In the opinion of the Auckland Council the financial statements for the 16 months ended 31 
October 2010 fairly reflect the financial performance, financial position and service 
performance of Rodney District Council. 
 
Statement of Compliance 
The Council and management of Auckland Council confirm that all the statutory requirements 
of section 98 of the Local Government Act 2002 have been met. 
 
 
 

  
 

Len Brown Doug McKay 
MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
24 February 2011 24 February 2011 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $00
Note

Income
Rates revenue 2 99,130 132,192 131

0 

,336
Other revenue 3 61,684 106,342 113,713
Other gains/(losses) 4 4,880 27,805 1,318

Total income 5 165,694 266,338 246,367

Expenditure
Personnel costs 6 30,453 41,806 43,895
Other expenses 7 64,752 83,888 115,883
Finance costs 8 21,138 26,178 25,429
Depreciation and amortisation expense 13 37,204 54,763 54,771
Regional Amenities and Museum funding 1,532 5,303 4,296

Total operating expenditure 5 155,079 211,938 244,274
   

Surplus before tax 10,615 54,400 2,093
   

Income tax 33 -               -                -                

Surplus after tax 10,615 54,400 2,093

Other comprehensive income
Revaluation gains/(losses) -                 39,916 150,067         
Financial assets revaluation fair value gains/(losses) 2,429 -                 (39)
Financial assets revaluation cash flow hedge gains/(losses) (9,020) 2,934 (5,470)

Total comprehensive income 4,024 97,250 146,651

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
 
 
The above Statement of Comprehensive income shows operating costs and all revenues (operating and capital) to 
give a net surplus. 
 
The Council achieved a surplus for the 16 months between 1 July 2009 and 31 October 2010 of $2.1M.   
 
Note: this surplus includes revenues of cash contributions of $13M, vested assets of $25.6M, and NZ Transport 
Agency subsidies of $27.2M. These funds are combined with proceeds from asset sales and depreciation funds to 
fund capital expenditure of $130.9M. 
 
Explanations for significant variances from budget are detailed in note 34 



Rodney District Council’s 16-month Report for the period 1July 2009 – 31 October 2010 

 

Page 164 

 

Statement of Financial Position 
As at 31 October 2010

Parent & Group Council Parent & Group
Actual Plan Actual

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
Note $000 $000 $000

ASSET

 

S
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 12,824               -                         7,636                 
Debtors and other receivables 10 23,205               23,352               19,854               
Inventories 11 35                      29                      28                     
Non-current assets held for resale 16 17,581               7,450                 22,351               
Derivative financial instruments 12 -                         100                    -                         
Total current assets 53,645             30,931             49,869               

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 1,617,311          1,778,523          1,811,158          
Intangible assets 13 4,599                 4,590                 770                   
Forestry assets 14 1,626                 1,628                 1,751                 
Investment properties 15 1,928                 1,928                 -                         
Debtors and other receivables 10 763                    -                         1,781                
Other financial assets 17 20,118               20,118               20,079               
Derivative financial instruments 12 4,460                 -                         536                    
Total non-current assets 1,650,805        1,806,787        1,836,075          

TOTAL ASSETS 1,704,450          1,837,718          1,885,944          

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 9 -                         5,001                 -                        
Creditors and other payables 18 29,386               30,996               42,903               
Employee entitlements 19 3,500                 3,884                 2,899                 
Borrowings 20 122,502             50,616               107,019             
Contributions, bonds and deposits 7,661                 7,661                 5,647                
Derivative financial instruments 12 858                    -                         35                      
Total current liabilities 163,907             98,158               158,503             

Non-Current liabilities
Employee entitlements 19 7                        7                        -                         
Borrowings 20 182,501             256,493             198,000             
Provisions 21 4,935                 3,600                 27,565               
Derivative financial instruments 12 10,079               -                         12,134               
Total non-current liabilites 197,522             260,100             237,699             

TOTAL LIABILITIES 361,429             358,258             396,202             

Equity
Accumulated funds 22 875,662             979,138             900,352             
Other reserves 22 467,358             500,322             589,390             
Total equity 1,343,020        1,479,460        1,489,742          

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,704,450          1,837,718          1,885,944          

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.  
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010

Parent & Group Council Parent & Group
Actual Plan Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $000

Opening balances
Accumulated funds 867,960           918,013            875,662            
Restricted reserves 25,806               21,100               28,718               
Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve 440,162             440,162             440,162             
Cash flow hedge reserve 4,626               -                        (4,395)
Fair value reserve 444                  2,934                2,873                 
Total Opening balance 1,338,996          1,382,209          1,343,020          

Changes in equity
Accumulated funds
Surplus for the year 10,615               54,400               2,093                
Transfer (to)/from restricted reserves (2,912) 6,725                22,526              
Transfer from statement of comprehensive income -                         -                         70                      

Restricted Reserves
Transfer (to)/from accumulated funds 2,912               (6,725) (22,526)

Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
Revaluation gains/(losses) -                         39,916               150,067            

Cash flow hedge reserve
Fair value gains/(losses) (10,455) 2,934                 (5,400)
Transfer (to)/from statement of comprehensive income 1,435                 -                         (70)

Fair value reserve
Financial assets revaluation gains/(losses) 2,429                 -                         (39)

Closing balances
Accumulated funds 875,662           979,138            900,352             
Restricted reserves 28,718               14,375               6,192                 
Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve 440,162           480,079            590,229            
Cash flow hedge reserve (4,395) 2,934                (9,865)
Fair value reserve 2,873                 2,934                 2,834                 
Total Closing balance 1,343,020        1,479,460         1,489,742         

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Capital Expenditure
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010

Parent & Group Council Parent & Group
Actual Plan Actual 

12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

Community Services 13,337               16,876               22,232              
Community Development 916                    664                    1,175                 
Support Assets 4,398                 3,941                 4,102                
District and Environmental Planning 381                    371                    571                   
Economic Development 9                        -                         24                      
Regulatory Services 1,249                 160                    203                    
Transportation Services 42,721               76,581               60,012              
Environmental Services 6,518                 6,883                 13,780              
Water Services 17,943               29,595               28,817               

Total Capital Expenditure 87,471             135,072           130,916            

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows 
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010

Parent & Group Council Parent & Group
Actual Plan Actual 

12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
Note 30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $000
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash was provided from:
Receipts from rates revenue 98,683 132,192 138,047
Grants and subsidies 25,528 47,796 28,098
Interest received 763 312 1,264
External recoveries 23,054 50,179 69,521

148,028 230,479 236

 

,930
Cash was applied to:
Payments to suppliers and employees 88,082 121,837 129,382
Interest paid 20,197 28,421 26,580
Levies paid 1,532 5,303 4,296

109,811 155,561 160,258
Net cash from operating activities 23 38,217 74,918 76,672

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from borrowings 49,836 67,609 21,609

49,836 67,609 21,609
Cash was applied to:
Repayment of borrowings 5,000 65,659 21,593

5,000 65,659 21,593
Net cash from financing activities 44,836 1,950 16

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 8,174 44,532 28,430
Sale of investment properties and shares 763 -                     -                     

8,937 44,532 28,430
Cash was applied to:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 82,598 128,564 109,295
Purchase of intangible assets 934 -                     1,011

83,532 128,564 110,306
Net cash from investing activities (74,595) (84,032) (81,876)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 8,458 (7,164) (5,188)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,366 2,163 12,824

Cash and cash equivalents at the at the end of the year 12,824 (5,001) 7,636

The closing balance is represented by the following:
Cash and bank deposits 12,824 (5,001) 7,636

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.

The net GST component of operating activit ies reflects the net GST paid and received with the Inland Revenue Department. The net GST 
component has been presented on a net basis, as the gross amounts do not provide meaningful information for financial statement 
purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010 
 

1  STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Reporting Entity 

Rodney District Council (RDC) is a territorial local authority governed by the Local Government Act 2002 and is 
domiciled in New Zealand. 

The Rodney District Council group (RDC) consists of the ultimate parent Rodney District Council and its subsidiary 
Rodney Properties Ltd (100% owned). Rodney Properties Ltd is incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. 

The primary objective of RDC is to provide goods or services for the community or social benefit rather than making 
a financial return. Accordingly, RDC has designated itself and the group as public benefit entities for the purposes 
of New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS). 

The primary objective of RPL is to provide advice on the disposal of a portfolio of non-operational RDC properties 
to maximise financial returns to the Council so that debt can be minimised whilst trying to achieve good urban 
design and strategic outcomes. 

The financial statements of RDC are for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010. The financial statements were 
authorised for issue by Auckland Council on 24 February 2011 

Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of RDC have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act 2002: Part 6, Section 98 and Part 3 of Schedule 10, which includes the requirement to comply with 
New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice (NZ GAAP). They comply with NZ IFRS, and other applicable 
Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for public benefit entities.  

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial 
statements.  

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, modified by the revaluation of land, 
buildings, certain infrastructural assets, forestry assets, and certain financial instruments (including derivative 
instruments).  

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand 
dollars ($'000).  The functional currency of RDC is New Zealand dollars. 

Auckland reorganisation/ going concern assumption 

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009, dissolved Rodney District Council on 31 
October 2010. The functions, duties and powers of Rodney District Council became the functions, duties and 
powers of the Auckland Council – the single unitary authority responsible for governing the Auckland region from 1 
November 2010. All of Rodney District Council’s assets, rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements and engagements 
vested in the Auckland Council group at that date. Refer to Note 29  

The dissolution of Rodney District Council requires the financial statements to be prepared on a dissolution basis, 
not the normal going-concern basis. All the services Rodney District Council delivered continue to be delivered by 
the Auckland Council group.  Because the operations, assets and liabilities of Rodney District Council have been 
transferred to the Auckland Council group, no adjustments have been made in the financial statements resulting 
from the dissolution of Rodney District Council other than as disclosed in Note 6, nor have there been any changes 
to the carrying values of the assets.  

Basis of Consolidation 

The purchase method of consolidation is used to prepare the consolidated group financial statements, which 
involves adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses on a line by line basis. All 
significant intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation   

Joint ventures 

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is 
subject to joint control. For jointly controlled assets RDC recognises in its financial statements its share of jointly 
controlled assets, the liabilities and expenses it incurs, its share of liabilities and expenses incurred jointly and 
income from the sale or use of its share of the output of the joint venture. 
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Standards, amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet effective and have not been early 
adopted 

Standards, amendments, and interpretations issued but not yet effective that have not been early adopted, and 
which are relevant to the Council and group, are: 

 NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments will eventually replace NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement. NZ IAS 39 is being replaced through the following 3 main phases: Phase 1 Classification 
and Measurement, Phase 2 Impairment Methodology, and Phase 3 Hedge Accounting. Phase 1 on the 
classification and measurement of financial assets has been completed and has been published in the new 
financial instrument standard NZ IFRS 9. NZ IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a 
financial asset is measured at amortised cost or fair value, replacing the many different rules in NZ IAS 39. 
The approach in NZ IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments (its business 
model) and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The new standard also requires 
a single impairment method to be used, replacing the many different impairment methods in NZ IAS 39. 
The new standard is required to be adopted for the year ended 30 June 2014. RDC has not yet assessed 
the effect of the new standard and it will not be early adopted.  

Changes in accounting policies 

Due to the pending Auckland Council reorganisation and to bring the valuation policy in line with the valuation 
policies adopted by the other councils in the Auckland region, RDC revalued its operational land and buildings.  
Previously these assets were held at deemed cost. As a result of the revaluation the value of land and buildings 
has increased by $83.9 million. 

There have been no other changes in accounting policies during the financial year. 

The Council and group has adopted the following revisions to accounting standards during the financial year, which 
have had only a presentational or disclosure effect: 

 Amendments to NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The amendments introduce a three-level 
fair value disclosure hierarchy that distinguishes fair value measurements by the significance of valuation 
inputs used. A maturity analysis of financial assets is also required to be prepared if this information is 
necessary to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and extent of liquidity risk. The 
transitional provisions of the amendment do not require disclosure of comparative information in the first 
year of application. The Council and group has elected to disclose comparative information. 

 NZ IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Revised 2009) replaces NZ IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures 
(Issued 2004). The revised standard simplifies the definition of a related party, clarifying its intended 
meaning and eliminating inconsistencies from the definition. The Council and group has elected to early 
adopt the revised standard and its effect has been to disclose further information about commitments 
between related parties. 

Budget figures 

The budget figures are those approved by the Council at the beginning of the year after a period of consultation 
with the public as part of the Annual Plan process. The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with NZ 
GAAP, and are consistent with the accounting policies adopted by the Council for the preparation of the financial 
statements. 

Cost allocation 

RDC has derived the cost of service for each significant activity of RDC using the cost allocation system outlined 
below. 

Direct costs are those costs directly attributable to a significant activity. Indirect costs are those costs, which cannot 
be identified in an economically feasible manner, with a specific significant activity. 

Direct costs are charged directly to significant activities. Indirect costs are charged to significant activities using 
appropriate cost drivers such as actual usage, staff numbers and floor area. 

Good and Service Tax (GST) 

All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for debtors and other receivables and 
creditors and other payables, which are stated on a GST inclusive basis. GST is not recoverable as input tax is 
recognised as part of the related asset or expense. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department (IRD) is included as part 
of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. 

The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is 
classified as an operating cash flow in the statement of cash flows. 



Rodney District Council’s 16-month Report for the period 1July 2009 – 31 October 2010 

 

Page 170 

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST. 

Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received 

 Rates are set annually by a resolution from Council and relate to a financial year. All ratepayers are 
invoiced within the financial year to which the rates have been set Rates revenue is recognised when 
payable. 

 Water billing and volumetric wastewater revenue is recognised on an accrual basis. Unbilled sales, as a 
result of unread meters at year end, are accrued on an average usage basis. 

 RDC receives government grants from the New Zealand Transport Agency, which subsidises part of RDC's 
costs in maintaining the local roading infrastructure. The subsidies are recognised as revenue upon 
entitlement as conditions pertaining to eligible expenditure have been fulfilled 

 Other grants and assets vested in the Council — with or without conditions — are recognised as revenue 
when control over the assets is obtained. 

 Development and financial contributions are recognised as revenue when the Council provides, or is able 
to provide, the service for which the contribution was charged. Otherwise, development and financial 
contributions are recognised as liabilities until such time as the Council provides, or is able to provide, the 
service. Development contributions are classified as part of “Other revenue”. 

Borrowing costs  

The Council and group has elected to defer the adoption of NZ IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (Revised 2007) in 
accordance with its transitional provisions that are applicable to public benefit entities.  

Consequently, all borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.  

Income Tax 

Generally the Council is not liable for income tax on its core activities, however, where taxable income arises the 
following polices apply:  

Income tax expense comprises both current tax and deferred tax, and is calculated using tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by balance date. 

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable based on the taxable profit for the current year, plus any 
adjustments to income tax payable in respect of prior years. 

Deferred tax is the amount of income tax payable or recoverable in future periods in respect of temporary 
differences and unused tax losses. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would 
follow from the manner in which the entity expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
liabilities. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the 
initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit. 

Deferred tax is recognised on taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, 
and interests in joint ventures, except where the company can control the reversal of the temporary difference and 
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Current tax and deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive income, except when it 
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the tax is dealt with in equity. 

Operating leases 

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of 
an asset.  Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. 

Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.  

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position.  
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Statement of Cash Flows 

 Operating activities include cash received from all income sources of the Council and record the cash 
payments made for the supply of goods and services.   

 Investing activities are those activities relating to the acquisition and disposal of non-current assets. 

 Financing activities comprise activities that change the equity and debt capital structure of the Council. 

Debtors and other receivables  

Debtors and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. . 

Inventories  

Inventories held for distribution or consumption in the provision of services that are not supplied on a commercial 
basis are measured at the lower of cost, adjusted when applicable, for any loss of service potential. 

Financial assets  

RDC classifies its financial assets into the following four categories: financial assets at fair value through surplus or 
deficit, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and financial assets at fair value through 
comprehensive income. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation 
at every reporting date.  

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs unless they are carried at 
fair value through profit or loss in which case the transaction costs are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income.  

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 
techniques. RDC uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing 
at each balance date.  

The four categories of financial assets are:  

(1) Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit  

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through 
profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of 
selling in the short term or if so designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are either held 
for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.  

Currently, RDC does not hold any financial assets in this category.  

(2) Loans and receivables  

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market.  

After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses 
when the asset is impaired or derecognised are recognised in the surplus or deficit. Loans and receivables are 
classified as "trade and other receivables" in the statement of financial position.  

(3) Held to maturity investments  
Held to maturity investments are assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that RDC has the 
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  

After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses 
when the asset is impaired or derecognised are recognised in the surplus or deficit.  

(4) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are those that are designated into the category 
at initial recognition or are not classified in any of the other categories above. They are included in non-current 
assets unless management intends to dispose of the share investment within 12 months of balance date or if the 
debt instrument is not expected to be realised within 12 months of balance date. 
This category encompasses:  

 Investments that RDC intends to hold long-term but which may be realised before maturity; and  

 Shareholdings that RDC holds for strategic purposes. RDC's investments in Watercare Services Ltd and 
Civic Assurance are held at the net asset backing of the shares.  
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Impairment of financial assets  

At each balance sheet date RDC assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group 
of financial assets is impaired. Any impairment losses are recognised in the surplus or deficit. 

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising 
from financing activities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the Council does not hold or issue derivative 
financial instruments for trading purposes. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently remeasured at their fair value at each balance date. The method of recognising the resulting gain or 
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item 
being hedged.  

The associated gains or losses of derivatives that are not hedge accounted are recognised in the surplus or deficit. 

RDC designates certain derivatives as either:  

 hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or  

 hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedge).  

RDC documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged 
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. RDC also 
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are 
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.  

The full fair value of hedging derivatives is classified as a non-current asset if the remaining maturity of the hedged 
item is more than 12 months and as a current asset if the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 
months.  

Fair value hedge  

The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instrument at fair value, along with the changes in the fair value on 
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, is recognised in the surplus or deficit.  

Cash flow hedge  

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised 
directly in equity through the statement of changes in equity and the ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the 
hedging instrument is recognised in the surplus or deficit.  

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, 
the associated gains or losses that were recognised directly in equity will be reclassified into profit or loss in the 
same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss. However, if RDC 
expects that all or a portion of a loss recognised directly in equity will not be recovered in one or more future 
periods, it will reclassify into profit or loss the amount that is not expected to be recovered.  

When a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, or a forecast transaction for a non-financial asset or non-financial liability becomes a firm 
commitment for which fair value hedge accounting is applied, then the associated gains and losses that were 
recognised directly in equity will be included in the initial cost or carrying amount of the asset or liability.  

For cash flow hedges other than those covered above, amounts that had been recognised directly in equity will be 
recognised in profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit 
or loss (for example, when a forecast sale occurs).  

If a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised or revoked, or it no longer meets the criteria for 
hedge accounting, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that remains recognised directly in equity 
from the period when the hedge was effective will remain separately recognised in equity until the forecast 
transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur any related cumulative gain or 
loss on the hedging instrument that remains recognised directly in equity from the period when the hedge was 
effective will be recognised in the surplus or deficit. 

Property, plant and equipment  

Property, plant and equipment consists of:  

 Operational assets - These include land, buildings, library books, office and computer equipment, plant and 
machinery, and motor vehicles.  
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 Restricted assets - Restricted assets are parks and reserves owned by RDC which provide a benefit or 
service to the community and cannot be disposed of because of legal or other restrictions.  

 Infrastructure assets - Infrastructure assets are the fixed utility systems owned by RDC. Each asset class 
includes all items that are required for the network to function, for example, sewer reticulation includes 
reticulation piping and sewer pump stations.  

Property, plant and equipment is shown at cost or valuation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  

Additions  

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that 
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to RDC and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably.  

In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired at 
no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  

Assets under construction 

Assets under construction are not depreciated.  The total cost of a project is transferred to the relevant asset class 
on its completion and then depreciated.  The current carrying amount of items under construction is disclosed in 
Note 13.  

Disposals  

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. 
Gains and losses on disposals are included in the surplus or deficit . When revalued assets are sold, the amounts 
included in asset revaluation reserves in respect of those assets are transferred to accumulated funds.  

Subsequent costs  

Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to RDC and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably.  

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment other than land, at rates that 
will write off the cost (or valuation) of the assets to their estimated residual values over their useful lives. The useful 
lives and associated depreciation rates of major classes of assets have been estimated as follows: 

 
Buildings Concrete 100 years 1% 
 Wooden 40 years 2.5% 
Computer Equipment 3 years 33.3% 
Furniture and Fittings 8 years 12.5% 
Library Books 8 years 12.5% 
Office Equipment 8 years 12.5% 
Motor Vehicles 4 years 25% 
Plant and machinery 15 years 6.66% 
Gym Equipment 5 years 20% 
Wharves  40 years 2.5% 
Roading    
 Bridges 80 to 100 years 1% to 1.25% 
 Bus Shelters 50 years 2% 
 Culverts 50 to 100 years 1% to 2% 
 Footbridges 50 years 2% 
 Footpaths 80 years 1.25% 
 Formation Not Depreciated  
 Kerb & Channel 60 years 1.6% 
 Pavement Shoulder 25 years 4% 
 Pavement Unsealed  5 to 25 years 4% to 20% 
 Pavement Sealed 20 to 30 years 3.3% to 5% 
 Pavement Surface 5 to 20 years 5% to 20% 
 Road Furniture 8 to 30 years 8.8% to 12.5% 
 Street Lights 20 to 60 years 1.6% to 5% 
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Wastewater System   
 Pipes 80 to 100 years 1% to 1.25% 
 Laterals 80 to 120 years .83% to 1.25% 
 Fittings 25 to 90 years 1.1% to 4%  
 Treatment Plant 10 to 70 years 1.4% to 10% 
Water System   
 Pipes 60 to 80 years 1.25% to 1.6% 
 Fittings 30 to 100 years 1% to 3.3% 
 Pump Stations 10 to 100 years 1% to 10 % 
Stormwater System   
 Pipes 80 to 120 years .83% to 1.25% 
 Laterals 50 to 100 years 1% to 2% 
 Fittings 50 to 100 years 1% to 2% 
 Structures 50 to 100 years 1% to 2% 
 Retention Ponds 30 to 100 years 1% to 3.3% 
Infrastructure Buildings   
 Concrete 100 years 1% 
 Wooden 40 years 2.5% 
Reserve Structures  10 to 60 years 1.6% to 10% 

 
The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed, and adjusted if applicable, at each financial year-end. 

Revaluation 

Land and buildings (operational and restricted), and infrastructural assets (except land under roads) are revalued 
with sufficient regularity to ensure that their carrying amount does not differ materially from fair value and at least 
every three years. All other asset classes are carried at depreciated historical cost. 

The carrying values of revalued assets are assessed annually to ensure that they do not differ materially from the 
assets’ fair values. If there is a material difference, then the off-cycle asset classes are revalued. 

Revaluations of property, plant, and equipment are accounted for on a class-of-asset basis. 

The net revaluation results are credited or debited to other comprehensive income and are accumulated to an 
asset revaluation reserve in equity for that class of asset. Where this would result in a debit balance in the asset 
revaluation reserve, this balance is not recognised in other comprehensive income but is recognised in the surplus 
or deficit. Any subsequent increase on revaluation that reverses a previous decrease in value recognised in the 
surplus or deficit will be recognised first in the surplus or deficit up to the amount previously expensed, and then 
recognised in other comprehensive income. 

 Operational and Restricted land and buildings: 

Due to the pending Auckland Council reorganisation and to bring the valuation policy inline with the valuation 
policies adopted by the other councils in the Auckland region, RDC revalued its operational land and buildings,  
previously these assets were held at deemed cost. As a result of the revaluation the value of land and buildings 
has increased by $83.9 million. 

 Land under roads 

Land under roads was valued at 30 June 2002 by using the average value for all properties in the district and 
applying this to the area of land lying under the Council’s roading network. This is deemed to be cost. Additions 
since then are recorded at cost. Land under roads is not revalued 

 Library collections 

Library collections are valued at depreciated replacement cost in accordance with the guidelines released by 
the New Zealand Library Association and the National Library of NZ in May 2002.   Library valuations are 
performed by the Head Librarian and are not subject to an independent review because they are readily 
available market prices to determine fair value.   The last valuation was performed in June 2007. 

Intangible assets 

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use 
the specific software. 

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense when incurred. Costs that are 
directly associated with the development of software for internal use by RDC, are recognised as an intangible 
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asset. Direct costs include the software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant 
overheads. 

Amortisation of intangible assets 

The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life. 
Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised. 

The amortisation charge for each period is recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income.  

The useful lives and associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated as 
follows: 

Asset classes 
 

Expected useful life (years) 

Computer software 3 to 10 years 
 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

Non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for 
impairment.  Assets that have a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognised for the 
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

Value in use is depreciated replacement cost for an asset where the future economic benefits or service potential of 
the asset are not primarily dependent on the assets ability to generate net cash inflows and where the entity would, 
if deprived of the asset, replace it’s remaining future economic benefits or service potential. 

The value in use for cash-generating assets is the present value of expected future cash flows. 

If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is impaired and the carrying amount is 
written down to the recoverable amount.  For revalued assets the impairment loss is recognised against the 
revaluation reserve for that class of asset.  Where that results in a debit balance in the revaluation reserve, the 
balance is recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income. 

For assets not carried at a revalued amount, the total impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

The reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset is credited to the revaluation reserve.  However, to the 
extent that an impairment loss for that class of asset was previously recognised as an expense in the statement of 
comprehensive income, a reversal of the impairment loss is also recognised in the surplus or deficit. 

For assets not carried at a revalued amount (other than goodwill) the reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
in the surplus or deficit.  

Forestry assets 

Standing forestry assets are independently revalued to fair value less estimated costs to sell for one growth cycle. 
Fair value is determined based on the present value of expected net cash flows discounted at a current market 
determined pre-tax rate. This calculation is based on existing sustainable felling plans and assessments regarding 
growth, timber prices, felling costs and silverculture costs and takes into consideration environmental, operational 
and market restrictions. 

Gains or losses arising on initial recognition of biological assets at fair value less estimated costs to sell and from a 
change in fair value less estimated costs to sell are recognised in the surplus or deficit. 

The costs to maintain forestry assets are included as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income. 

Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets held for sale are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction, not through continuing use. Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower 
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  

Any impairment losses for write-downs of non-current assets held for sale are recognised as an expense in the 
statement of comprehensive income.  

Any increases in fair value (less costs to sell) are recognised up to the level of any impairment losses that have 
been previously recognised.  
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Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they 
are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified 
as held for sale continue to be recognised. 

Creditors and other payables 

Creditors and other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. 

Employee benefits 

Short-term benefits: 

Employee benefits that RDC expects to be settled within 12 months of balance date are measured at nominal 
values based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay. 

These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned to, but not yet taken at balance 
date, retiring and long service leave entitlements expected to be settled within 12 months. 

RDC recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses where contractually obliged or where there is a past 
practice that has created a constructive obligation. 

Long-term benefits: 

Entitlements that are payable beyond 12 months, such as long service leave, have been calculated on current rates 
of pay The calculation is based on likely future entitlements accruing to staff, based on years of service and the 
likelihood that staff will reach the point of entitlement. 

Superannuation scheme 

RDC belongs to the Defined Benefit Plan Contributors Scheme (the scheme), which is managed by the Board of 
Trustees of the National Provident Fund. The scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme. 

Insufficient information is available to use defined benefit accounting, as it is not possible to determine from the 
terms of the scheme, the extent to which the surplus/deficit will affect future contributions by individual employers, 
as there is no prescribed basis for allocation. Obligations for contributions are recognised as an expense in the 
statement of comprehensive income as incurred. 

Provisions 

RDC recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a present obligation 
(either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that expenditures will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for 
future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest 
expense. 

Weathertightness provision 

The provision for weathertightness claims is extended to include: 

 legal claims lodged with the Weathertightness Homes Resolution Service but not yet advised to Rodney 
District Council and  

 claims expected to be lodged in the future with Council or the Weathertightness Homes Resolution Service.  
 

Landfill aftercare provision 

The Council has a duty under the Resource Management Act to avoid, remedy or reduce any adverse effects on 
the environment. To meet this obligation, the council has identified a number of closed landfill sites that we are 
required to monitor and provide remedial work over the next 30 years. 

The estimated cost of this work has been discounted to current cost and is provided for in the financial statements.  

Financial guarantee contracts 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires RDC to make specified payments to reimburse the holder 
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due. 

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised at fair value. A provision is recognised based on the probability RDC 
will be required to reimburse a holder for a loss incurred, discounted to present value. The portion of the guarantee 
that remains unrecognised, prior to discounting to fair value, is disclosed as a contingent liability. 
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Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value net of transaction costs incurred. After initial recognition, all 
borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Council or group has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after balance date or if the borrowings are expected to be settled 
within 12 months of balance date. 

Equity 

Equity is the community's interest in RDC and is measured as the difference between total assets and total 
liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified into a number of reserves. 

The components of equity are: 

 Accumulated funds  

 Restricted reserves  

 Fair value and hedging reserves  

 Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserves  

 
Restricted and Council created reserves 

Restricted reserves are a component of equity generally representing a particular use to which various parts of 
equity have been assigned.  Restricted reserves are reserves restricted by Council decision. The Council may alter 
them without references to any third party or the Courts. Transfers to and from these reserves are at the discretion 
of the Council. 

RDC's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are described in Note 31. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 

In preparing these financial statements RDC has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future. These 
estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates and judgements are 
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations or future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year are discussed below: 

Infrastructural assets 

There are a number of assumptions and estimates used when performing DRC valuations over infrastructural 
assets. These include: 

 the physical deterioration and condition of an asset, for example the Council could be carrying an asset at 
an amount that does not reflect its actual condition. This is particularly so for those assets, which are not 
visible, for example stormwater, wastewater and water supply pipes that are underground. This risk is 
minimised by Council performing a combination of physical inspections and condition modelling 
assessments of underground assets;  

 estimating any obsolescence or surplus capacity of an asset; and  

 estimates are made when determining the remaining useful lives over which the asset will be depreciated. 
These estimates can be impacted by the local conditions, for example weather patterns and traffic growth. 
If useful lives do not reflect the actual consumption of the benefits of the asset, then RDC could be over or 
under estimating the annual depreciation charge recognised as an expense in the statement of 
comprehensive income. To minimise this risk RDC's infrastructural asset useful lives have been 
determined with reference to the NZ Infrastructural Asset Valuation and Depreciation Guidelines published 
by the National Asset Management Steering Group, and have been adjusted for local conditions based on 
past experience. Asset inspections, deterioration and condition modelling are also carried out regularly as 
part of the RDC's asset management planning activities, which gives RDC further assurance over its useful 
life estimates.  

Experienced independent valuers perform the Council's infrastructural asset revaluations. 
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Weathertightness  

The provision for weathertightness claims shown in Note 21 of the accounts totals $23.646 million. The provision is 
comprised of active, reported and unreported claims.  

Active claims are those which are actively being managed through a resolution process. These claims amount to 
$8.812 million of the total provision. As these claims are nearing resolution there is considered to be a high level of 
certainty regarding this provision amount. 

Reported and unreported claims are those which have been notified to the Council or the Weathertight Homes 
Resolution Service, and claims which are expected to be notified in the future. $14.834 million of the total provision 
relates to reported and unreported claims. Figures for these claims have been primarily derived from an actuarial 
report which relies upon various assumptions in reaching the provision balance. 

The material assumptions when deriving the reported and unreported claim provision balance are as follows: 

 Whether the Government’s proposed Financial Assistance Package is introduced.    

The Government announced in 2010 that is was implementing a Financial Assistance Scheme in relation to 
weathertightness building defects whereby the councils and the Crown would each pay a cap of 25% of the 
agreed repair costs. It has been assumed that this scheme will be implemented and the Council will 
participate. The risk of the scheme not going ahead is considered to be low, however if this was the case 
the provision would increase by $6.604 million due to a combination of increased settlement costs and 
increased professional fees. Based on experience from the current resolution service, it has been assumed 
that 65% of homeowners will elect to be under the Government Financial Assistance Package.  

 Discount rate 

The discount rate used to discount the estimated claim costs for the time value of money is 6.7% for the 
2010/11 year rising to 7.2% in the 2012/13 year and beyond.  These rates are the estimated cost of new 
borrowings by the Auckland Council in the relevant financial years and reflect the ability of the Council to 
fund the costs itself.  The rates were set at the time when the new Council was completing its planning 
exercise.     

 Timing of claim payments 

Assumptions regarding the estimated timing for receipt of claims/payment of claims have been made 
based on experience under the current resolution process and expectations that claims will be resolved 
faster under the Government Financial Assistance Package. Due to the discounting of the provision to 
present value, a change in this assumption would impact on the amount of the provision. 

 The percentage of dwellings which will have a weathertightness problem and which make a successful 
claim 

The collection of data over 20 years enables council to assess the percentage of dwellings built in the last 
10 years which may experience a weathertightness problem and which may make a successful claim.  

 Amount claimed 

This assumption is derived from the claims settled to date. To the extent that this varies in the future either 
through an increase or decrease the ultimate cost will vary. 

 Settlement level award 

This relates to the settlement award from the resolution process for those claims not assumed to be under 
the Government Financial Assistance Package. This amount has increased over time and future increases 
are allowed for in the provision. 

 Council contribution to the settlement amount  

This assumption is based on historical data regarding council contributions and will apply to those claims 
not assumed to be under the Government Financial Assistance Package. Council’s share has increased 
over time and future increases are allowed for in the provision.  
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The provision is based on best estimates for the assumptions, and actual costs incurred may vary significantly 
depending on emerging experience. Changes in the assumption percentages and figures would have the following 
impacts on the provision balance ($ millions).   The results assume that each assumption is independent of the 
other assumptions.   

 

Assumption 
 

+10% -10% 

Government scheme participation by home owners 
 

$13.902 $14.210 

Discount rate used 
 

$13.696 $14.768 

Timing of claim payments 
 

$15.641 $12.797 

Percentage of dwellings which will have a weathertightness 
problem and which make a successful claim 
 

$15.462 $12.650 

Amount claimed 
 

$15.285 $12.827 

Settlement level award 
 

$14.659 $13.452 

Council contribution to settlement amount 
 

$14.659 $13.452 

 

When analysing the sensitivity of percentage assumptions, such as the discount rate, the 10% change relates to a 
10% change in the original assumption. Eg Assumption of 6% - sensitivity table demonstrates impact of change to 
6.6% or 5.4%. 

The sensitivity movements detailed above relate to possible movements in the reported and unreported claims 
component of $14.056 million. As noted above there is a high level of certainty regarding the active claims 
component. 

 
Comparative information 

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 requires Auckland Council to complete a 
report and financial statements of Rodney District Council for the 16 month period to 31 October 2010.  The period 
is expressed in the financial statements as 2009/2010.  Actual and budget financial information for 2009/2010 
covers the 16 month period.  Comparative information for the preceding financial period, 2008/2009, covers 12 
months.  The two periods are therefore not directly comparable.   
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2 Rates revenue

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group

Actual Plan Actual 

12 months to 16 months to 16 months to

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $000 

General rates 19,174 52,524 52,430

Targeted rates attributable to activities

Civic Leadership -                   5,313 5,336

Community Services 18,881             1,945 1,865

Community Development -                   3,536 3,539

District and Environmental Planning 4,114               175 173

Economic Development 187                  260 261

Transportation Services 25,674             36,900 36,704

Environmental Services 5,984               8,289 8,291

Water Services 25,116             23,250 22,737

79,956 79,668 78,906

Total rates revenue 99,130 132,192 131,336

2009 2010

Rates remitted for protected land: Actual Actual 

Total value of rates remitted for protected land $13,570 15,769

Total number of rates remitted for protected land 22 30

Revenue is shown net of rates remissions and non-rateable land. The Council has established rates remission policies under the
Local Government (Rating) Act 2002. These policies provide for rates to be remitted for community groups, sporting groups, school
sanitation charges and other purposes.
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3 Other revenue

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group

Actual Plan Actual

12 months to 16 months to 16 months to

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $000 

Revenue and user charges 21,475 39,803 40,601

NZ Transport Agency grants 23,395 46,466 27,178

Petrol tax 691 932 994

Vested asset contributions 3,148 6,500 25,587

Interest income 763 262 1,264

Rental revenue 2,891 3,517 4,396

Cash contributions 7,213 8,462 13,056

Grants and subsidies 2,088 400 603

Other income 20 -                   34

Total other revenue 61,684 106,342 113,713

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingences attached to government grants recognised.

 

 

4 Other gains / (losses)

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group

Actual Plan Actual

12 months to 16 months to 16 months to

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $000 

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,032 26,805 4,695

Gain/(loss) on changes in fair value of investment property  (Note 15) (239) 1,000 0

Gain/(loss) on changes in fair value of non-current assets for sale  (Note 16) (1,256) -                   0

Write down/impairment of non-current assets held for sale 0 -                   (3,502)

Gain on changes in fair value of forestry assets  (Note 14) 344 -                   125

Total other gains / (losses) 4,880 27,805 1,318
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5 Summary cost of services

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual

12 months to 16 months t
 

o 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $000 
Revenue

Civic Leadership 37 5,367 5,395
District and Environmental Planning 12,176 32,041 9,776
Regulatory Services 12,108 17,111 18,978
Transportation Services 52,822 93,375 80,596
Water Services 29,440 39,426 42,551
Community Services 29,224 11,989 15,827
Environmental Services 8,320 10,392 16,277
Economic Development 622 324 574
Community Development 287 3,789 4,112
Support Assets 1,482 0 (149)

Total Activity income 146,518 213,814 193,937

General Rates 19,174 52,524 52,430

Total income 165,693 266,338 246,367

Expenditure

Civic Leadership 3,636 5,513 5,103
District and Environmental Planning 17,355 17,083 16,496
Regulatory Services 17,722 22,634 43,983
Transportation Services 44,681 66,326 72,825
Water Services 28,076 38,051 41,725
Community Services 25,366 36,517 38,082
Environmental Services 12,268 13,693 14,890
Economic Development 1,643 2,354 2,416
Community Development 4,332 9,767 8,754

Total Activity expenditure 155,079 211,938 244,274

Total expenditure 155,079 211,938 244,274

 
6 Personnel costs

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $000

Salaries and wages 29,936 41,806 44,034
Defined contribution plan employer contributions 199 -                   469
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefit liabilities 318 -                   (608)

Total employee benefit expenses 30,453 41,806 43,895

Employer contributions to defined contribution plans include contributions to Kiwisaver.

Redundancy payments made as a result of the Auckland councils reorganisation amounted to $1,871,750 during the period. This
includes the amount paid to the Chief Executive and other key management personnel.
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7 Other expenses

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $000

Total other expenses 64,752 83,888             115,883           

Items to note

Fees to principal auditor:
Audit fees for financial statement audit 158 253                  221                 
Audit fees for other assurance services (process to select set of physical works 

 

providers) 17 -                   -                   
Audit fees for Long term Council Community Plan audit 111 -                   -                  

Research and development 319                  458                  138                  
Minimum lease payments under operating leases 16                    16                    5                      
Expensing file remediation costs previously captilised -                   -                   4,220              
Increase in weathertightness provision (Note 21) 1,486               -                   22,160             
Increase in provision for future Landfill monitoring costs (Note 21) 3,450               -                   470                  
Expensing costs previously held in Work in Progress -                   -                   6,732              

* File remediation refers to the electronic scanning and storage of paper based resource consent files. 
 
 

8 Finance costs

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

12 months to 16 months to 16 months to
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $000

Interest Expense
Interest on bank borrowings 19,839 26,178 25

 

,742

Fair value (gains)/losses on derivatives
Interest rate swaps 1,299 -                   (313)

Total finance costs 21,138 26,178 25,429
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9 Cash and cash equivalents

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $000 

Cash at bank and in hand 250 (5,001) 7

 

,560
Short term deposits maturing 3 months or less from date of acquisition 12,574                     -   76

Total 12,824 (5,001) 7,636

The weighted average effective interest rate for cash and cash equivalents is 2.73%

Cash and bank overdrafts include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement:

Cash at bank and in hand 250 (5,001) 7,560
Short term bank deposits maturing within three months 12,574                      -   76

12,824 (5,001) 7,636

The carrying value of short-term deposits with maturity dates of three months or less approximates their fair value.

Short term deposits are held by banks which are approved institutions under the Retail Deposit Guarantee Scheme. Cover 
under this scheme is limited to a maximum of $1,000,000 per depositor for each institution.
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10 Debtors and other receivables

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $00

Rates receivables 6,084               9,700               6,335               
Other receivables 4,942               5,900               7,085               
Accrued income 6,873               1,500               3

0 

,751              
NZTA subsidy 2,477               2,500               3,153              
Sundry debtors 5,233               4,500               1,412               
Prepayments 177                  152                  1,657              

25,786             24,252             23,393            

Less provision for impairment of receivables (1,818)              (900)                 (1,758)             

Total 23,968             23,352             21,635             

Less non-current portion:
Insurance recoveries 763                  0                      1,781              

Current portion 23,205             23,352             19,854            

The status of receivables as at 31 October 2010 and June 2009 are detailed below:

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables outside the Council, as the Council has a large number of
customers.

RDC does not provide for any impairment on rates receivable, as it has various powers under the Local Government (Rating)
Act 2002 to recover any outstanding debts. These powers allow RDC to commence legal proceedings to recover any rates that
remain unpaid 4 months after the due date for payment. If payment has not been made within 3 months of the Court's
judgment, then RDC can apply to the Registrar of the High Court to have the judgment enforced by sale or lease of the rating
unit. Rate payers can apply for payment plan options in special circumstances. Where such payment plans are in place debts
are discounted to the present value of future repayments.

The carrying value of debtors and other receivables (excluding community loans) approximates their fair value.

As of 31 October 2010 and 30 June 2009, all overdue receivables, except for rates receivable, have been assessed for
impairment and appropriate provisions applied. RDC holds no collateral as security or other credit enhancements over
receivables that are either past due or impaired.

2009 2010
Gross Impairment Net Gross Impairment Net

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Parent and Group
Current 17,791             0                     17,791           20,059           -                  20,059            
Past due 1 Month 1,151               0                     1,151             925                  -                   925                  
Past due 2 Months 324                  0                      324                  137                  -                   137                  
Past due 3 Months + 6,520               

 

(1,818)             4,702             2,272             (1,758)             514                 
Total               25,786 (1,818)                          23,968 23,393           (1,758)             21,635            
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Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $000

Individual Impairment 1,818               900                  1,758               
Collective Impairment                      -   -                                        -   
Total provision for impairment 1,818             900                  1,758              

Parent & Group Council
Parent 

 

 

& 
Group

Actual Plan Actual 
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $000
Past due 1-60 da

 
ys                     -                       -                        -   

Past due 61-120 days                     -                       -                        -   
Past due > 120 days 1,818               900                  1,758               
Total individual impairment 1,818               900                  1,758              

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $000

At 1 July 898                                       -   1,818               
Movement in provisions during the year 920                                      -   (60)                  
Total 1,818               900                  1,758               

The impairment provision has been calculated based on expected losses for RDC's pool of debtors. Expected losses have
been determined based on an analysis of RDC's losses in previous periods, and review of specific debtors.

Individually impaired receivables have been determined to be impaired because of significant financial difficulties being
experienced by the debtor. An analysis of these individually impaired debtors is as follows:

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables and community loans are as follows:

 

 
11 Inventories

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $000

Leisure Centre 17                                         29 12                    
Cafeteria 10                                         -   9                      
Orewa Holiday park 2                                          -   1                     
Information Centre 5                                          -   6                     

Total 34                    29                    28                    
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12 Derivative financial instruments

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $00

Current asset portion
Interest Rate swaps - cash flow hedges                      -                      100 0                      

Non current asset portio

0 

n
Interest Rate swaps - cash flow hedges                 4,460                      -   472                  
Interest Rate swaps - held for trading                     -                       -   64                   

Current liability portion
Interest Rate swaps - cash flow hedges (858)                                      -   (35)                   

Non current liability portion
Interest Rate swaps - cash flow hedges (9,182)                                   -   (11,529)            
Interest Rate swaps - held for trading (897)                                     -   (605)                

Total (6,477)              100                  (11,633)            

At 31 October 2010, the fixed interest rates of cash flow hedge interest rate swaps vary from 3.53% to 6.92% (2009 3.40% to
7.66%)

Gains and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in equity on interest rate swap contracts as at 31 October 2010 will be
released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as interest paid on the underlying debt.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps have been determined using a discounted cash flows valuation technique based on
quoted market prices.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 October 2010 were $250,000,000 (2009
$324,000,000)
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Council previously held land and buildings at cost. Due to the pending Auckland Council reorganisation and to bring the valuation policy in line with the valuation policies 
adopted by the other councils in the Auckland region, RDC revalued its land and buildings. As a result of the revaluation the value of land and buildings has increased by 
$83.9 million. In completing the revaluation, the classification of some land and buildings were reassessed and reclassified and some parcels of land in the opening 
balances are different from the parcels of land in the closing balances for each of the classes. 

The council has expensed costs previously capitalised for the early costs of Penlink and the costs of file remediation see note 7.  
 
The numbers included in the additions, disposals and transfer columns include transactions relating to non current assets held for sale. Properties classified as non-current 
assets for resale represent those properties expected to be sold in the next 12 months. 
 
The following amounts of works under construction valued at cost are included in property, plant and equipment: 
Land 101 
Buildings 634 
Library Books 203 
Heritage 19 
Plant and equipment 758 
Furniture and Fittings 6 
Computer Equipment 1,171 
Office Equipment 102 
Reticulation - Wastewater 6,433 
Reticulation - Water 2,794 
Reticulation - Stormwater 1,576 
Roading network (including bridges) 25,482 
Carparks 74 
Reserves 4,548 
 43,901 

 
Valuation 
Land & Buildings 
All properties were valued based on open market evidence. The valuation was performed in accordance with the New Zealand Institute of Valuers' standards by Kerry 
Stewart FNZIV FPINZ, an independent valuer from Darroch Limited who has recent experience in the location and category of the type property valued. The valuation is 
effective as at 31 October 2010. 
 
Infrastructural asset classes: wastewater, water,  and roads 
Wastewater , water, and roading infrastructural assets are valued using the optimised depreciated replacement cost method. The valuation was performed by Julian Watts 
BApplSc (AgEng), reviewed by David Jeffrey (BBS, ACMA) and approved by Sara Dennis (BBS, CBA), all of GHD Limited. The GHD team has the required experience to 
carry out these infrastructure valuations. The valuation is effective as at 31 October 2010. 
 
Stormwater assets were valued internally by a suitably qualified council employee using the optimised depreciated replacement cost method. This valuation was then peer 
reviewed by GHD. The valuation is effective as at 31 October 2010. 

Page 189 



Rodney District Council’s 16-month Report for the period 1July 2009 – 31 October 2010 

 

 

Page 190 



Rodney District Council’s 16-month Report for the period 1July 2009 – 31 October 2010 

 

Page 191 

Properties reclassified as Non-Current Assets for Resale represent those expected to be sold in the next 12 months.

The following amounts of works under construction valued at cost are included in property, plant and equipment:

Land 1,934           
Buildings 4,380           
Library Books 0                  
Heritage 39                
Plant and equipment 1,208           
Furniture and Fittings 0                  
Computer Equipment 93                
Office Equipment 4                  
Reticulation - Wastewater 12                
Reticulation - Water 881              
Reticulation - Stormwater 68                
Roading network (including bridges) 19,241         
Carparks 159              
Wharves 0                  
Reserves 5,767           

33,786       
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14 Forestry assets

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual

30 June 200
 

9 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $0

Balance at 1 July 1,282               1,628               1

00 

,626             
Revaluation gain (Note 4) 344                  -                   125                

Total 1,626 1,628 1,751

     -    no allowance for inflation has been provided

RDC has not taken measures to manage the risks of a decline in timber prices.

Through its investment in Araparera joint venture RDC owns a 67% share of 201 hectares of Pinus Radiata, which mature at varying 
stages over  the next five years. RDC owns 24 hectares of Pinus Radiata which mature at varying stages over the next 16 years.

Independent registered valuers Harvest Pro New Zealand Ltd have valued forestry assets as at 31 October 2010. The following 
valuation assumptions have been adopted in determining the fair value of forestry assets:
     -    a pre-tax discount rate of 8% has been used in discounting the present value of expected cash flows
     -    the forest value only includes the value of the existing crop on a single rotation basis

 
15 Investment property

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group

Actual Plan Actual
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $0

Balance at 1 July 12,847             1,928               1,928               
Additions 40                    -                   -                   
Disposals (959)                 -                   -                   
Reclassified as Non-current assets held for resale (Note 16) (9,761)              -                   (1,928)              
Fair value gains/(losses) on valuation (Note 4 ) (239)                 -                   -                   

Total 1,928               1,928               0                      

 

00 

 
16 Non-current assets held for sale

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group

Actual Plan Actual
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000 $

Non-current assets held for sale
 - Land 6,796               7,450               20,254             
 - Buildings 10,785              -   2,097               

Total 17,581             7,450               22,351            

Council has identified properties that are expected to be sold by 31 October 2011, in line with the property sales outlined in
the Long Term Council Community Plan.

 

000 
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17 Other financial assets

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $00

Current portion                       -                         -                         -   

Non-current 

0 

portion
Community loans                     26                       -   26
Shares in companies (fair value through equity)

 - Watercare Services Limited              20,051               20,118 20,012
 - New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation Limited                     41                       -   41

Total 20,118             20,118             20,079           

There were no impairment provisions for other financial assets

Unlisted shares – valuation

Community Loans

Shares in subsidiary

2009 2010 2010
Actual Plan Actual
$000 $000 $00

Total Revenue 61                  -                   268                  
Total Expenditure 61                    -                   268                  
Total Assets 61                    -                   14                    
Total Liabilities 61                  -                   14                  

The fair value of unlisted shares in Watercare Services Limited has been calculated as the net asset backing of the shares. At 31
October 2010 the net asset backing of the 3,602,651 shares in Watercare Services Limited was $5.55 per share (2009 – $5.57).

A net asset backing approach to valuation is considered appropriate because Watercare is a public benefit entity and a discounted
cash flow approach to valuation would not be meaningful. The majority of Watercare assets are carried at fair value and those not at
fair value are not materially different to fair value.

The fair value of unlisted shares in New Zealand Local Government Insurance Corporation Limited has been calculated as the net
asset backing of the shares. At 31 December 2009 the net asset backing of the 13,554 shares in New Zealand Local Government
Insurance Corporation Limited was $3.05 per share (2008 – $3.01).

The carrying value of community loans is $26,000 (2009 $26,000). This approximates fair value as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

A guarantee has been granted to Auckland CityCouncil in respect of their guarantee of certain borrowings of Watercare Services Ltd,
as disclosed in note 25.

The council holds 100% of Rodney Properties Limited (RPL). The net asset backing as at 31 October 2010 of the 100 shares was 
$1.00 per share (2009 $1.00). 

Following is a financial summary extracted from the year end financial accounts of RPL.

0 
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18 Creditors and other payables

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $00

Trade payables 17,172 17,996 23,732
Deposits and bonds 999 1,500 1,330
Accrued expenses 10,481 11,000 4

0 

,490
Rates in advance 734 500 13,351

Total 29,386             30,996             42,903             

Creditors and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms, therefore the carrying value of
creditors and other payables approximates their fair value.  

 
19 Employee benefit liabilities

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 

Accrued pay                    922                       -                         -   
Annual leave                 2,578                 3,884                 2,648 
Deferred Redundancy                      -                         -                     251 
Retirement Gratuities                       7                        7                      -   

Total employee benefit liabilities 3,507               3,891               2,899               

Comprising:
Current                3,500                 3,884                2,899 
Non-current                       7                        7                      -   
Total 3,507               3,891               2,899               

$000 
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20 Borrowings

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $0

Current portion secured loans 122,502 50,616 107,019
Non current portion secured loans 182,501 256,493 198,000
Total 305,003           307,109           305,019         

Securit

00 

y
RDC's loans are secured over either targeted or general rates of the district.

Maturity analysis and effective interest rates

Parent & Group
Parent & 

Group
Actual Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
Less than one year 122,502           107,019           

weighted average effective interest rate     6.78% 6.16%

Later than one year but not more than five years 92,501             117,000           
weighted average effective interest rate     5.55% 5.52%

Later than five years 90,000             81,000           
weighted average effective interest rate     6.29% 5.52%

Total Borrowings 305,003           305,019           
weighted average effective interest rate     6.32% 5.69%

The following is a maturity analysis of RDC's borrowings.   There are no early repayment options.

 
Secured loans

Fair values of non-current borrowings        Carrying amount            Fair Value
2009 2010 2009 2010
$000 $000 $000 $000

Secured loans (Council) 182,501           198,000           182,501           198,000       

RDC's secured debt of $305,019,000 (2009 $305,003,000) is issued at floating rates of interest, with the exception of $35 million fixed
at 6.28% for five years. For floating rate debt, the interest rate is reset quarterly based on the 90 day bank bill rate plus an on average
0.29% (2009 0.35%) margin for credit risk.

The carrying amounts of borrowings repayable within one year approximate their fair value, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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21 Provisions

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $000

Landfill monitoring costs 3,450                 3,600 3,919
Weathertightness claims 1,485                       -   23,646

Total 4,935               3,600               27,565             

Movement in provisions
Landfill 

Monitorin

 

g
Opening balance 1 July 2009 3,450 1,485
Add additional provision 469 29,723
Less amount used                       -   (454)
Less effect of discounting to present value                       -   (7,108)

3,919 23,646
Landfill Monitoring:

Weathertightness:

Key assumptions in relation to the calculation of the provision can be found in the accounting policies.

In certain circumstances the Council is liable to pay for repairs on buildings which received a codeof compliance certificate but where
building defects meant they were not weathertight.

The Council is subject to active claims in respect of weathertightness building defects that were advised to it by the Weathertight
Homes Resolution Service (WHRS) or that have been received by the Council directly and which are progressing through the
resolution process.

In the year ended 30 June 2009 there was no contingent liability in relation to weathertightness claims, in addition to the provision of
$1.486 million relating to active and reported claims

The length of time that the weathertightness issue has nowbeen prevalent, the historical data and trends available, and the use of an
actuary to utilise this information to reach an estimated claims figure means the unreported claims can now be estimated with sufficient 
reliability to include as a provision rather than as a contingent liability.

In addition to the above, claims have also been sent to the Council but are not yet active, or lodged with WHRSfor buildings located
within the Council’s district but not yet notified to the Council (reported claims). The Council also may be liable for claims in future
years relating to weathertightness building defects not yet identified (unreported claims). 

The Council has provided for the likely costs to be incurred as a result of these active, reported and unreported claims. Active claims
are accrued based on the best estimate of what the council expects to pay on a case by case basis. The costs for the latter two are
based on an actuarial valuation as at 31 October 2010. This provision includes both estimates of the repair costs as well as the
estimated legal costs and other professional fee expenses. The provision has been discounted for time value of money.

RDChas a number of closed landfills and has responsibility, under the resource consents obtained, to provide ongoing maintenance
and monitoring of the landfills. The Council monitors and manages these sites to avoid gas and leachate discharges. 

The cash outflows for landfill post-closure are expected to occur over the next thirty years. The long-termnature of the liability means
that there are inherent uncertainties in estimating costs that will be incurred. The provision has been estimated taking into account
existing technology and known changes to legal requirements. The gross provision before discounting is $9,474,000 The discount
factor used for landfills is 5.69 %.

Weathertightness
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Claims notified prior to July 2007

Claims notified between July 2007 and June 2009

Claims notified after June 2009

Anticipated insurance recoveries of $1.781 million (2009 $0.763) have been assessed and are included as an asset in Note 10

The majority of the weathertightness provision is anticipated to unwind over the next 7 years.

The Council has some insurance cover for weathertightness claims as detailed:

Council meets the first $20,000 of any one claim 
with insurance cover above this level

Council meets the first $50,000 of any one claim 
with insurance cover capped at a maximum of 
$500,000 for each year.

No insurance cover
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22 Equity

Parent & Group Council
Parent & 

Group
Actual Plan Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 $000

Accumulated Funds
As at 1 July 867,960           918,013           875

 

,662          
Transfers from Restricted Reserves 890                  6,725               22,596            
Transfer to Restricted reserves (3,802)              -                       
Surplus / (deficit) for the year 10,615 54,400 2,093
As at end of period 875,662 979,138 900,352

Accumulated Funds consist of:
General Funds 913,296           1,016,772 937,268
Funding Reserves held 40,021             40,021             2,700               
Funding Reserves used (77,655)            (77,655) (39,616)            

As at end of period 875,662           979,138           900,352          

Other Reserves

Restricted reserves
As at 1 July 25,806             21,100             28,718            
Transfers to: Accumulated Funds (890)                 (6,725)              (22,526)           
Transfers from: Accumulated Funds 3,802               -                       -                       
As at end of period 28,718             14,375             6,192               

Revaluation reserves
As at 1 July 440,162           440,162           440,162           
Revaluation gains/(losses) 0                      39,916             150,067          
As at end of period 440,162           480,079           590,229          

Revaluation reserve consist of:
Roading 141,014           166,251 222,359          
Bridges 2,682               3,000 19,787             
Wastewater 83,116             88,907 35,376             
Water 65,657             68,865 53,840            
Stormwater 147,668           153,031 170,122           
Reserves 25                    25 4,147               
Land and buildings -                       -                       83,928            
Waste -                       -                       670                 

As at end of period 440,162           480,079           590,229           

Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve
As at 1 July 444 2,934 2,873               
Valuation gains/(losses) taken to equity 2,429               -                       (39)                   
As at end of period 2,873 2,934               2,834              

Cash flow hedge reserve
As at 1 July 4,626               -                       (4,395)             
Fair value gains/(losses) in the year (9,020)              2,934               (5,470)             
As at end of period (4,395)              2,934               (9,865)              

Total other reserves 467,358 500,322 589,390

Total Equity 1,343,020 1,479,460 1,489,742  
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23 Reconciliation of net surplus to net cashflows from operating activities

Parent & Group Parent & Group
Actual Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 

Net Surplus as per Statement of Comprehensive Income 10,615 2,093

Add (deduct) non cash items:
Loss (gain) on sale of assets (6,032) (4,695)
Loss (gain) on revaluation of investment properties 239 -                         
Loss (gain) on revaluation of non-current assets for sale 1,256 -                         
Loss (gain) on revaluation of forestry assets (345) (125)
Write down on impairment of non-current assets held for resale 3,502
Writeoff of file remediation costs previously capitalised 4,220
Writeoff of Work in Progress   -   6,732
Depreciation and amortisation 37,203 54,771
Movement in non-current provisions 21,612
Interest credited to derivatives 1,439 (125)
Vested assets (3,148) (25,587)

41,227 62,398
Add (deduct) working capital movements:

Debtors and other receivables (9,803) 4,852
Prepayments 522 (1,480)
Inventories (10) 7
Creditors and other payables 6,779 11,921
Interest payable (498) (1,026)

Net cash from operating activities 38,217 76,672
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24 Commitments

Parent & Group Parent & Group
Actual Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 

Capital commitments

Roading 55,285                   32,857                   
Wastewater Drainage 3,121                     9,920                   
Water Supply 1,496                     576                      
Recreation and Civic Amenities 1,261                     1,835                   
Stormwater Drainage 815                        752                      
Total Capital Commitments 61,978 45,939

Capital Commitments by area:
Hibiscus Coast:
   AWPT,Reseals and Second Coat Seals 10,881                   6,045                   
   Hibiscus Coast Pressure reducing Valve 268                        -                         
   Asset Management Professional Services Contract 756                        421                      
   Transport and Property Professional Services Contract 1,184                     659                      
   Safety and Compliance Professional Services Contract 201                        112                        
   Structures Professional Services Contract 188                        105                      
   Geotechnical Professional Services Contract 65                          36                        
   Public Litter Bin Collection, 2008-2011 75                          108                        
   Kerbside Recycling 378                        258                        
   Closed Landfill Monitoring 4                            3                          
   Water Supply Reactive Renewals 528                        294                        
   Wastewater Reactive Renewals 1,062                     591                      
   Stormwater Reactive Renewals 309                        172                      
   Orewa West Cycleway - Lakeside To Waru Nui -                         44                        
   Trunk Pipeline Upgrade - North Haven To D'Oyly Reserve -                         2,444                     
   Red Beach & Stanmore Bay Sewer Rehabilitation -                         27                        
   Stanmore Bay Wetland Enhancement -                         5                          
   Orewa Estuary Cycleway - Southern Link Shared Paths -                         309                      
   Silverdale Street/Millwater Parkway - Landscaping/Footpath -                         46                          
   Rosario Crescent Stormwater Upgrade, Stage 2 -                         69                        
   Whangaparaoa Road Stormwater Upgrade -                         5                            
   Orewa Estuary Cycleway Southern Link Paths & Footbridge -                         422                        
   Orewa Estuary Cycleway Orewa College Path & Footbridge -                         658                      
   Karepiro Drive, Stanmore Bay - Sewer Upgrade -                         553                      
   Metro Park East - Sportsfield Development & Drainage -                         353                        

Rural and Township:
   AWPT,Reseals and Second Coat Seals 39,624                   22,013                 
   Warkworth Wastewater Treatment Plant 230                        -                       
   Army Bay Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade 549                        -                         
   Martins Bay Camp Ground Water Tank 194                        -                       
   Asset Management Professional Services Contract 1,002                     558                        
   Transport and Property Professional Services Contract 1,570                     874                        
   Safety and Compliance Professional Services Contract 267                        148                      
   Structures Professional Services Contract 250                        139                      
   Geotechnical Professional Services Contract 86                          48                          
   Public Litter Bin Collection 100                        143                      
   Kerbside Recycling 501                        342                      
   Closed Landfill Monitoring 6                            5                            
   Water Supply Reactive Renewals 309                        172                        
   Wastewater Reactive Renewals 1,083                     603                      
   Stormwater Reactive Renewals 309                        172                        
   Kumeu/Huapai/Riverhead Sewer Pump Station -                         733                        
   Parakai Stopbank Upgrade -                         170                      
   Weza Lane, Kumeu - Pedestrian Cycleway, Footbridge -                         14                        
   Huapai Reserve Sand Fields 1 & 2 Replacement -                         15                        
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Parent & Group Parent & Group
Actual Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $0

   Construction Work On Tourist Accommodation Buildings -                         15                          
   Centennial Park Road Walkway/Cycleway -                        44                        
   Huapai Wastewater Renewal - Pwc Network -                         192                        
   Waitakere No.4 Bridge Replacement, Waitakere -                         141                        
   Helensville Wastewater Treatment Plant - Oxidation Ponds -                        288                      
   Wellsford Wastewater Treatment Plant - Oxidation Ponds -                        238                      
   Warkworth Sewer Rehabilitation -                         46                          
   Richards No.2 Bridge Replacement -                        32                        
   Wainui Road/Siverdale Street Roundabout Construction -                        123                      
   Kumeu/Huapai/Riverhead Wastewater Rising Main -                         4,095                     
   Penguin Street Stormwater Renewal -                         48                          
   Hupai Reserve Hardcourts And Training Field Lighting -                        229                      
   Riverhead War Memorial Park Floodlighting -                         255                        
   Bochiers Bridge Replacement, Wellsford -                         305                        

Total Ca

00 

pital Commitments by Area 61,978 45,939

Non-Capital commitments
Maintenance Works Contracts 70,725                   41,292                   
Photocopying equipment 811                        270                        
Security, Cleaning, and Air Conditioning 1,099                     1,191                   
Technology One and Geac - Software Support 16                          -                       
Software Support 70                          185                        
Other 21                          5                            
Total Non-Capital Commitments 72,742 42,943
Non-capital commitments by period:
Not later than one year 24,427                   17,148                 
Later than one year and not later than two years 23,984                   23,336                 
Later than two years and not later than five years 24,331                   2,458                     
Later than five years -                         
Total Non-Capital Commitments by Period 72,742 42,943

Total Commitments 134,720 88,883

These amounts represent operational and capital expenditure which have not been accrued at 31 October 2010 but which are the 
subject of either specific contractual commitment or a resolution of the Council.
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25 Contingencies

Parent & Group Parent & Group
Actual Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 

Contingent liabilities

Hibiscus Coast:
Orewa Surf Lifesaving Club 120                        -                       
Hibiscus Coast Raiders Rugby League and Sports Club Incorporated 50                          50                        

170                        50                          

Potential Legal Claims 3,000                     3,000                     

Weathertightness:

Watercare guarantee

RiskPool provides public liability and professional indemnity insurance for its members. The Council is a member of RiskPool. The
Trust Deed of RiskPool provides that, if there is shortfall (whereby claims exceed contributions of members and reinsurance
recoveries) in any Fund year, then the Board may make a call on members for that fund year. A liability will be recognised for future
calls should they arise, when there is more certainty over the amount of such calls.

In order to minimise long term price increases, as at 24 July 2008 the Council joined the five other shareholding councils of Watercare
Services Limited (Watercare) to provide the creditors of Watercare and its subsidiaries with a guarantee of Watercare’s debt.

The Council is contingently liable in respect of various loans between third parties which have been guaranteed by a resolution of the 
Council.

A review of the Councils files of potential and actual legal claims arising from the Consents area has been undertaken. The council is
working to resolve these claims. No provision has been made for these claims as there is a high degree of uncertainty as to any
possible liability of the council.

The Council has received claims notified to it or the Weathertight Homes Resolution Service as one of a number co-defendants in
relation to weathertightness building defects. The Council has also received claims directly. The Council's liability in relation to these
claims depends on a number of factors including the existence of other liable parties that are able to contribute to any liability and the
amount of excess Council has with its insurer. Council is contesting both the amount and any liability.
All Councils with responsibilities under the Building Act have, to varying extents, been impacted by the leaky building issue.  
Unfortunately, as the issue has evolved, other parties to the claims have disappeared and Councils and Riskpool (our insurer) are 
often the only party responding to the claims.  This has meant that judgements against Councils are increasing.  Riskpool's funds are 
exhibiting deficits and this means that calls may be made upon member councils to contribute to the fund.  Riskpool has advised of the 
likelihood of further calls over the next two years although the amount of these calls is undetermined at this time. Riskpool withdrew 
cover for any future claims arising after 1 July 2009.

The council has received a claim in relation to Gulf Harbour Seabed licence fees. The council is working to resolve this claim with its
solicitors. No provision has been made for these claims as there is a high degree of uncertainty as to any possible liability of the
council.

An ex-employees has filed an application with the Employment Relations Authority for personal grievance. No liability has been
recognised for this claim as there is uncertainty to any liability of the council.

Watercare provides bulk water and wastewater services to the Auckland region. The company is collectively owned by the six councils,
with the Rodney District Council (RDC) shareholding being 1.38% which reflects the fact that the only service received is a relatively
small bulk water supply to the Hibiscus Coast area. 

Auckland City Council provided a primary guarantee for the Watercare debt with a back up guarantee by the other shareholding
councils in proportion to their shareholding. RDC’s percentage of any liability called under this guarantee is therefore 1.38%. The
likelihood of this guarantee being called is considered to be remote.

The length of time that the weathertightness issue has now been prevalent, the historical data and trends available, and the use of an
actuary to utilise this information to reach an estimated claims figure means the unreported claims can now be estimated with
sufficient reliability to include a provision. 

As disclosed in note 21, a provision of $23,646,000 (2009 $1,486,000) has been recognised for weathertightness claims whereby the
Council has received notice of the claim. The Council is also exposed to potential future claims which have not yet been advised until
the statutory limitation period expires. The amount of potential future claims are not able to be reliably measured and is therefore
unquantifiable. Claims must be made within 10 years of construction or alteration of the dwelling in order for the claim to be eligible
under the Weathertight Homes Resolution Services (WHRS) Act 2006, but other statutory limitation periods could also affect claims.



Rodney District Council’s 16-month Report for the period 1July 2009 – 31 October 2010 

 

Page 203 

Unquantified claims

Contingent assets
There are no Contingent Assets as at 31 October 2010   (30 June 2009 - nil).

RDC belongs to the Defined Benefit Plan Contributors Scheme (the scheme), which is managed by the Board of Trustees of the
National Provident Fund. The scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme. Insufficient information is available to use defined
benefit accounting, as it is not possible to determine from the terms of the scheme, the extent to which the surplus/deficit will affect
future contributions by individual employers, as there is no prescribed basis for allocation. Obligations for contributions are recognised
as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
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26 Related party transactions

Parent & Group Parent & Group
Actual Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $00

Related Party Balances
Amount owing to Watercare Services Ltd 117                        154                        
Amount owing to Rodney Properties Ltd 61                          12                        

Related Party Transactions
Services provided by Watercare Services Ltd 1,614                     2

0 

,151                   
Services provided by Rodney Properties Ltd 61                          268                      

Key management personnel

Parent & Group Parent & Group
Actual Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $00

Key management personnel compensatio

0 

n

Salaries and other short term employee benefits 2,057 3,010
Post-employment benefits (kiwisaver) 3                            14
Termination benefits arising on the disolution of council* -                         563

2,060 3,587

Termination benefits arising on the disolution of council includes the amount paid to the Chief Executive and is included in the amounts 
at note 6.

The Office of the Auditor General (OAG) reviewed the payments made to chief executives of dissolving local authorities in Auckland.
The OAG concluded that payments totalling $42,000 for missed professional development and for not receiving career transition
advice, although well intentioned, were not required to be made under his employment agreement and concluded theywere in breach
of sections 103 and 104 of the Transitional Provisions Act. 

During the period, theCouncil contracted with All Rural Fencing Limited, in which the Mayor and her husband are Directors. The value
of the contract works totalled $71,730 and was negotiatedonnormal commercial terms. Thereis a balance of $19,492 outstanding for
work to be completed inNovember 2010. No elected persons hadany involvement incontracting with, directing or allocating anyof the
work undertaken by All Rural Fencing Ltd.

There were no material related party transactions requiring disclosure between the Council and its related parties during the year
ended 31 October 2010 apart from those shown below.

Watercare provides bulk waterandwastewaterservices to the Aucklandregion. Thecompanyis collectivelyowned bythe six councils,
with the Rodney District Council (RDC) shareholding being 1.38%which reflects the fact that the only service received is a relatively
small bulk water supply to the Hibiscus Coast area. 

During the year Councillors and key management, as part of a normal customer relationship, were involved in minor transactions with
the council (such as payment of rates). Except for items of a trivial nature and the transactions with All Rural Fencing Limited
disclosed below, no Councillors or senior management have entered into transactions with the council during the year ended 31
October 2010.

Key management personnel include the Mayor, Councillors, Chief Executive and other senior management personnel. Also included
are directors remuneration paid by Rodney Properties Ltd.
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27 Remuneration

Parent & Group Parent & Group
Actual Actual

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000

Elected re

 

 

presentatives
Penny Webster, Mayor 108                        150
Ross Craig 58                          78
Pat Delich 55                          77
Michael Goudie 57                          78
Gaye Harding 56                          78
John Kirikiri 61                          84
Dave Parker 55                          77
Dr Grahame Powell 62                          84
Zane Taylor 59                          80
June Turner 56                          79
Grev Walker 56                          77
Wayne Walker 57                          79
Suzanne Weld 59                          81

799                        1,102                   

Remuneration of the Chief Executive
Parent & Group Parent & Group

Actual Actual 
30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010

$000 $000
 Rodger Kerr-

Newell
Rodger Kerr-

Newell

Salary * 277,616                 632,486                 
Termination payment -                         259,200                 
Vehicle 22,384                   16

 

,788                 

300,000 908,474

* includes annual leave not taken and paid on termination.

During the 16 months to 31 October 2010, the total remuneration and value of other non-financial benefits received by, or payable to
the Mayor and other Councillors,  were as follows:

 
 

28 Severance payments

In addition to the termination payments disclosed in note 6, for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 RDC
made one  (2009 four) severance payment to an employee totalling $42,000 (2009 $32,875). 

 
 
 
29 Events after the balance sheet date

 - the functions, duties, and powers of Rodney District Council became the functions, duties and powers of 
       the Auckland Council, which is responsible for governing the  Auckland region from 1 November 2010.
 - All property belonging to Rodney Distr ict Council vested in the Auckland Council and group.
 - All money payable to or by Rodney District Council became payable to or by the Auckland Council
    and Group.
 - All rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements, and engagements of Rodney Distr ict Council became the 
       rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements, and engagements of the Auckland Council and group.

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 dissolved Rodney Distr ict Council on 31
October 2010.  The Reorganisation Act p rovides that:
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Ownership of assets from 1 November 2010  

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009, was passed in May dissolving the existing local 
authorities on 31 October 2010 and establishing Auckland Council from 1 November 2010. All of Rodney District 
Council’s assets, rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements and engagements vested in the Auckland Council group at 
that date.  Roading and Bridge assets vested in Auckland Transport the transport CCO, Water and Wastewater assets 
vested in Watercare, while the remaining assets vested in Auckland Council.  

The table below summarises, from a Rodney District Council Group perspective, where the key assets will be 
transferred to at 1 November 2010 and an estimate of their net book value. 

 
Major Assets transferred Estimated 

Value$ millions 
Receiving Entities For Assets & 
Investments 

Public Transport related assets: 
         Roading property, plant and equipment 

 
$898.5 

 
Auckland Transport 
 

Combined wastewater and water property, plant and 
equipment 

$327.9 Watercare Services Ltd 

 
All other major fixed assets and investments vest in Auckland Council. 
 
Other Assets and Liabilities 

Other assets and liabilities will be allocated to Auckland Council and CCO's based on the specific activities to be 
undertaken by each receiving entity. 

Debt 

At 1 November 2010 all Rodney District Council debt will be transferred to Auckland Council and a portion of the 
consolidated debt of Auckland Council will be allocated to Watercare Services Ltd, Auckland Council Investments Ltd, 
Regional Facilities Auckland and Auckland Waterfront Development Agency Ltd. 
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30 Financial instruments 

Parent & Group Parent & Group
Actual Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $0

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Derivatives that are hedge accounted
Derivative financial instrument assets 4,460                 536                   

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 12,824               7

00 

,636                
Debtors and other receivables 23,205               19,854              

Other financial assets - Community loans 26                      26                      

Total loans and receivables 36,055               27,516               

Fair value through equity
Other financial assets:
 - unlisted shares 20,092               20,053               

20,092               20,053               
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Derivative financial instrument liabilities (10,937)              (12,169)              

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Creditors and other payables (29,386)              (42,903)              
Borrowings (305,003)            (305,019)            

Total financial liabilities at amortised cost (345,326)            (360,091)            

Credit risk

Parent & Group Parent & Group
Actual Actual

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $0

Cash at bank 12,824               7,636                 
Debtors and other receivables 23,205               19,85

 

00 

4              
Community loans 26                      26                     
Derivative financial instrument assets 4,460                 536                    
Financial guarantees - Watercare 8,000                 8,000                
Financial guarantees - Other 170                    50                     

Total credit risk 48,685              36,102              

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

RDC's maximum credit exposure for each class of financial instrument is as follows:

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial guarantees is the maximum amount RDC would have to pay if the guarantee is 
called on, which may be significantly greater than the amount recognised as a liability.
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to Standard and Poor's
credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates:  
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Parent & Group
Parent & 

Group
Actual Actual

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000 

COUNTERPARTIES WITH CREDIT RATINGS
Cash at bank
AA 3,524               7,560               
AA- 9,300               
Total cash at bank 12,824             7,560               

Derivative financial instrument assets
AA 4,460               536                  
AA- -                  -                  
Total derivative financial instrument assets 4,460               536                  

COUNTERPARTIES WITHOUT CREDIT RATINGS
Community loans:
Existing counterparty with no defaults in the past 26                   26                   
Existing counterparty with defaults in the past -                  -                  
Total community loans 26                   26                   

Debtors and other receivables mainly arise from RDC's statutory functions, therefore there are no procedures in place to
monitor or report the credit quality of debtors and other receivables with reference to internal or external credit ratings. RDC
has no significant concentrations of credit risk in relation to debtors and other receivables, as it has a large number of credit
customers, mainly ratepayers, and RDC has powers under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover outstanding
debts from ratepayers. 
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30 Financial instruments (cont.)
Liquidity risk

 Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows 

Less than 1 
year 

 1 - 2    
years  2 - 5 years 

 More than 
5 years 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
2010
Creditors and other payables 42,903        42,903        42,903        
Net settled derivative l iabilities 11,633        27,090        43               879             11,347        14,821        
Secured loans 305,019      345,433      116,443      34,930        107,622      86,439        

Total 359,555    415,426    159,389    35,809       118,969      101,260    

2009
Creditors and other payables 29,386        29,386        29,386        
Net settled derivative l iabilities 6,477          43,164        889             2,351          7,880          32,044        
Secured loans 305,003      334,108      129,296      40,903        67,808        96,101        

Total 340,866      406,658      159,571      43,254        75,688        128,145      

Contractual maturity analysis of financial assets

 Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows 

Less than 1 
year 

 1 - 2    
years  2 - 5 years 

 More than 
5 years 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
2010
Cash and cash equivalents 7,636          7,636          7,636          
Debtors and other receivables 19,854        19,854        19,854        
Other financial assets:
 - community loans 26               -              

Total 27,516        27,490        27,490        -              -              -              

2009
Cash and cash equivalents 12,824        12,824        12,824        
Debtors and other receivables 23,205        23,205        23,205        
Other financial assets:
 - community loans 26               -              

Total 36,055      36,029      36,029      -             -             -            

Liquidity risk is the risk that RDC will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments as they fall due. Prudent liquidity 
risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit 
facili ties and the ability to close out market positions. RDC aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines available.

In meeting its liquidity requirements, RDC maintains a target level of investments that must mature within the next 12 months. RDC 
manages its borrowings in accordance with its funding and financial policies, which include a Liability Management policy. These 
policies have been adopted as part of the RDC's Long Term Plan.

The table below analyses RDC's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance 
date to the contractual maturity date. Future interest payments on floating rate debt is based on the BKBM FRA rates at year end 
plus a margin, on the instrument at the balance date. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

The table below analyses the RDC's  financial assets into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance 
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
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30 Financial instruments (cont.)

Sensitivity Analysis

Council
-200bps +200bps -200bps +200bps
Other Other Other Ot

Note Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 (256)        256         (153)        153         
Derivatives - hedge accounted 2a (7,141)       6,087      (3,548)       3,827      

Financial liabilities
Derivatives - hedge accounted 2b 17,092-      15,269    (27,447)     614         
Borrowings - term loans 3 620         (620)        1,380      (1,380)     

Total sensitivity to interest rate risk 364        (24,233)   (364)      21,356  1,227    (30,995)     (1,227)   4,441    

Explanation of sensitivity analysis

1 Cash and cash equivalents

2 Derivatives - hedge accounted
(a) Financial assets

(b) Financial l iabilities

3 Secured loans

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits at call totalling $76,000 plus cash held in the bank account of $7,560,000 (2009
$12,824,000) which are at floating rates. A movement in interest rates of plus or minus 2% has an effect on interest income of $153,000
(2009 $256,000 with a movement of 1%).

The tables below illustrate the potential profit and loss and equity (excluding retained earnings) impact for reasonably possible market 
movements, with all variables held constant, based on RDC's financial instrument exposure at the balance date.

2009 2010
$000 $000 

Derivative financial assets hedge accounted includes interest rate swap and cash flow hedges with a fair value totalling $536,000 (2009
$4,460,000) A movement in interest rates of plus or minus 2% has an effect on the cash flow hedge reserve of -$3,584,000 +$3,827,000
(2009 -$7,141,000 +$6,087,000). 

Derivative financial liabilities hedge accounted includes interest rate swap cash flow hedges with a fair value totalling $12,169,000 (2009
$10,937,000). A movement in interest rates of plus or minus 2% has an effect on the cash flow hedge reserve.

RDC has floating rate debt with a principal amount totalling $69,019,000 (2009 $31,003,000). A movement in interest rates of plus or
minus 2% has an effect on interest expense of $1,380,380 (2009 $620,060). A movement in market interest rates on fixed rate debt does
not have any impact because secured loans are accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The floating portion of secured loans of $69,019,000 (2009 $31,003,000) represents the portion of debt that is not in a hedge relationship.

her
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31 Capital management

The Council’s capital is its equity (or ratepayers’ funds), which comprise retained earnings and reserves.
Equity is represented by net assets. 

The Local Government Act 2002 [the Act] requires the Council to manage its revenues, expenses, assets,
liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings prudently and in a manner that promotes the current
and future interests of the community. Ratepayer’s funds are largely managed as a by-product of managing
revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings. 

The objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle promoted in
the Act and applied by the Council. Intergenera tional equity requires today’s ratepayers to meet the costs of
utilising the Council’s assets and not expecting them to meet the full cost of long term assets that will benefit
ratepayers in future generations. Add itionally, the Council has in place asset management plans for major
classes of assets detailing renewal and maintenance programmes, to ensure ratepayers in future generations
are not required to meet the costs of deferred renewals and maintenance. 

The Act requires the Council to make adequate and effective provision in its Long Term Plan (LTP) and in its
Annual Plan to meet the expend iture needs identified in those plans. And the Act sets out the factors that the
Council is required to consider when determining the most appropriate sources of funding for each of its
activities. The sources and levels of funding are set out in the funding and financial policies in the Council’s
LTP. 

RDC has the following Council created reserves: 

     • reserves for different areas of benefit; 
     • self- insurance reserves; and 
     • trust and bequest reserves. 

Reserves for different areas of benefit are used where there is a discrete set of rate or levy payers as distinct
from the general rate. Any surplus or deficit relating to these separate areas of benefit is applied to the
specific reserves. 

Self-insurance reserves are built up annually from general rates and are made available for specific
unforeseen events. The release of these funds generally can only be approved by Council. 

Trust and bequest reserves are set up where Council has been donated funds that are restricted fo r particular
purposes. Interest is added to trust and bequest reserves where applicable and deductions are made where
funds have been used for the purpose they were donated.
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32 Joint venture

Araparera forest

Parent & Group Parent & Group
Actual Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000

Non-current assets 1,280                     1,405                     

Northern animal shelter

Parent & Grou

 

p Parent & Group
Actual Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000

Non-current assets 1,324                     1,089                     
Income -                         151                        
Expenses -                         58                          

The carrying value included in Property Plant & Equipment Note 13 is $1,088,975

RDC's interest in the Araparera forestry joint venture is accounted for as a jointly controlled asset. RDC's interest is as follows:

Rodney District Council (RDC) and North Shore City Council (NSCC) have designed, constructed and jointly own and operate an
animal shelter facility (Northern Animal Shelter) in Tavern Road, Silverdale. 

This joint venture is undertaken in order for the Councils to meet their respective long-term statutory requirements for the custody,
care, exercise, release and disposal of dogs and implementation of their dog policies under the Dog Control Act 1996.

The shelter is a small, non-profit council controlled organisation (CCO) exempted as a CCO under section 7(3) of the LGA 2002, by
Council resolution on 07 August 2008. Council is required to review this exemption within three years after it is granted, i.e., before 07
August 2011.

 

 
 
33 Income Tax

Parent & Group Parent & Group
Actual Actual 

30 June 2009 31 Oct 2010
$000 $000

Net surplus 10,615                   2,093                     
    Tax at 30%    3,185                     628                        
    Tax effect of non-taxable items

 

(3,185)                   (628)                     
    Tax expense                                                  -                   - -                         -                         

    Current tax                                                    -                    - -                        -                       
    Deferred tax                                                  -                    - -                        -                       

    A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in relation to tax losses of $0

Historically RDC policy has been that all activities were non-taxable. Recent advice from the Inland Revenue has confirmed this.
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34 Explanation for major variances against budget

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Actual Plan Variance
$000 $000 $000

Income 246,367           266,338           (19,971)            
Expenditure 244,274         211,938           32,336           

Surplus 2,093 54,400 (52,307)            

Income

Vested Assets 25,587 6,500 19,087             

Cash Contributions 13,056 8,462 4,594               

NZ Transport Agency (NZTA) grants 27,178 46,466 (19,288)            

Other gains/(losses) 1,318 27,805 (26,487)            

Expenditure

Finance Costs 25,429 26,178 (749)               

Other operating costs 115,883 83,888 31,995           

Additional personnel costs of $2 million were incurred due to the implementation of Auckland Council structure.

Explanations for major variations from the Council estimate figures are as follows: 

Vested assets are not cash but are assets such as roads or water and wastewater pipes built by developers and passed to Council on
completion of their projects. It is difficult to prepare an accurate budget for these types of assets as the Council has little control of the
timing or quantity of the amount vested. 

Cash contributions are dependent on development occurring in the district, which is determined by the economic environment at the
time and the rate at which developers commence and complete projects. Following a review of the cash contributions regime and after
extensive consultation a new Development Contribution Policy was adopted and was effective from 1 July 2009.

In preparing the Annual Plan and Auckland Regional Transport Authority submissions for 2009/10 a number of assumptions were made
around the subsidy which would be received. Some projects such as Penlink have not been undertaken and others are awaiting NZTA
approval before proceeding.

The council resolved to sell surplus properties to repay debt. Overall the number of properties sold was less than anticipated and the
value received was lower than budgeted.

Despite interest rate increases due to the change in the global lending market, overall costs are on budget as Council has in place a
number of treasury instruments which are used to actively manage and minimise the interest expense both in the short and long term. 

Other operating costs are the costs of delivering services and including payments for maintenance contracts for roading, water,
wastewater, and parks. They also include costs such as legal expenditure, insurance payments, power costs and vehicle running
expenses etc. 

During the period the Council changed the methodology used to calculate the potential future costs of meeting weather tightness
issues. As a result the provision was increased by $22.2 million

The Council reassessed the accounting treatment used regarding file remediation costs, these costs were previously capitalised and
during the year we recognised an expense relating to the historic value of $4.2 million

Costs of $7.3 million associated with the planned Penlink development (some of which had previously formed part of WIP) have now 
been written offf.
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Statement of Financial Position

Actual Plan Variance
$000 $000 $000

Current assets 49,869             30,931             18,938             

Non current assets 1,836,075        1,806,787        29,288             
Total Assets 1,885,944        1,837,718        48,226             

Current assets

Non current assets

Actual Plan Variance

$000 $000 $000
Current liabilities 158,503           98,158             60,345             

Non current liabilities 237,699           260,100           (22,401)            
Total Liabilities 396,202           358,258           37,944             

Net borrowings (borrowings less cash held) was $297.4 million at 31 October 2010 compared to the budgeted position of $312.1
million, a difference of $14.7 million. 

In preparing the Annual Plan we estimated that only $50.6 million of our borrowings (approx 16.5% of net borrowings) would be a
current liability repayable in one year. At 31 October 2010 $107 million (36% of net borrowings) was classified as a current liability. 
In preparing our Annual Plan we assumed that the derivative financial instruments would have a net asset value of $100,000 instead we
had a net financial liability valued at $11.6 million (June 2009 $6.5 million), a variation from plan of $11.6 million and an increase from
2009 of $5.2 million.

Non current liabilities have decreased by $22.4 million. Of this $22.6 relates to increased provisions; $0.5 million increase for landfill
monitoring and $22.2 million for weathertightness.

There is $11.9 million more owed to creditors at year end than we budgeted for in the Annual Plan. A significant portion of the increase
was due to $13 million for rates received in advance. The rating year was spilt due to the change in the balance date, Rates were struck
on 1 July 2010 which covered the period from 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011. A higher volume of rates were received in advance due to
the change in the GST rate and due to the Council offering a discount for early payment of rates.

Debtors and other receivables were $3.5 million higher than budgeted. 

The value of non current assets held for resale was $14.9 million higher than budget as additional properties were identified as
available for sale and property sales did not occur as quickly as budgeted.

Council revalued its Property Plant and equipment during the period. The revaluation included the valuation of land and buildings which
were previously held at cost. The increase in the revaluation reserve was $150 million this was $110 million more than budgeted. 

The variances in current assets is primarily related to an increase in short term funds on deposit. We held $7.6 million in the bank at
year end. Our policy is to hold much smaller balances.  

Statement of Cashflow
Actual Plan Variance

$000 $000 $000
Net cash from operating activities 76,672 74,918 1,754               
Net cash from financing activities 16 1,950 (1,934)              
Net cash from investing activities (81,876)            (84,032)            2,156               
     Net cash inflow (outflow) (5,188)              (7,164)              1,976               

Net cash from operating activities

Net cash from financing activities

Net cash from investing activities

The cash contributions and additional operating expenditure mentioned above resulted in a variance to the net cash from operating
activities.

Borrowings as outlined above resulted in a variance in the net cash from financing activities.

The Council increased the uncompleted capital works this year. In addition the Council sold some properties.
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Audit Report 

To the readers of Rodney District Council and group’s 
financial statements and performance information 

for the 16-month period ended 31 October 2010 

 

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Rodney District Council and group. The Auditor-General has appointed me, 
Karen MacKenzie, using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand, to carry out the audit on her behalf. The audit 
covers the financial statements, the performance information and the other requirements of Schedule 10 of the 
Local Government Act 2002 that are included in the report of Rodney District Council and group for the 16-month 
period ended 31 October 2010. 

Rodney District Council and group’s financial statements, performance information and other requirements have 
been completed by Auckland Council pursuant to the Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 
2009.  

Unqualified Opinion  

In our opinion:  

 The financial statements of Rodney District Council and group on pages 163 to 214 that are prepared on 
a dissolution basis: 

 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

 fairly reflect : 

 Rodney District Council and group’s financial position as at 31 October 2010; and 

 the results of operations and cash flows for the 16-month period ended on that date.  

 The performance information of Rodney District Council on pages 15 to 161: 

 complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

 fairly reflects Rodney District Council’s levels of performance for the 16-month period ended 
31 October 2010, including: 

 the levels of performance as measured against the intended levels of performance 
adopted in Rodney District Council’s long-term council community plan; and 

 the reasons for any significant variances between the actual performance and the 
expected performance.  

 The report complies with the other requirements of Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002 that 
are applicable to the report. 

The audit was completed on 24 February 2011, and is the date at which our opinion is expressed.  

The basis of our opinion is explained below and refers to the financial statements being appropriately prepared on a 
dissolution basis due to the new local government structure for the Auckland region from 1 November 2010. In 
addition, we outline the responsibilities of Rodney District Council, Auckland Council, and the Auditor, and explain our 
independence. 
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Basis of Opinion 

We carried out the audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the 
New Zealand Auditing Standards.   

We planned and performed the audit to obtain all the information and explanations we considered necessary in 
order to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements, the performance information and the other 
requirements did not have material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error.  

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that would affect a reader’s overall 
understanding of the financial statements, the performance information and the other requirements. If we had found 
material misstatements that were not corrected, we would have referred to them in our opinion.  

The audit involved performing procedures to test the information presented in the financial statements, the 
performance information and the other requirements. We assessed the results of those procedures in forming our 
opinion. 

Audit procedures generally include: 

 determining whether significant financial and management controls are working and can be relied on to 
produce complete and accurate data; 

 verifying samples of transactions and account balances; 

 performing analyses to identify anomalies in the reported financial and performance data; 

 reviewing significant estimates and judgements made by Rodney District Council and Auckland Council; 

 confirming year-end balances;  

 determining whether accounting policies are appropriate and consistently applied; 

 determining the appropriateness of the reported performance information within Rodney District Council’s 
framework for reporting performance; and 

 determining whether all required disclosures are adequate. 

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements, the 
performance information and the other requirements. 

We evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements, the performance 
information and the other requirements. We obtained all the information and explanations we required to support 
our opinion above.  

The financial statements are appropriately prepared on a dissolution basis due to the new local 
government structure for the Auckland region from 1 November 2010 

On 1 November 2010 the Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 dissolved Rodney 
District Council. Its functions, duties, and powers were transferred to Auckland Council. As a consequence of that 
reorganisation all the assets and liabilities of Rodney District Council and group have vested in Auckland Council 
and its controlled entities. 

In forming our opinion, we considered:  

 the accounting policy on page 168 about the financial statements being prepared on a dissolution basis; 
and 

 the disclosures regarding the effects of dissolution in notes 6 and 29. 
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We consider the basis of preparation of the financial statements and the related disclosures to be appropriate to 
Rodney District Council and group’s circumstances. 

Responsibilities of the Rodney District Council, Auckland Council and the Auditor 

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 required the report of Rodney District Council 
for the 16 month period ended 31 October 2010 to be prepared by Rodney District Council and completed by 
Auckland Council. 

Therefore, Auckland Council is responsible to ensure that the report of Rodney District Council includes financial 
statements and performance information that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand. 
The financial statements must fairly reflect the financial position of Rodney District Council and group as at 
31 October 2010. They must also fairly reflect the results of operations and cash flows for the 16-month period ended 
on that date. The performance information must fairly reflect Rodney District Council’s levels of performance for the 
16 month period ended 31 October 2010. 

Auckland Council is also responsible to ensure that the report of Rodney District Council includes the other 
requirements of Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002.  

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements, the performance information 
and the other requirements and reporting that opinion to you. This responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public 
Audit Act 2001 and section 99 of the Local Government Act 2002. 

Independence 

When carrying out the audit we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General, which incorporate 
the independence requirements of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants.  

Other than the audit of Rodney District Council’s report and the Auditor-General being the auditor of Auckland 
Council, we have no relationship with or interests in Rodney District Council or any of its subsidiaries, or Auckland 
Council.  

 

 

Karen MacKenzie 
Audit New Zealand 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Auckland, New Zealand 
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Council committees 
 

Committee Membership 

Full Council  
 
Quorum: 7 

Chairperson: Mayor, Penny Webster  
 
Deputy Chair: Deputy Mayor, Cr John Kirikiri  
 
Members: All Councillors 

Strategy & Community 
Committee 
   
Quorum: 7 

Chairperson: Cr Zane Taylor  
 
Deputy: Cr Michael Goudie  
 
Members: All Councillors 

Infrastructure & Environment 
Committee  
  
Quorum: 7 

Chairperson: Cr Grahame Powell  
 
Deputy: Cr Pat Delich 
 
Members: All Councillors 

District Plan & Regulatory 
Committee  
  
Quorum: 4 members for policy 
decisions and 3 members for 
other matters 

Chairperson: Cr Gaye Harding  
 
Deputy: Cr Suzanne Weld 
 
Members: Crs Michael Goudie, Gaye Harding, Dave Parker, 
Grahame Powell and Suzanne Weld 
 
Alternates: Crs Pat Delich, June Turner and Wayne Walker.  

Resource Consents Hearings 
Panel  
Quorum: 2 (one must be the 
Independent Commissioner) 

Chair:  Independent Commissioner  
 
Members: One councillor from the ward related to the application 
and one councillor from outside that ward. 

Kawau Island Advisory 
Committee 

Elected Member: Cr Dave Parker  
 
Alternate: Cr June Turner 
 
Members: Lyn Hume, Michael Morris, John Pryor 

Audit Committee 
 
Quorum: 3 

Chairperson: Stuart Bauld  
 
Elected Member: Cr John Kirikiri  
 
Members: Alan Curtis and Roy Tiffin 
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Mayor and Councillors 
 

 
Name  

Mayor 

Penny Webster 

  

Mayor 2007 to 2010 

Northern Ward Councillor 2004 to 2010 

Central Ward Councillor  

Ross Craig Served one term in office 2007 to 2010 

Hibiscus Coast Ward 
Councillors 

 

Michael Goudie Served one term in office 2007 to 2010 

Gaye Harding Served four terms in office between 1998 and 2010 

John Kirikiri 
Deputy Mayor 

Served one term in office 2007 to 2010 

Zane Taylor  Served one term in office 2007 to 2010 

Wayne Walker Served three terms in office between 2001 and 2010 

Northern Ward Councillors 
 

Dave Parker QSM, J.P. Served one term in office 2007 to 2010 

Dr Grahame Powell, J.P. Served four terms in office between 1998 and 2010 

June Turner Served one term in office 2007 to 2010 

Western Ward Councillors 
 

Pat Delich Served three terms in office between 2001 and 2010 

Grev Walker, J.P  Served two terms in office between 2004 and 2010 

Suzanne Weld Served one term in office 2007 to 2010 
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Statement of Resources 

 
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Volume Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
Base Statistics

Area Sq Km 2,475 2,475 2,475 2,475 2,475
Population (Estimate following Census 2006) Number 89,200 89,559 94,700 96,562 98,383
Households (Estimated Occupied dwellings following Census 2006) Number 33,572 32,910 33,483 36,084 36,710
Electors (Estimate) Number 59,531 59,531 64,903 64,903 68,160
Financial divisions Number 2 2 2 2 1
Wards (at Election) Number 3 4 4 4 4
Urban areas Number 12 15 15 15 15
Total number of properties Number 43,245 43,967 44,873 45,362 45,714
Total rateable properties Number 41,974 43,538 44,466 44,076 44,213
Value of improvements $ Million 8,551 9,939 12,083 12,148 12,428
Net land value $ Million 12,839 13,118 21,609 21,241 21,334
Capital value (Revaluation 2007) $ Million 21,001 23,057 33,692 33,389 33,763
Total rates $000 72,535 81,752 88,263 99,130 131,336
Total Rates Per Property $ 1,728 1,878 1,985 2,249 2,971
Total Assets $000 1,448,832 1,578,681 1,639,595 1,705,628 1,905,426
Net Borrowings (Borrowings net of cash held) $000 169,070 211,683 255,800 292,179 297,400

Average full time equivalent staff1

Total (based on 2080 hours per year) FTE Staff 450 472 472 473 469
FTE excluding Temporary and Casual staff 2

370 401 396 409 381
Roading

Sealed roads km 956 990 1,008 1,020 1,038
Unsealed roads km 740 718 704 694 688
Total km 1,696 1,708 1,712 1,714 1,726

Wastewater
Systems Number 10 10 11 10 10
Sewer reticulation length km 578 599 606 603 643
Number of Properties connected to the System Number 20,764 22,474 22,770 23,243 23,861

Water Supplies
Systems Number 7 7 7 7 7
Water reticulation length

3
km 480 496 495 526 534

Number of Connections to the System Number 17,022 17,371 17,994 18,297 18,442

Stormwater Control
Urban km of piped drains4

km 473 489 493 644 727
Urban km of open drains km 244 249 250 254 373

Community Wellbeing
Reserves and parks-total area

5
ha 2,092 2,081 1,778 1,726 1,786

Public conveniences and changing sheds Number 87 93 90 92 92
Total length of coastline km 1,019 1,019 1,019 1,019 1,019
Foreshore structures (licensed) Number 195 170 174 175 179
Mooring sites (excluding Gulf Harbour) Number 995 983 990 982 1,013
Boat ramps (includes beach access)6

Number 63 71 67 67 67
Camping grounds Number 4 4 4 4 4
Public halls Number 25 25 25 27 27
Leisure centre Number 1 1 1 1 1
Libraries Number 7 7 7 7 7

Notes
1 Rodney District Council is an Equal Opportunity Employer
2

3
4 Subsoil drains (110km) are  excluded from 2006 forward
5 Due to reclassifying a number of properties from reserve to operational (utilities)
6 Only ramps maintained by RDC (2007 figure included ARC ramps)

As at 2008 this figure has discounted the length of pipe (total 10km) outside the public sytem.

Note that excluding temporary and casual staff gives a more meaningful and consistent trend as it removes short term variations 
arising from specific seasonal and short term needs.
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Growth Trends 
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Council Controlled Organisations 
 
Rodney Properties Limited 
 
The primary objective of RPL was to provide advice on the disposal of a portfolio of non-
operational RDC properties to maximise financial returns to the Council so that debt could be 
minimised whilst trying to achieve good urban design and strategic outcomes. 

 

Statement of Intent 
 

 TARGET PERFORMANCE 
 
Financial Performance: 
Manage the business 
efficiently, maintaining cash 
flows as budgeted. 
 

 
 
As set out in annual budgets. 

 
 
The bank balance was 
maintained at the budgeted 
level. 

 
Cost Management: 
Ensure the costs of running 
the business conform to 
budgeted levels. 
 

 
 
As set out in annual budgets. 

 
 
Costs exceeded budget, 
primarily due to unbudgeted 
consultant costs. 

 
Strategic Development 
Outcomes: 
Consider Councils strategic 
planning objectives with 
recommendations as to 
specific sale proposals. 
 

 
 
Compliance with existing 
strategic planning goals. 
 
Identification of innovative 
solutions  

 
 
Council strategic objectives 
were considered and 
recommendations made in 
regards to properties to be 
sold and the approach to be 
taken. 
 

 
 

 

Northern Animal Shelter 
 

Rodney District Council (RDC) and North Shore City Council (NSCC) designed, constructed and 
jointly owned and operated an animal shelter facility (Northern Animal Shelter) in Tavern Road, 
Silverdale.  

This joint venture was undertaken in order for the Councils to meet their respective long-term 
statutory requirements for the custody, care, exercise, release and disposal of dogs and 
implementation of their dog policies under the Dog Control Act 1996. 

The shelter was a small, non-profit council controlled organisation (CCO) exempted as a CCO 
under section 7(3) of the LGA 2002, by Council resolution on 07 August 2008. Council is required 
to review this exemption within three years after it is granted, i.e., before 07 August 2011. No 
statement of intent for the 2010 financial year was required. 
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